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CORPORATE INFORMATION
EXHEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:
Ms. Yeung So Lai (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar (Deputy Chairrman)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Hu Gin Ing

Mr. Chow Wai Leung William

Mr. Leung Man Man

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
Ms. Hu Gin Ing (Chairman)

Mr. Chow Wai Leung William

Mr. Leung Man Man

NOMINATING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Mr. Chow Wai Leung William (Chairman)
Ms. Hu Gin Ing

Mr. Leung Man Man

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Ms. Hu Gin Ing (Chairman)

Mr. Chow Wai Leung William

Mr. Leung Man Man

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Luk Chi Keung

AUDITOR

Confucius International CPA Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House,
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Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1510, 15/F., West Tower,
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Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN BERMUDA

Conyers Corporate Services

(Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House,

2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For other information relating to the Company, please contact
Corporate Communication Department.

Website: www.superactive.com.hk

Email: info@superactive.com.hk
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEMBHE

RESULTS

e

Years ended 31 December

BE+-B=+—ALEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

bl — T TF “T-HF “T-\F ZT—LHF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

el TET TR TEm TEn

Revenue @ 132,217 101,129 184,812 237,525 206,526

Gross profit Z7 49,002 42,267 51,157 42,069 20,019

Impairment of assets BEERE (8,225) (9,629) (10,758) (107,859) —
Net impairment loss on CRHEERESEFH

financial assets (85,203) (63,525) (20,916) (35,157) 159

Share of results of associates  FEILHEE AT 2 45 (5,513) 60 (10,533) 11,929 54,122

(Loss)/profit before tax bBriAl (518) /&7 (122,342) (104,561) (86,124) (193,173) 79,048

Income tax (expense)/credit  FTEiR (B%) /% (21,345) (1,588) (8,963) 11,167 (10,074)

(Loss)/profit for the year R (BB) /5F (143,687) (106,149) (95,087) (182,006) 68,974

Attributable to: L& IBMER

Owners of the Company KABHEE A (144,126) (108,257) (94,285) (174,334) 69,324

Non-controlling interests JEE R 439 2,108 (802) (7,672) (350)

(143,687) (106,149 (95,087) (182,006) 68,974
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
R IRFHE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER

At 31 December

R+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
it CTOFE ZENE ZER\F ZTtHF
LLEOLL  HKE000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TER TET TRT TET

Total assets BERE 1,255,417 1,360,944 1,389,722 1,485,203 1,257,549
Total liabilities =RERE 828,267 802,364 772,758 762,965 326,203
Net assets BEFE 427,150 568,680 616,964 722,238 931,346

Equity attributable to owners ~ ZAT#E A

of the Company FE(E RS 415964 547,601 625,467 717,640 921,224
Non-controling interests RS 11,186 10,979 (8,503) 4,598 10,122
Total equity TR 4A%E 427,150 558,580 616,964 722,238 931,346
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Superactive Group Company Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the Group
increased to approximately HK$132.22 million as compared to
approximately HK$101.13 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, representing an increase of approximately 30.74%. The
Group’s gross profit increased by approximately HK$6.73 million
from approximately HK$42.27 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$49.00 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 41.80% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately 37.06% for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$143.69 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 compared to a loss of approximately
HK$106.15 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The main
reason for the year-on-year increase in revenue was that the revenue
from sales of electronics products has significantly increased, with a
segment turnover of approximately HK$89.97 million, representing
an upsurge of approximately 63.57% as compared with that of last
year. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the
proportion of revenue contribution from money lending business has
decreased from 24.81% in 2020 to 16.64% in 2021 and the gross
profit margin in the money lending business is much higher than
other business segments.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EANEAXRAREEERBARAT (TF
AB)ERENBASRE I SER))
Ex (8%) 8 (8Fg) MAERE
EEgEE_T_—F+-_A=+—HL
FEZEFER-

EBHE

BE_ T _—F+_-_RBA=+—HLE
E > AEBMWE EFE4132,220,000
BT REE_ S _ZF+_H=+—
H1IEEE4101,130,0007%8 7o 1049
30.74% - AEBEFNHBEZZZTF
+ZB=+—HILLFEL42,270,000%
oI I0496,730,0008 T EHE T~ —
F+ZA=+—HLEFE#49,000,000
BT ENEXRHEEZE_ZT_ZTE+_A
=t+—HLEEELHN41.80% FTHREHE
TET -+ "_RBA=1t—HLEEEH
37.06% AEBEE_T-_—F+1
=+—HILFE#{EE1849143,690,000
BT MBE_E_ZEFE+_A=+—
HIEFER A E1E49106,150,000% 7T ©
WARLENMNEERRAETERN
THE ARG N0 > 7> $8 8 F£R4989,970,000
BT B EFEIRIMNA63.57% c EFE
TREDHRBEERN W R SREEFIH
CECEFEN24A81I% NRE_E_—F
H916.64% R MEXBNEMNKREGFNKHE
R Do



PROSPECTS

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, global economic and business
activities have been disrupted. Although the epidemic has not
stopped its impact on the global economy, the macro environment
of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) has improved significantly
in the first half of 2021, and the number of confirmed COVID-19
cases has continued to decline. However, since the third quarter
of 2021, the number of COVID-19 infections has risen again in the
PRC, and the increase in new infections cases has led to more travel
restrictions and lockdown measures, which will inevitably have an
impact on the Group’s business. We expect the virus containment
measures would continue in the short term, so it will take more
time for the economy to get back on track. In addition, the recent
downturn in China’s properties market has once again triggered
market concerns that the economic recovery will be hindered. The
current business environment is very difficult. Nonetheless, with
vaccination rates continuing to rise and antiviral drugs expected to
be widely available shortly. We are confident that the outbreak of
COVID-19 will soon pass. Also, we expect the government to roll
out more accommodative government policies to drive economic
recovery. Therefore, we remain cautiously optimistic about the
recovery of the Group’s business. We will remain vigilant to respond
to the rapidly changing environment and will strengthen our
strategies for managing turbulence.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

At the Company, social responsibility is an integral part of how we
do business. We go beyond complying with legal or regulatory
requirements and genuinely work towards making a positive impact
on the welfare of our employees, our business partners, our local
communities, and the environment. Environment, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report attached in the annual report provides
the public with an appreciation of how we perform and respond to
different ESG issues.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

Al =

B#2019B KM B RIB LUK » IR
ERBEIFHEZITE - BERBL
RELEHEHREENFE BREAR
HME (THE) WRRRER S —
FLE¥EANEEBENRS > 20198 RE
FRBZHENFERL BHAR_-Z
T —FE =B 20198 R IFFHR
LERERPEBR T Fig IR
DB 5| K FE 2 BIIRTT IRl K £ 8 18
MEE EHEHAEEERERTE-
BAEE MBS EERRN S EE
B ALK EEEFTLRBAEER
E# o th5h > R Bl 5 3 A& T 353 5 BR B9 1K K
BERTBRERET mEHSEERZHE
HNEE BRNEHRIEFEERE B
Mt EEEEEEERFELAMLETE
MR BEYRBER AR RERSEZE
B ®BMEEELEBREBE ME > &
IFE ST BT i 46 8 B FR PO IBURT ISR L
WENEEF AL M AEBEETR
MEBRFEZELE BB RIELIS
MFEH R B BEMNIBIE, e maikm
FE X BRI TREL o

HEMFERRMLEER

RAB R EHEEEREHEEHED—
BRI SRERBI BB EIE IR B E
SIREHHRERR EERESN®E
FHPIVEFBH  RPVHEE UKk
RIBWREBTE - FHPAMBI(GRIE
HEgkES (MRE-HEREBR) KRE)
BARBRTHAMANRE -HERE
A ER T ZEBERIR R (OE -

SHTEEEABRAT | 2021 F£i

7



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Finally, | would like to thank our employees for their dedication,
independent directors for their guidance and suggestions, and
shareholders for their confidence in the management and their
support. | am grateful to everyone who contributes to the success of
the Group.

Yeung So Lai
Chairman

25 April 2022
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit: Revenue comprised of sales of
electronics products, services income from the provision of
nursery education service, interest income from the provision
of money lending, management fee received from property
management services provided and services income from the
provision of regulated financial services. The revenue in 2021
increased by approximately HK$31,088,000 (representing an
increase of approximately 30.74% when compared with 2020)
from HK$101,129,000 in 2020 to HK$132,217,000 in 2021. The
increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase in the sales of
electronics products. The outbreak of COVID-19 at the end of 2019
caused the production and operation of the business of electronics
products in 2020 to be affected due to the suspension. And in
2021, the epidemic was gradually brought under control, and the
impact on business operations was gradually reduced. The gross
profit increased by approximately HK$6,735,000 (representing an
increase of approximately 15.93% when compared with 2020)
from approximately HK$42,267,000 in 2020 to approximately
HK$49,002,000 in 2021. The gross profit margin decreased by
approximately 4.74%, from 41.80% in 2020 to 37.06% in 2021.

Other net gains: The other net gains in 2021 were mainly
attributable to the rental income of approximately HK$5,082,000, the
government grant of approximately HK$2,392,000 and fair value gain
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$1,700,000.

Administrative costs: The increase was mainly due to an increase
in business development costs.

Finance costs: The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
interest recognised on lease liabilities.

Impairment of assets: The impairment of assets were mainly
attributable to the impairment loss on licence and goodwill in related
to the regulated financial service business amount to HK$4,810,000
and the impairment loss on the interest in an associate
HK$3,415,000.

BB w2 h

B4 75 [B] B8

KEREN : KESEETEMRBH
E REDZHERBHVRBUA IR
HBENF BEWA N REY XS ERD
HNEBERRERZRE TRREIVRS
WA - ZEBZ—FNRTH_ZTZZHF
89101,129,000% 7t L F+#4931,088,0007%8
TE_E " —F/132,217,0008 7T (&
—EFFE FF4930.74%) W EFFE
EEHNRETERNHEE EAMBM R
TE-NEERIFEEN2019E8RFER
BN S _EFNETFEREENE
ERERFEIMSEFE R _T _—
FREZHFIES  HEBLKENE
ENZELTHREBE-ENH_ZSZZTENY
42,267,000/ 7T £ F+ 496,735,000 0 &
—E T —FM4949,002,00058 T (R -F
—EFE FFE915.93%)c EF KB _ZT
TER41.80% B VA4 T4 E T ——
FHI37.06% ©

Bt s8E R -2 - — 5 s
PR E BRI TS WA £5,082,0008
70> B BN #92,392,00058 7T R AR A
ERERIRZEREEZ ARERTE
491,700,000 7 ©

THEAE : EATERHNERTEEN
ZAIBANFTER °

MBRAE BT EERHNEEAEHE
ORI BB D FrER ©

BEERE: EEABEIEZRENZRE
TRFER 2 R B RE4,810,000
ATk —EBRE AR 2 EmRERE
3,415,000 7
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEA RN

Net impairment loss on financial assets: The net impairment
loss on financial assets for the year comprises the impairment
loss on trade receivables, other receivables and loan receivables.
The impairment was recognised according to the expected credit
loss rates which are based on the actual loss experience over the
previous years adjusted for forward-looking information available to
the Group without undue cost and effort. Due to the continuation
of the epidemic in 2021, when estimating the loss given default of
loan receivables, the base rate of the given default rate increased by
10% in 2021 when compared with 2020. In addition, the probability
of default and loss given default of individual loans receivable are
adjusted after conducting the individual review. As a result, an
additional impairment loss on financial assets of approximately
HK$22,000,000 and HK$57,000,000 was recognised in 2021 for
the increase in the base rate of the probability of default and special
provision for some individual loans receivable respectively.

Share of results of associate: The amount represented the
Group’s share of the results of the associate, IT City Development
Fund LP, on an equity basis.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of money lending
service and provision of regulated financial service in Hong Kong;
and manufacturing of electronics products, provision of nursery
education service and property development and management in the
PRC during the year. In 2021, the income from the manufacturing
of electronics products, interest income from money lending
service, services income from the provision of regulated financial
service, income from nursery education and property development
and management income accounted for approximately 68.05%
(2020: 54.39%), 16.64% (2020: 24.81%), 5.24% (2020: 7.95%),
0.51% (2020: 1.74%) and 9.56% (2020: 11.11%) of total revenue
respectively.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Manufacturing Electronics Products

During the year, the segment of manufacturing electronics products
includes the manufacturing of transformers. The manufacturing of
electronics products contributed approximately HK$89,969,000 to
revenue (2020: HK$55,005,000 representing an increase of 63.57%
when compared with 2020). The main market for the business of the
manufacturing of transformers is the PRC.

Provision of Nursery Education Services

During the year, the segment of the provision of nursery education
services contributed approximately HK$672,000 to revenue (2020:
HK$1,756,000, representing a decrease of 61.73% when compared
with 2020). The decrease was mainly due to the kindergarten in
Chengdu was disposed of during 2020.

Provision of Money Lending Services

The provision of money lending services of the Group focuses
on conducting money lending business by providing secured
or guaranteed loans to customers, including individuals and
corporations.

During the year, the segment of the provision of money lending
services contributed approximately HK$22,005,000 to revenue
(2020: HK$25,095,000, representing a decrease of 12.31% when
compared with 2020).

As at 31 December 2021, loan receivables with the aggregate
gross principal amount of HK$247,300,000 and gross interest
receivables of HK$27,570,000 (2020: gross principal amount of
HK$277,400,000 and gross interest receivables of HK$24,982,000)
were due from thirteen (2020: fourteen) independent third parties.
The interest rates of the loan receivables range from 6% to 15%
per annum (2020: 6% to 15% per annum.) on the principals from
HK$5,000,000 to HK$47,000,000 (2020: from HK$2,000,000 to
HK$51,000,000). Three (2020: three) of the loan receivables are
secured by share charges of the borrowers, and twelve (2020:
thirteen) of the loan receivables are guaranteed by independent third
parties. The Group does not have the right to sell or re-pledge the
shares held as collateral in the absence of default by the borrowers.
All loan receivables were repayable within twelve months from the
end of the reporting period.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEA RN

The amount of loans receivables due from the largest borrower and
the five largest borrowers accounted for 17.61% (2020: 17.07%)
and 54.58% (2020: 56.61%), respectively, of loan receivables of the
Company as at 31 December 2021.

The Group has its credit risk strategy and policy and credit review
and risk assessment for the money lending business. It is required to
perform an independent assessment on loan applications before the
loans are granted and conduct checks on the value of the collateral
from time to time to ensure that there is no material deterioration in
value.

The impairment made on the loan receivables is provided and
recognised according to the requirement of HKFRS 9 issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. It is a
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation of the assets’ original effective
interest rate. In respect of loan receivables, credit risk arises
from a customer’s inability and unwillingness to meet its financial
obligations to make timely payments under the loans the Group
provided. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment, to calculate the provision of the impairment. The
impairment is a non-cash item.

No loan receivable has been recognised as bad debts during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Property Development and Management

Lijiang Underground Walkway: The Lijiang Underground Walkway
is located at the underground of Minzhu Road and Fuhui Road,
Lijiang City, Yunan Province, the PRC. The construction and the final
acceptance were completed in 2018 and those shops that have
been pre-sold before the Group’s acquisition have been delivered
to the respective buyers. The gross floor area of the underground
walkway project is approximately 36,583 square metre (“sgq. m.”),
comprising a civil air defence work structure of approximately 13,730
sg. m., 741 units of the saleable shop premises with a total gross
floor area of approximately 19,923 sg. m., a non-saleable property
utility room of approximately 15 sq. m. and a commercial function
room of approximately 2,915 sq. m.. The Lijiang Underground
Walkway is now held-for-sales purpose but in the meantime,
the shop premises will be leased to generate rental income and
management fee income. During the year, the management fee
income generated was approximately HK$12,641,000 (2020:
HK$11,231,000).

Provision of Regulated Financial Services

During the year, the segment of the provision of regulated financial
services contributed approximately HK$6,930,000 to revenue (2020:
HK$8,042,000, representing a decrease of 13.83% when compared
with 2020). The revenue of the provision of regulated financial
services was generated from the asset management services.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEA RN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$5,686,000 (2020: HK$11,598,000) which
included approximately HK$1,221,000 and Renminbi (“RMB”)
3,647,000.

The Group had interest-bearing borrowings of approximately
HK$498,584,000 (2020: HK$498,952,000) of which approximately
HK$267,529,000 (2020: HK$198,562,000) were repayable on
demand or within one year; approximately HK$143,396,000 (2020:
HK$79,908,000) were repayable in the second year; approximately
HK$86,199,000 (2020: HK$220,482,000) were repayable in the
third to fifth years, inclusive; and approximately HK$1,460,000
were repayable after five years. The Group’s total bank and other
borrowings divided by total assets as at 31 December 2021 was
39.71% (2020: 36.66%). As at 31 December 2021, the gearing
ratio of the Group was 1.15 (2020: 0.87). This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
interest-bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. With
the cash and bank balances available, and other current assets
could be converted to cash within a year, the Group has sufficient
financial resources to finance its operations and to meet the financial
obligations of its business.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has a net asset value of
HK$427,150,000 (2020: HK$558,580,000), with a liquidity ratio (ratio
of current assets to current liabilities) of 1.32 (2020: 1.73).

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

nHEE -MBEERELXA
=g

N _E _—F+_"_HB=+—H ' &~%H
2 & RIRESEEYIEE4 75,686,000
BT (T2 ZEH 11,598,000 7T) ° H
REIEA1,221,0008 TR AR TAR
) 3,647,0007T °

KNER 2 5t BERA %A498,584,0008
7T (CZT ZF4F © 498,952,000 7T) °
HAh49267,529,0008 70 (ZE B4 !
198,562,000 7t) BEERY N —F
MEE ; 49143,396,0008 T (ZE =
T 1 79,908,000/87T) BRNE_FE
2 ; 986,199,000 7T (_7_75
220,482,000/ 70) BRE=—FEFHF
(BIEEREMS) AEE ; K#91,460,000
BLTARLFRER-AEBR_E

T+ ZHR=+—HBRTREM
BB UEEER3.71% (T
TE 36.66%)c M _BE_—F+_H
=t+—H xEBELXEBLEA1.15
(ZE-ZHF :0.87) c ALRBREH
FRAR U SRR E - BRI R
EERRBERRERIRSEEYIER
HoAHNR AERERIBITEFRREMR
BEEAR—FERNEIR zts%lﬁ%%ﬁ
N BEERAERESIREESRET
EBR B EE

R_F_—F+ZA=+—H &%H
ZEEFES427,150,0008 7T (ZE =
T 1 558,580,00087T) > MRS EELE
R (RBEEEREBE LX) £1.32
TEIZHFI173) 0



CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the share equity of (i) Superactive Financial
Group Company Limited, the operating company of the regulated
financial services; (i) Link Complex Limited, a company which held
the 18% unlisted equity shares of a company which is for provision
of real-time kinematic solution; (ii) Shenzhen Jiaxin Enterprise
Management Company Limited, the holding company of a group
operating the manufacturing of transformers; (iv) Edisoft Investment
Limited, the holding companies of a group operating Lijiang Project,
and its subsidiaries; (v) Shenzhen Baike Enterprise Management Co.,
Ltd., the holding company of a subsidiary operating Lijiang Project;
and (vi) Next Millions Limited, the holding company of a subsidiary
operating the money lending services, were pledged to secure the
Company’s bond issued on 29 December 2017. In addition, the
office properties included in Land and Building under Property, Plant
and Equipment and Restricted Bank Deposits were pledged to a
bank to secure the Group’s loans.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in HK$ and RMB. All the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in HK$ and RMB. The Group did not engage in any
derivative activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to
hedge its financial position exposure as at 31 December 2021.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had staff force of approximately
300 employees (2020: approximately 250 employees). Of this, most
were stationed in the PRC. The remuneration of employees was in
line with the market trend and commensurable to the level of pay in
the industry. Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic
salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives (such as share option
scheme). Total staff costs incurred for 2021 were approximately
HK$35,943,000 (2020: approximately HK$29,983,000).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
ESREEHR

As at the date of this annual report, the biographical details of the
Directors are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Yeung So Lai (“Ms. Yeung”), aged 44, joined the Company
on 25 January 2017 as an executive Director and acted as the
Chairman of the Company on 8 February 2017. Ms. Yeung has
been appointed as director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Ms. Yeung is presently a director of a number of private companies
engaged in the business of investment holding and is experienced in
corporate management. Ms. Yeung was also the executive director
and chief executive officer of Imperium Group Global Holdings
Limited (formerly known as JF Household Furnishings Limited) (stock
code: 0776) from 21 September 2012 to 31 July 2016, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and was executive director
of Suncity Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Sun Century
Group Limited and Hong Long Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1383),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from 2
September 2011 to 31 March 2017.

Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar (“Mr. Lee”), aged 58, joined the
Company on 25 January 2017 as an executive Director and acted
as the Deputy Chairman of the Company on 8 February 2017. Mr.
Lee has been appointed as director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lee obtained a Professional Diploma in Accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as
Hong Kong Polytechnic) in 1985 and a Bachelor of Arts in Business
Studies from the City University of Hong Kong (formerly known as
the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) in 1994. He had worked in the
Inland Revenue Department for over 15 years after his graduation.
In 2000, he joined Ernst and Young, an international accounting
firm, as a senior manager. He later obtained a Master degree in
International Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong
in 2001. He was the executive director of Newtree Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1323), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange from 4 October 2011 to 31 January 2020. He
is experienced in corporate management and internal control. He is
a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
In addition, he is a member of the Society of Registered Financial
Planners.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Hu Gin Ing (“Ms. Hu”), aged 63, joined the Company on 6
November 2013 as an independent non-executive Director, chairman
of the audit and risk committee and a member of the nominating
and corporate governance committee of the Company. Ms. Hu
has been appointed as a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company on 30 May 2014 and re-designated as chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Company on 15 September
2014. Ms. Hu has experience in media, television network and
private equity investments. Ms. Hu has been a director/partner of
NHL CPA Limited, Hong Kong, from January 2005 to July 2020
and the chairman of the board of Benepet Co., Ltd. from July
2017 to June 2020. Ms. Hu is now the vice chairman of the board
of Benelife Management Limited since February 2018. Ms. Hu
has been the Corp. CFO, Global Finance, of Acer Incorporated a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation for the
period from May 2014 to June 2017. Ms. Hu was an independent
non-executive director of Carnival Group International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0996), from December 2013 to April 2019 and
Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 1808) from
March 2011 to June 2020, all of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Hu is an independent non-executive
director of LVGEM (China) Real Estate Investment Company Limited
(stock code: 0095) a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Hu has been an independent director of Vigor
Kobo Company Limited (stock code: 2733) and Acer Synergy Tech
Corp. (stock code: 6751) since 28 June 2019 and 15 October
2019 respectively and both companies are listed on the Mainboard
of the Taipei Exchange. Ms. Hu obtained a Master of Business
Administration degree from Florida International University, the US,
a Master of Science degree from Barry University, the US, and a
Bachelor degree in Foreign Language from the National Taiwan
University. Ms. Hu is a Certified Public Accountant, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and has over 27 years of experience in accounting and finance.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EFRREEFR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(Continueq)

Mr. Chow Wai Leung William (“Mr. Chow”), aged 49, joined the
Company on 8 February 2017 as an independent non-executive
Director, chairman of the nominating and corporate governance
committee, a member of each of the audit and risk committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chow is a certified
public accountant and an executive of an accounting firm in Hong
Kong and has various years of experience in auditing, taxation and
company secretarial practice in Hong Kong. Mr. Chow obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration (Hons.) from Hong
Kong Baptist University in 1996. Mr. Chow is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Leung Man Man (“Mr. Leung”), aged 54, joined the Company
on 17 April 2019 as an independent non-executive Director, a
member of each of the audit and risk committee, nominating and
corporate governance committee and remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. Leung is currently a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong and China-Appointed Attesting Officer. Mr. Leung obtained
a Bachelor of Laws in the University of Wolverhampton, the United
Kingdom and passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination pursuant
to the Training Regulations, 1989 in England and Wales. He was
admitted as a solicitor of the High Court in 1997. He is now a partner
of Messrs. KM Lai & Li, Solicitors.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BIURITESE @)

BEREE (TAKE) 495 R ZF
—tEFZBNBMAERRT > BEAT
BUFATES RAAEEEREZER
TER BERMEAREZEGRFTMNEE
B BARERNEGEIN UDEE
—HEgSTZITRAE  RERBHE
MBERABDMEEBTERERE S FK
BoBEENR—NANNEEERRE
BEMEIHEES L (RE) BBk
EREBEMAE RERKFARE
SHEMAE BBEAGHMAGRER
MBBREEE-

REBRSEE (TREE) 54 RZF
—NFEOA+tAMAETATEEE
YFATES EAA AT ELKAR
ZEE - RANGEEELREZE TR
ZEGIMB - RAELERLAEBRER
B PEIZE AT - R EEREM
WHESEARBIREER LM R
—NN\NFHEERBEREBHRE 15
RGN BBRREAPRES - REERN
— ANt FEEIF RS F AR ]
HRIBNFLHERMEBRIZEGBA-



The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a diversified investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 104 and the accompanying notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

To enhance transparency of the Company and facilitate the
shareholders of the Company and investors to make informed
investment decisions relating to the Company, the Board adopted a
dividend policy on 21 January 2019 (“Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether to
declare any dividend in the future and the amount of dividend to
be declared, the Company shall consider the Company’s financial
results, prospects and other factors, and subject to:

- the Company’s Bye-laws;

— the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Bermuda;

— any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company
is bound from time to time;

— the investment and operating requirements of the Company;
and

— any other factors that have a material impact on the Company.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EFTRE

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, payment
and amount of dividends will be subject to the Board’s discretion.
The Board has the right to review the Dividend Policy from time
to time as it deems fit according to the financial and business
development requirements of the Company.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable and other donation during
the year (2020: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital as at 31 December 2021 are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 108.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company did not have any distributable reserve available for
distribution to the shareholders as at 31 December 2021.

ISSUANCE OF BONDS

On 29 December 2017, the Company has issued bonds to an
independent third party for a principal amount of HK$300 million. The
bonds are interest-bearing at 8% per annum at issue and interest is
payable quarterly in arrears and matured on 28 December 2019. The
first instalment of interest was payable on 20 March 2018. According
to the subscription agreement, the bonds are non-callable until 29
December 2018. The purpose of the bonds is to satisfy the funding
needs of the money lending operation, the capital expenditures for
the development of nursery education business and the general
working capital of the Group. The proceeds of the bonds were
received on 2 January 2018.
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On 23 July 2018, the Group partially repaid the principal amount of
HK$20,000,000.

On 24 December 2019, the Group further partially repaid the
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 and the bondholder granted
an extension of the maturity date for the remaining outstanding
principal amount of HK$260,000,000 from 28 December 2019 to 28
December 2020.

On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the third
supplemental deed (the “Third Supplemental Deed”) with the
supplemental. Pursuant to the Third Supplemental Deed, the
bond’s interest rate has been raised from 8% per annum to 10%
per annum; the bond’s final maturity date has been extended to
28 June 2022 and to be redeemed by phases. According to the
Third Supplemental Deed, the Company should redeem a bond
with a principal of HK$10,000,000 on 28 December 2020 which
have been settled on 7 January 2021. On or before 28 June 2021,
together with the aggregate principal amount for the redemptions
made after 28 December 2020, the Company shall redeem not less
than principal of HK$20,000,000; On or before 28 December 2021,
together with the aggregate principal amount for the redemptions
made after 28 December 2020, the Company shall redeem not less
than HK$160,000,000. On or before 28 June 2022, the Company
shall redeem all remaining outstanding principal amount of the
bonds.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Yeung So Lai
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Hu Gin Ing

Mr. Chow Wai Leung William

Mr. Leung Man Man

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current directors are set out on page
16 to page 18 of this annual report.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
ROTATION

The appointment of each Director is subject to retirement by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance
with Bye-law 84 of the Company’s Bye-laws and Code Provision
A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. All of the independent non-
executive Directors are appointed for a specific term.

In accordance with Bye-law 84 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Lee
Chi Shing Caesar, and Ms. Hu Gin Ing shall retire from the Board by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible
for re-election.

Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar will offer himself for election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. However, Ms. Hu Gin Ing will
retire at the end of forthcoming annual general meeting and wiill
not offer herself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

None of the Directors has entered or has proposed to enter into any
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not expiring or determinable by the employing company within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS
Details of Director’'s emoluments on a named basis are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The executive Directors, Ms. Yeung So Lai and Mr. Lee Chi
Shing Caesar have waived part of their salaries of approximately
HK$6,600,000 and HK$5,400,000 respectively during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN THE SECURITIES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the ordinary shares and underlying ordinary shares
of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they have taken or are
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which
are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which are required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continueq)

Long Positions in the Shares of the Company

EFENET2EREMBEEBE
SFZm (#

RAERBRMBZER

Number of shares

R 8B

Percentage
of aggregate
interest to total

number of
Name of director Corporate Interest shares in issue*
LY £
HEHTRHBEH
ExtH ZE7
Ms. Yeung So Lai 1,152,731,9971 1,152,731,997 56.71%
BERER L
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar 1,152,731,997@ 1,152,731,997 56.71%
Notes: 5T
(1) This represents interest hold by Ms. Yeung So Lai through Super Fame Holdings (1) 3G RBEZ LB\ IFE AR E1,152,731,997
Limited (“Super Fame”) which holds 1,152,731,997 shares of the Company. Ms. KMz BLERERAR (Ba) FEZ
Yeung So Lai has 55% interest in Super Fame, and she is therefore deemed to Emo B RBY LA BL 255%Em » i
be interested in 1,152,731,997 shares of the Company. WRANRZAAT,152,731,997 RN FHER
HEad o
This represents interest held by Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar through Super Fame Q) 1EFEAMSLEB BRI A ARAE,152,731,997

which holds 1,152,731,997 shares of the Company. Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar
has 45% interest in Super Fame, and he is therefore deemed to be interested in
1,1562,731,997 shares of the Company.

The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2021 (i.e. 2,082,571,385 shares).

Other than as disclosed above, neither the Directors nor any of
their associates, had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements
headed “Related Party Transactions”, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of
the Directors is considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of those
persons (other than Directors whose interests disclosed above) in the
ordinary shares and underlying ordinary shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions

Capacity in which
shares were held

FAERMNSHD

REATREPZEEHED

A TEC—F+ZHR=+—H REE
HF R ERBIEIRALNTEBEFED
Bt 2EALT (FEEE#ER
REXEBEZES) REARBIEERK
MRS ERFEZERIXBWT

e

Percentage

of aggregate

interest to total

Number of number of
shares shares in issue*
Mt

HEEITRH
’Rin &R Y A= g

Super Fame! Beneficial owner 1,152,731,997 (L) 56.71%
By BEmEAA
Jade Treasure Global Limited Security interest 1,152,731,997 (L) 56.71%
(“Jade Treasure”)?
RERIKARAR (MB3E)) 2 NIRRT
L:  Long position L. @&
Notes: Mk :

1. Super Fame is owned as to 55% by Ms. Yeung So Lai and 45% by Mr. Lee
Chi Shing Caesar. As such, Ms. Yeung So Lai and Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar
were deemed to be interested in 1,152,731,997 shares of the Company held by
Super Fame.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Long Positions (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

2. Jade Treasure is wholly-owned by Wise Prismatic Limited (“Wise Prismatic”).
Wise Prismatic is wholly-owned by China Huarong Overseas Investment
Holdings Co., Limited (‘Huarong Overseas Investment”), which in turn is
wholly-owned by Huarong Overseas Chinese Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(“Huarong Overseas Chinese Asset Management”). Huarong Overseas Chinese
Asset Management is owned as to 91% by Huarong Zhiyan Investment &
Management Co. Ltd (“Huarong Zhiyan”) which in turn wholly-owned by China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“China Huarong”). Thus, each Wise
Prismatic, Huarong Overseas Investment, Huarong Overseas Chinese Asset
Management, Huarong Zhiyan and China Huarong is deemed to be interested in
1,152,731,997 Shares in which Jade Treasure has a security interest.

The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2021 (i.e. 2,032,571,385 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company
has not been notified of any other interests or short positions in the
ordinary shares and underlying ordinary shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors throughout the year and
up to the date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primarily in the form of
contributions to Hong Kong’s Mandatory Provident Fund and the
PRC statutory public welfare fund, respectively.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to requirements of the Listing Rules.
Other transactions which were exempted from the requirements of
the Listing Rules are also disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements as related party transactions.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review is set out on page 9 to page 15 under Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS
Sales to the largest customer and the five largest customers
accounted for 21.30% and 61.81%, respectively, of total revenues
for the year.

Purchases from the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 11.55% and 26.01%, respectively, of total purchases
for the year.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close
associates, or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s total issued shares)
has any interest in the customers or suppliers of the Company
disclosed above.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provides that directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they are or any of them shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices.
The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this report.

SHARE OPTION

On 6 June 2017, a resolution was passed in the 2017 annual general
meeting of the Company to adopt a new share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”).

The Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange has granted the listing
of, and permission to deal in the shares of the Company which may
fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which was
granted and/or may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
subsequently.

As at 31 December 2021, no share options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION (Continueq)

(A) Share Option Scheme
Purpose
To attract and retain the grantees and to promote the success
of the business of the Group.

Participants
Eligible participants include:

(@)

any director, employee, consultant or advisor, substantial
shareholder, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest
or a subsidiary of such company (the “Affiliate”)

a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant or advisor, substantial shareholder, distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner or
service provider to the Group or an Affiliate

Exercise price
Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher

of:

(@)

(©

the closing price of one (1) share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets at the offer date, which
must be a business day;

the average closing price of one (1) share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five (5)

business days immediately preceding the offer date; and

the nominal value of the share on the offer date,

provided that in case of fractional prices, the exercise price per
share shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cents.
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SHARE OPTION (Continued)

(A) Share Option Scheme (Continuea)

Total number of shares available for issue and the
percentage of the issued share capital that it represents
as at the date of this annual report

203,257,138 shares, being approximately 10% of the issued
shares of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.

Period within which the securities must be taken up
under the option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date
on which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of the
offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised
Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance
HK$1.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid
Not applicable.

Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will be valid and effective until 5 June 2027, after
which no further options will be granted, but the provisions
of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects. Options complying with the provisions of the Listing
Rules which are granted during the duration of the scheme
and remain unexercised immediately prior to 5 June 2027 shall
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of the
grant, notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.
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SHARE OPTION (Continueq)

(B) Movements of the Share Option Scheme
No share option has been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since the date of the adoption of the scheme.

AUDITOR

On 14 December 2021, BDO Limited who acted as auditor
of the Company for the period form 1 October 2009 to 31
December 2020, resigned and Confucius International CPA Limited
(“Confucius”) was appointed on 15 December 2021 as auditor of
the Company to fill the casual vacancy and hold office until the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by Confucius which will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Superactive Group Company Limited

Yeung So Lai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 April 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices to enhance corporate performance
and accountability. Continuous efforts are made to review and
enhance the Group’s procedures in light of changes in regulations
and developments in best practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted all the code provisions in the CG Code
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Throughout the year,
the Company complied with applicable code provisions of the CG
Code, save as disclosed below.

Under Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
at present have an officer with the title CEO. The daily operation
and management of the Company are monitored by the executive
Directors. The Board considers the present structure is more suitable
for the Company because it can promote the efficient formulation
and implementation of the Company’s strategies.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five Directors,
with two executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance had been
arranged for all the Directors and Officers of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERNS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on his/her appointment, so as to ensure
that he/she has an appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements. Directors are also regularly updated on the
Group’s business and accounting reporting standards in the board
meetings.

During the year, all Directors, have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by way of reading
materials or attending seminars, meetings, forums and/or training
course relevant to the Group’s business or to the directors’ duties
and responsibilities. The Company had received from each of
Directors a confirmation of his training.

During the year, the company secretary, who is the employee of
the Company, has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training requirement.

The Board has a balance of appropriate skills and experience to
meet the requirements of the businesses of the Group. All Directors
had separate and independent access to the advice and services of
the senior management, the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

During the year, the Board met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors representing more than one-third of the board
of directors, with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company had received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered them to be
independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established the nomination and corporate
governance committee (“NCG Committee”) and adopted formal,
considered and transparent procedures for the appointment and
succession planning of Directors. Appropriate candidates as properly
selected by the NCG Committee will be proposed to the Board for
approval.

The Board and the NCG Committee as a whole are responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating the
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
monitoring the appointment and succession planning of Directors
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. The Board reviews its structure, size and composition, as
appropriate, to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, one third of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation every year, and any
new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
such meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. Detailed information of the Directors standing for
re-election will be set out in the circular of the Company in relation
to the forthcoming annual general meeting to be despatched to the
shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERNS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
in the Board. In January 2019, the Board adopted a Board Diversity
Policy.

The Company believes that diversity of the Board can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors when deciding on
appointments of Directors, including but not limited to gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background, expertise,
skills and know-how and any other factors that the Board deems
appropriate from time to time. In implementing its perspectives on
Board diversity, the Company will also take into account factors
based on its business model and specific needs from time to time.

The composition, experience and balance of skills in the Board
are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of
members with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside
new Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring(s) fresh
perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The NCG
Committee has the primary responsibility for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and, in
carrying out such responsibility, will give adequate consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy. The NCG Committee believes that the
current composition of the Board is based on the history and actual
conditions of the Company and it reflects the achievement of full
consideration of factors of Board diversity.

The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its continued effectiveness.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board meets regularly, and the Board meetings are held at
least four times a year, and at other times as necessary. Where
appropriate, decisions are also taken by way of circulated
resolutions. The Board monitors and reviews, among others, the
performance of the Group companies, including operations, finance,
risk management, internal controls and strategic issues. The principal
functions of the Board are to:

e play a key role in the implementation and monitoring of internal
controls, financial reporting and risk management;

e assume responsibility for corporate governance and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations; and

e approve the Group’s strategies, directions and financial
objectives.

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board. The Board reserves for its decision all significant matters
of the Company and it has delegated the day-to-day management,
administration and operations of the Company to the executive
Directors and senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board for all material transactions entered into by senior
management and other executives.

The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

For all of the Board meetings, proper and reasonable notices,
adequate and appropriate information in the form of agenda, board
papers and minutes of the meetings are prepared and circulated to
all the Directors in a reasonable time.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
The attendance records of all the Directors for the Board and
Committee meetings for the year are set out below:

No. of meetings attended/No. of meetings held
HEEEHE/ FTERYE

38

Audit
and Risk NCG Remuneration General
Directors FullBoard  Committee = Committee = Committee meeting’
A Buk RAREE
2EE: ERZ8g EhR%ZEE HiZEE BRRAE
Executive Directors: HiTEE .
Ms. Yeung So Lai BREZL 44 NATER NATER NATER 1/1
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar FERRE 44  NATER NATER NATER 1/1
Inciependent Non-executive BUHRTEE .
Directors:
Ms. Hu Gin Ing MEmEL T 3/4 3/3 1A 1/1 1/1
Mr. Chow Wai Leung Willam  BERELAE 4/4 3/3 1/1 11 11
Mr. Leung Man Man 2EREE 3/4 3/3 1/1 11 11
Number of meetings held HE-Z--%& 4 3 1 1 1
during the year ended +ZBA=+—-Hit
31 December 2021 FERNBTZEEYE
Note: B 5E -

! 2021 annual general meeting held on 2 June 2021.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

TR —ERFBFAEN_T_—EA8
ZB#{7-



AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities as to the Company’s financial statements,
reporting, audit findings and reviewing the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company, as well as the Company’s
process for monitoring compliance with certain laws and regulations.

The members of the Audit and Risk Committee are as follows: Ms.
Hu Gin Ing (Chairman), Mr. Chow Wai Leung William and Mr. Leung
Man Man, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

Work done during the year

e reviewed the annual report and the interim report in accordance
with the accounting policies and practices, accounting
standards, Listing Rules and legal requirements;

e reviewed the appointment of auditors for audit and non-audit
related services and their fees;

e reviewed the audit plans and findings of auditors, risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters;

e discussed the audit approach and significant audit and
accounting issues with the auditors; and

The Audit and Risk Committee met twice a year with the external
auditors in the absence of the executive Directors during the year.

There was no disagreement between the Audit and Risk Committee
and the Directors in respect of matters about selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

During the year, the Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2020 and the interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERES

BEREAREZE S
V&ﬂﬁéﬁ%%%%%ﬁ%ﬁmm
AR ZHBRE ER LHER
%%ﬂﬁ*ﬂ&@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ.&&$
AREEBEETERRERRFZE
fEo

BEZKEBREZEEGHUT ALTHER 5
BELE (XFE) BRREERZBER
FE R ERBIUIFAITES-

F¢EFEEWI¢
BEGSBRAER G5t 2R L
TRASEZEER  BRFRKAT
HER S

s EREZEZBMMEHZBALIFZH
RRARS R HME ;

s ERRBAMNZHBFAIRER A
BREE ABEFMRYFREER

o R REBLD AREXREZ
RESHEER;, &

RAERE BREAREEGEN(TE
FHRE R T S BRI LM 21T
EESEE

BZMBEBREZEGNEHE ZRE R EXN
ERIEZHMNSEE L BEFTE
EE I o

REFER BRZAEABREZECEER
ARRBE_E_ZTF+"_H=+—H
LHEENEFXERBE_T _—FX
B=+HLIENERRFHIZEE-

SHTEEEABRAT | 2021 F£i

39



Lo

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERNS

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the Group’s
compensation policy and practices with a view that a meaningful
portion of management’s compensation should be contingent upon
financial performance of the Group to foster the creation of long term
shareholder value.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model described in code
provision B.1.2(c)()) of the CG Code.

The members of the Remuneration Committee are as follows: Ms.
Hu Gin Ing (Chairman), Mr. Chow Wai Leung William and Mr. Leung
Man Man, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

Work done during the year

e reviewed the remuneration policy for the Directors and
management with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

e reviewed and determined packages of the Directors and
management with reference to their duties and responsibilities
with the Company; and

e ensured no Director or any of his/her associate is involved in
deciding his/her remuneration.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the emoluments
of the members of the senior management of the Group by bands is

set out below:

Remuneration Bands

B <& 4R 5

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ F 1,000,000 7T

FMEE T

HMEE S AER ZFINBRKRED
MEFTRMER  HB B EEE
ZEERDEARER M HRIRH
i, LInsaalERRREEE

HMEEERAEEERTRIRTAE
XB.1.20))Frtt 2 B3 o

FMEZEEEHRUT ALTAMN  BIHEY
T &EH BRRAERRERSLE 2
WERBIUIIFNITES-

EAZISEF'EEEE’JIVE
BEEFENEEFHK E BRo&E
REEKREERENFMER

o REEEREEENAATMBES
KBS BRMEERENTE, Kk

s MRUBSEFNHEMMMBEALZ
BATRTE ELFrEN o

RIFEEEERTRISFRIMFSIEB.A 5%
rEBESREEENE ZMERAET
mE

Number of Individuals

AE
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NOMINATING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE (“NCG COMMITTEE")

The NCG Committee oversees the composition of the Board
to ensure that qualified individuals meeting the criteria of the
provisions of the Listing Rules serve as members of the Board and
its committees. The NCG Committee also has the responsibility to
develop, recommend to the Board and oversee the implementation
of corporate governance principles and policies relating to the
operation of the Board and its committees and the Company as a
whole.

Where vacancies on the Board exist or an additional Director is
considered necessary, the NCG Committee will identify suitable
candidates and propose the appointment of such candidates to
the Board for consideration and the NCG Committee will take into
account the qualification as required by the Listing Rules, ability,
working experience, leadership and professional ethics, etc. of the
candidates and approved if such appointment is considered suitable.

The members of the NCG Committee are as follows: Mr. Chow Wai
Leung William (Chairman), Ms. Hu Gin Ing and Mr. Leung Man Man,
all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

Work done during the year

e reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, and
is of the view that there is an appropriate and diverse mix of
skills and experience;

e assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and confirmed that all independent non-executive
Directors are considered independent;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERNS

NOMINATING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE (“NCG COMMITTEE”) (Continued)

Work done during the year (Continued)

e reviewed the profile and performance of Directors who will stand
for re-election at the annual general meeting and confirmed that
all those Directors are suitable to stand for re-election;

e developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

e reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

e reviewed the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
of the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The NCG Committee continued to monitor the Board composition
with regard to its diversity policy by reviewing its size, structure
and composition to ensure that the Board has a balance of ages,
talents, expertise, skills, experience, culture, knowledge and gender
appropriate to the requirements of the Company. The Company
believes diversity is important to enhance the Board’s effectiveness
by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain high
standards of corporate governance. The Company will continue
to monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and
achieving improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers
appropriate with regard to the specific needs of the Company and
the market from time to time.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct governing Directors’
securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following a
specific enquiry by the Company, that they had complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Group’s systems of risk management and internal control involve
the operation and/or supervision of the Board and the Audit and Risk
Committee. The main features and the key processes that have been
established in reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of such
systems are stated below.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s systems of
risk management and internal control. However, these systems
are designed to manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable
risk profile, rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the
business objectives of the Group. Accordingly, it can only provide
reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information and records
or financial losses or fraud.

The Board has overall responsibility in monitoring the process of
corporate reporting and control system throughout the Group. The
Audit and Risk Committee reviews and briefs the systems at least
annually.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group and
this process includes updating the systems of risk management and
internal control when there are changes to the business environment
or regulatory guidelines. The effectiveness and efficiency of risk
management and internal control systems are reviewed annually.

The Group has developed an internal control system, which covers
major financial, operational and compliance controls to safeguard its
assets against unauthorised use, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records and ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing
basis by the Board and Audit and Risk Committee annually. For
any identified internal control weaknesses or defects, the Group will
enhance control measures to rectify such control weaknesses or
defects.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continueq)

The key processes that have been established in reviewing the
adequacy and integrity of the systems of risk management and
internal control include the following:

e The Company has engaged an external professional internal
control consultant firm, Ammo Group Corporate Service
Limited, to provide internal audit services to the Group on an
annual basis.

The Group has already established the inside information policies.
They depict the decision trees to distinguish inside information and
the necessary actions. Employees are required to keep all inside
information in strict confidence. Once the inside information needs
disclosure, the manner must be equal, timely and effective.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company’s principal auditor is Confucius International
CPA Limited. The total remuneration paid/payable to Confucius
International CPA Limited in respect of audit services during the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,300,000.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
auditor of the Company acknowledges its reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 as
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 94 to 103.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensuring that the Group complies with
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations and that all shareholders and potential investors
have an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available
information issued by the Company. Information regularly provided to
the shareholders includes annual and interim reports, circulars and
announcements in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Company welcomes the attendance of shareholders at general
meetings to express their views. All the Directors are encouraged
to attend the general meetings to have personal communication
with shareholders. The external auditor is also required to be
present to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by
shareholders.

The Chairman of the Company, chairman of each of Audit and Risk
Committee, Remuneration Committee and NCG Committee, and
representatives of BDO Limited, the then external auditor of the
Company, attended the annual general meeting held on 2 June
2021. All these persons were available to answer questions at the
annual general meeting.

For both institutional and retail investors, the Company’s website
at www.superactive.com.hk, provide up-to-date information of
the Group. All key information such as announcements, annual
and interim reports and circulars can be downloaded from these
websites.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERNS

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(i)

(ii)

Procedures by which Shareholders can convene a
Special General Meeting (“SGM”)

The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the shareholders
of not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company upon which all calls or other sums then due have
been paid, forthwith proceed to convene a SGM.

The requisition must state the purpose of the meeting and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company with a copy to the Company’s head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room
1510, 15/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of
the original deposit.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
General Meetings (“GM”)

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a
resolution at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having, at the date of the requisition, a right to vote
at the GM, or who are no less than 100 shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

(ii) Procedures for putting forward proposals at

General Meetings (“GM?”) (Continued)

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed
by all of the shareholders concerned and be deposited at the
Company'’s head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Room 1510, 15/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks
before the GM in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution and not less than one week before the GM in case of
any other requisition.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned under applicable laws
and rules.

(ili) Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar. Shareholders and
the investment community may at any time make a request for
information on the Company to the extent that such information
is publicly available. Shareholders may also make enquiries
to the Board by writing to the Company Secretary at the
Company'’s head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Room 1510, 15/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IRIG-HHERELARS

INTRODUCTION - ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE POLICIES

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) summarises the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) initiatives, plans and performances of Superactive Group
Company Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group” or “we”), and demonstrates our commitment to sustainable
development.

The Group believes sustainability is a key to achieve continuous
success, therefore we have integrated this concept into our business
strategy. In order to pursue a successful and sustainable business
model, the Group recognises the importance of integrating ESG
aspects into our risk management system. We adhere to the ESG
management direction in accordance with the concept of sustainable
development, and are committed to progressing effectively and
responsibly against ESG affairs.

The ESG Governance Structure

The Group conducts a top-down management approach concerning
its ESG issues. The board of directors (the “Board”) oversees and
sets out ESG management approach and strategy for the Group,
as well asholds the responsibility for ensuring the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal controls. With a view
to having a systematic management of the ESG issues, the Group
has arranged designated personnel from various departments to
handle ESG management as a working group. The working group
is responsible for collecting relevant ESG data and compiling the
ESG report. It periodically reports to the Board, assists in the
assessing and identifying the Group’s ESG risk, and evaluates the
implementation and effectiveness of internal control system. The
working group also reviews the Group’s ESG performance through
key performance indicators (“KPI”) from various ESG aspects,
including environmental, labour practices, in order to review progress
made against ESG-related goals and targets. By conducting regular
materiality assessment, it assists the Board to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues. For further details, please refer
to the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment”.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FE-RE-HEREBKE

FRFE - HEREARSE (REHEK
EalE) BEAKEEERRRAT
(RAB ) EREWNBADRES TE
EEIHIEF) FRE HERER (B8
B-tEkER)) LNERZ SHEIRE
Mo MR HPIE R EE R ERIK

44

56 °

FERREIFELERDBERSENY
BYRASR > R IE TR AFI E i UL B & R A T
MEBBE - BBRAN KA FERNE
BRI AEERBERIRE LG RER
ESHMAHRBREEAKNEEZL -}
MRAAFELRESHNRE MR
ERANEEAI  KERFUREEEH
REBRIE - EREBEFH

RIE-HEREBNERRE
AEEMERE L EREBFHEKEN
BEMTHWEER - EFE ((£F8))
EEAREAEENRE -HERER
EEFEREE TaERARAERR
REERANEIEFRINER L - BB AR
HERRIE - HERELFTE FAEEHE
LHIREPIIEEASEMIIE/NE &
BERE - HERELHNEE -ZTFENE
BEWEERRIE - HEREQRE I
MREBRBE - HEAREARS EPRES
GRS B R HR A EEIRE
HERERRE W EABIERRG
B ARBERE - ZTF N EEE B
BEMER (FARENIER)) RIRER
HIENFZERE - HERERSTE
BEAEENRE - HEREBEN U
BEERE - AEREGHEBEERE
BRAEHRSNER BREEHETES
#IRTE G EFE G5 E Btk
REBERE HEREBEANEXR
FE-FRE—THB F2RAFNE
Z2H REBHBTEIEH-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING SCOPE

This ESG Report generally covers the Group’s business and
operational activities in Hong Kong and PRC. In particular, the
general disclosures and compliance matters of the ESG Report
cover the Group’s business activities driven by the provision of
regulated financial services and the manufacturing and sales of
consumer electronics, while the ESG KPI is gathered and included
under the Group’s business activities driven by the Hong Kong
office, which include the provision of regulated financial services, as
the Group has not yet established the data collection system for the
KPIs relating to environmental aspects for the manufacturing facility
for transformers. The Group will continue to access the major ESG
aspects of different businesses and extend the scope of disclosures
when and where applicable.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (‘HKEX”). During the preparation for this ESG
Report, the Group has applied the reporting principles stipulated in
the ESG Reporting Guide as follows:

e “Materiality” — The materiality assessment was conducted to
identify material issues, thereby adopting the confirmed material
issues as the focus for the preparation of the ESG Report. The
materiality of issues was reviewed and confirmed by the Board.
Please refer to the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement”
and “Materiality Assessment” for further details.

e “Quantitative” — Supplementary notes are added along with
quantitative data disclosed in the ESG Report to explain
any standards, methodologies, and source of conversion
factors used during the calculation of emissions and energy
consumption.
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e  “Consistency” — The preparation approach of this ESG Report
was substantially consistent with the previous year, and
explanations were provided regarding data with changes in the
scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies.

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance practices
has been set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 33
to 47 of this annual report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 (the “Reporting Period” or “2021").

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback in regards to our
businesses and ESG aspects. With the goal to strengthen the
sustainability approach and performance of the Group, we put effort
in maintaining close communication with our key stakeholders,
including but not limited to shareholders and investors, customers,
employees, suppliers and regulators. We take stakeholders’
expectations into consideration in formulating our businesses and
ESG strategies by utilising diversified engagement methods and
communication channels, which are shown as below.
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Stakeholders

A ]

Shareholders and
investors

REMKEE

Customers

=R

Employees

Suppliers

s

Regulators

BEEHE
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Expectations and concerns

HERE R

® Returns on investment
e Corporate strategy and governance
e Risk mitigation and management

o KEDMIK
o EHRKER
o R[REMKERE

e Robust operation management

e Full compliance with regulations

e Sustainability performance of operations
o REMNKEEIE

s THEEBTER

o KERHFFEILEER

e Compensation and benefits

e QOccupational health and safety (“OHS”)
e Career development opportunities

e Corporate culture and well being

o FrBN R AEF)

s MERREAELE (HERERZE))
o MEEEKT

o BEXIEKEF

e Long-term partnership

e FEthical business practices

e Supplier assessment criteria
o RHASIFERMH

o BEMERNR

o HERTHIRE

e Laws and regulations compliance

o ERFERER
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Communication channels
BERE

Annual general meeting

Financial reports, corporate websites
Announcements, notices of meetings,
circulars

RRBERE

MRS EEEL
NE-FRBABEX

Financial reports, corporate websites
Regular meetings and communication

MBS PG
ERE A

Leisure activities

In-house training programmes
Performance reviews and appraisals
Promote career development and
enhance competence at all levels
REES

B85 I 5T 2

BB A
RERFE R REASEREER

Procurement processes
Audits and assessments

REEME

B R

Review latest law & regulations
Inspections
BRRMIERRER
K=
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We aim to collaborate with our stakeholders to improve our ESG
performance and create greater value for the wider community on a
continuous basis.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

A materiality assessment in the form of surveys was conducted
during the Reporting Period, where relevant departments, business
units and stakeholders of the Group evaluated the materiality of
different ESG issues to the Group based on several criteria including,
but not limited to direct financial implications and level of impact
the activities have on the environment and society. By analysing
the assessment result, the Group assesses the importance of the
material ESG issues to our business and stakeholders. The following
matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues:

Materialty Matrix

High & EEHBER

Energy Management
ERER

Customer Service
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Anti-corruption
R&5

.

Privacy Protection
TIZIRE

Protection of Intellectual

Property (‘IP") Rights Product Quality

ol
R
g
Ho
R
¥ BRI i H#EERE EmBEE
& Brevention of Chid and % 1 Occup?c;nil tI-Iealth ERIRE mEE
% Forced Labour Climate Change e H@iﬁ% @aﬁj i 2 e
2 [ IEE T Kagls T > SRS FIEFEL Employment Practices
S A ERER
f‘g Green Purchasing Emissions Control [ ® Supply Chain
2} = —® o
c RS B Es) Management | ©
i3] , HERER
g Community Investment Waste Management Training and
£ HERE E2YEE Development
BillRER

Low 1

During the Reporting Period, the Group has established appropriate
and effective management policies and internal control systems for
ESG issues, and disclosed relevant management approach in the
ESG Report comply with the requirements of the ESG Reporting
Guide.
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CONTACT US

We welcome stakeholders to provide their opinions and suggestions.
You are welcome to provide valuable feedback on the ESG Report or
our sustainability performance by email at info@superactive.com.hk.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1. Emissions

The Group strives to protect the environment through
the implementation of control activities and monitoring
measures in our business activities and workplace. We
are committed to promoting a green environment by
introducing environmentally friendly business practices,
educating our employees to raise their awareness on
environmental protection and complying with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

In order to enhance our environmental governance practice
and mitigate the environmental impacts brought by the
Group’s operations, we have adopted and implemented
relevant environmental policies and have communicated
such policies to our employees. These policies apply the
waste management principles of “Reduce, Reuse, Recycle
and Replace” as well as emission mitigation principle, with
an objective of minimising adverse environmental impacts.
These policies also ensure the waste disposed or emission
generated is managed in an environmentally responsible
manner. Within our policy framework, we continually look
for different opportunities to pursue environmentally friendly
initiatives and enhance our environmental performance by
reducing energy and use of other resources.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with environmental
related laws and regulations in relation to exhaust gas
and greenhouse gas (‘GHG”) emissions, water and land
discharge, and the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste that would have a significant impact on
the Group. Such laws and regulations include but are not
limited to the Waste Disposal Ordinance, the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance, the Water Pollution Control Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the Environmental Protection Law of
the PRC and the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the
PRC.
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Emissions Control

GHG Emissions

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are
generated from petrol consumed by vehicles (Scope 1)
and purchased electricity (Scope 2). We have adopted
the following measures to reduce GHG emissions during
operation:

e Plan routes ahead of time to optimise fuel
consumption;

e Switch off the engine whenever the vehicle is idling;

e Conduct regular vehicle maintenance to ensure
optimal engine performance and fuel use; and

e  Electricity conservation measures are described in the
section headed “Energy Management” under aspect
A2.

To ensuring the effectiveness of the above carbon
reduction measures, the Group decided to set a target
of reducing the total GHG emissions intensity (tCO2e/
employee) by 2025 compared to the Reporting Period. The
Group’s GHG emissions performances were as follows:

B

BEREDEK
FEBRERBEFBHETER
RABEEEMRR AR (BE1)
KONEES (EE2) - IS EH
B > FX M9 B BREX LA T # s >
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Indicator! Unit Emissions

i B

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCO2e 28.21 2717
BEERAERBEIR (EEN) W' bkEE

Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO2e 16.43 19.53

SERERERERBETIN (FEE2)

ME — SAERE

il

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2)
BERBESKE EE1R2)

tCOze 44.63 46.70
MZHEREE

Total GHG emissions intensity?

BERER AT E

tCO2%e/employee 1.59 1.95
W —E{CikEE
==
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Note:

1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and are based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards”
issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” issued by the HKEX, and Hong Kong Electric Investments
Sustainability Report 2020.

2. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 28 (2020: 24)
full-time employees. The data is also used for calculating other
intensity data.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The principal source of emissions arising out of the Group’s
operation was fuel consumed by vehicles. In response
to the above source, the following emission reduction
measures are adopted:

e  Seek prior approval from the department head
for vehicle use so as to ensure a well-planned
transportation route to minimise unnecessary
transportation needs;

e Ensure all the Group’s vehicles function in the
optimum conditions by having regular maintenance;

e  Prioritise the local vendors for products and service
supplies selection in order to shorten the distance
transportation; and

e  Arrange regular examination for business vehicles on
exhaust gas emissions.
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The Group’s air emissions performances were as follows:

FEEREHFBERNT

Types of air emissions Unit Emissions
REBFMES B

Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) kg 7.76 7.48
K416 (NOx) /Ny

Sulphur Oxides (SOx) kg 0.16 0.15
mRE{E¥) (SOX) A

Particulate Matter (PM) kg 0.57 0.55
R (PM) AR

Sewage Discharge

The Group does not consume significant volume of water in
its daily operation due to its business nature is office-based,
therefore its business activities did not generate a material
portion of discharge into water. Since the sewage discharged by
the Group are discharged into the municipal sewage drainage
system to the regional water purification plant, water consumed
by the Group is considered as sewage discharged. The data
on water consumption and corresponding water conservation
measures are described in the section headed “Water
Management” under aspect A2.

Waste Management

Hazardous Wastes

Given its business nature, the headquarter office in Hong Kong
did not generate significant amount of hazardous wastes during
the Reporting Period. In order to ensure the compliance with
relevant national and local laws and minimise negative impact
on the environment due to the waste disposal, the Group
has implemented an effective waste management system by
adopting the 3R principles (Reduce, Recycle and Reuse) for
wastes generated from the offices and manufacturing facility.
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To reduce the waste at source, the Group reviews the materials
in-out records and analyses the amount of materials used
in production at a regular intervals in order to prevent the
unnecessary waste of materials. Moreover, the Group has
provided different recycling bins nearby the working area to
properly sort and collect the recyclable materials without mixing
with the non-recyclable materials, and reuse or recover the
useful materials in the manufacturing processes to facilitate
the workers in waste segregation and recycling. The remaining
recyclable materials were then sold to the designated waste
collectors for recycling. The Group keeps tracking on the
types and amount of non-hazardous waste generated in the
manufacturing facility and continue to seek opportunities to
minimise the waste generation.

The Group recognises various types of waste such as tin
residues, organic solvents and activated carbon are defined
as hazardous waste under the national laws will be generated
inevitably during the production process, and these hazardous
wastes must receive proper treatment before disposal so
as to prevent harmful impacts on our environment. All the
hazardous wastes are properly categorised, segregated
and stored in rigid containers that are resistant to chemicals
actions with drip tray in the designated storage area, in order
to avoid mixing with incompatible wastes and to prevent
chemical leakage, containers for hazard identifications and fire
safety are decorated with proper safety labelling and cautions
signage. The hazardous wastes are consigned to licensed
waste collectors for further treatment and disposal. In order
to minimise the amount of hazardous waste generated, the
chemicals and solvents will be recycled and reused in the
production process as much as possible.

IRt - HERERERS

ERBABTRDRE  AEREEH
HYRELERETEERDINE
ERMEHERHE UHLEFTHE
BMIRLURE o IESh > 275 B T AETT
BYDE KRB RERRIT{F&E
5B E R ERREIWAE UEE
3 3 1F B 53 48 0] [ YR ¥ 4 £ A B[]
Wt 5o W B BT [B] W # ek » 36 S
EBREPEEEEEAHEIRE
Bkl -ER N R R RIBER B E
TRREBRYWERLR AEFE
B NEREFTELENESEY
WEENBE TH#HERSHELL
BERVEYIRIES -

REBES RNEEBBEPRE
RMELETHENEEY) > WMiHE~
BAE RoE R RIEESOE R
REABEEY) EEZSHEEE
MBI BRBEERIE UMIEHIR
RERBE - FTEESEYRET
SEDE R WHRIE T BIFIER
KEGFEERARRERBMEC2/ER
HNEERB[BEF LBEZMAES
BEMREEMBIEIEER R R -ZE
AR LHMEBEZEZEENE
K& @Kﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁhﬂ%ﬁ%o
ZEREBEYMHHFEEYINER
FE—TPREBEREE - ARVESE
BEEEY E%L&¢ EEMW
MERICEB R AT -

SHTEEEABRAT | 2021 F£i

57



58

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
IRIR - HERERES

Non-hazardous Wastes

The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group are mainly
paper. With the aim of minimising the environmental impacts
from non-hazardous wastes generated from our business
operations, the Group upholds the 3R principles, and has
developed relevant waste reduction policies and guidelines. The
Group’s staff and the assigned administrative staff collectively
take the responsibilities for waste management in its offices,
and have conducted measures such as:

e Organise, maintain and clean the garbage and waste
recycling areas;

e  Sort recycled wastes into appropriate containers;

e Place appropriate signage on walls and bins, indicating the
types of wastes to be recycled; and

e Ensure that no garbage is to be placed on building’s
corridor and path.

At the same time, the Group has adopted the following
practices to reduce paper consumption at source:

e  Minimise the paper usage at our workplace by recycling

used papers regularly and use double-sided printing; and

e Recycle and reuse papers, carton boxes, envelopes and
folders which have been used, including all non-confidential
documents from the Group.
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To ensuring the effectiveness of the above waste reduction
measures, the Group decided to set a target of reducing the
total non-hazardous wastes intensity (tonnes/employee) by
2025 compared to the Reporting Period. The Group’s non-
hazardous wastes disposal performances were as follows:

IRt - HERERERS

AR MR ERE > &
EERTIUFEEEEEYETE
(ME,/ BE) I _S_HEBRE
HEAR TRNEZ  AEENE
EEEYRBEXNT

Non-hazardous waste category Unit Disposal
mEREEWER B

Paper tonnes 0.59 0.59
R U

Total non-hazardous wastes intensity tonnes/employee 0.02 0.02
BEBREMERE mE, B8

A2. Use of Resources
The Group is committed to optimising the use of resources
in our business operations. Therefore, we have taken
initiatives to introduce resource efficiency and eco-friendly
measures to the Group’s operations on a continuous basis.

The Group has established relevant policies and
procedures in governing the efficient use of resources,
including petrol, electricity and office consumables, in
accordance with the objectives of achieving higher energy
efficiency and reducing the unnecessary use of resources.

Energy Management

The Group aims to minimise the environmental impacts
resulted from our operations by identifying and adopting
appropriate measures. Energy policies, measures, and
practices have been developed to show our commitment
on energy efficiency. All employees are required to adopt
such measures and practices, including the purchase of
energy-efficient products, and assume responsibility for the
Group’s overall energy efficiency.
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The energy consumption of the Group was mainly
contributed by the electricity consumed in operation and
petrol consumed by vehicles. The Group has introduced
various measures and initiatives to achieve the goal of
energy saving and efficient consumption. Such measures
and initiatives include but not limited to:

Install energy-efficient Light-emitting Diode (“LED”)
lights;

Replace old models of machine with high
consumption of electricity;

Prioritise higher energy-efficient models when
purchasing new office appliance;

Encourage employees to turn off idling equipment,
computers and lightings when not in use or after
working hours;

Utilise natural lighting and natural ventilation in
workplace; and

Maintain the comfort room temperature at 25 degrees
Celsius.
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To ensuring the effectiveness of the above energy
conservation measures, the Group decided to set a target
of reducing the total energy consumption intensity (MWh/
employee) by 2025 compared to the Reporting Period.
The Group’s energy consumption performances were as

IRt - HERERERS

7% HE R £ #it 60 BE $5 I B9 A X
M REBIRESTILEREIR
HERE LR ES) 2=
T hFERBEHBBENTE
WER  AEBRAERHESE

follows: AR

Energy types Unit Consumption
AEREREY B (i

Direct energy consumption

HIEREIRHFE

e Petrol MWh 102.78 99.01
e AH JEFL B

Indirect energy consumption

& RE TR HFE

e FElectricity MWh 23.13 24.12
o B KRB

Total energy consumption MWh 125.91 123.13
RERHFERE JEEBF

Total energy consumption intensity MWh/employee 4.50 1€
WEERHFERE kEE EE
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A3.

Water Management

With an aim to promote efficient use of precious water
resource, the Group follows the “Water Management
Regulation” at its headquarters and manufacturing
facility. All departments are responsible to maintain good
conditions of the water supply facilities. Any leakage and
damage of the water supply facilities should be reported
to the maintenance team immediately for replacement
or repair to avoid water wastage. Water— saving posters
are placed in workplace, particularly in the Group’s
toilets, pantry and cleaning facilities so as to increase the
employees’ awareness on water conservation. During the
Reporting Period, the Group targets to promote water
conservation in our office by 2025.

During the Reporting Period, there was no water
consumption data maintained by the Hong Kong
headquarter office as the water charges are borne by the
landlord. In view of our operating locations, the Group does
not encounter any significant issue in sourcing water that is
fit for purpose.

Use of Packaging Material

Due to the business nature of the reported segment, we do
not consume significant amount of packaging materials for
product packaging.

The Environment and Natural Resources
Although the core business of the Group has remote
impact on the environment and natural resources, we
recognise the responsibility in minimising the negative
environmental impacts of our business operations in order
to achieve sustainable development for generating long-
term values to our stakeholders and the community as a
whole. We regularly assess the environmental risks of our
businesses, and adopt preventive measures as necessary
to reduce the risks and ensure the compliance of relevant
laws and regulations. For more detailed policies on the
efficient use of resources, please refer to the section
headed “Emissions Control” under Aspect A1. Emissions.
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Indoor Air Quality

Indoor air quality in our workplace is regularly monitored
and measured. We maintain indoor air quality by installing
air purification equipment in workplace and cleaning air-
conditioning systems regularly to filter pollutants and dust.
Green plants are also placed in offices to improve the
overall air quality.

Green Working Environment

During the Reporting Period, the Group implemented
the concept of green environmental protection in the
operation of office areas, focusing on improving the office
environment, which aims at reducing the emissions of
its own office operations and improving the efficiency of
the use of resources and energy. There is no significant
waste of natural resources in the Group’s business. It also
introduces energy-saving equipment in its office, such as
multi-functional photocopiers (with printing, scanning and
fax functions) that meet efficiency standards to promote
green office and reduce energy consumption. The Group
strives to consider the products’ life cycle and select the
raw materials, sub-assemblies and parts that are eco-
friendly, hazardous substance free or emitting smaller toxic
substances during installation, use or upon disposal for
manufacture.

Climate Change

The Group recognises the importance of the identification
and mitigation of significant climate-related issues,
therefore closely monitors the potential impact of climate
change on our business and operations. In accordance
with the reporting framework developed by the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, there are two
major categories of climate-related risks, physical and
transition risks. During the Reporting Period, climate-
related risks have been embedded into the Group’s risk
register of existing risk management system, and relevant
mitigation measures have also been formulated.

A4.
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Physical Risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather
events such as typhoons, storms, heavy rains, and
extreme cold or heat pose acute and chronic physical
risks to the Group’s business. The Group’s capacity and
productivity will be reduced under extreme weather events
as the safety of our employees is threatened and the
operational sites might be damaged, which lead to direct
negative impact on the Group’s revenue.

To minimise the potential risks and hazards, the Group
has established mitigation plans, including flexible working
arrangements and precautionary measures during bad or
extreme weather conditions such as typhoon, flood, and
black rainstorm. The Group will explore emergency plan
to further reduce the vulnerability of our installations and
production of factory in Shenzhen to extreme weather
events in order to enhance business stability.

Transition Risks

To achieve the global vision on carbon neutrality, the
Group expects evolution of the regulatory, technological
and market landscape due to climate change, including
the tightening of national policies and listing rules
and the emergence of environmentally related taxes.
Stricter environmental laws and regulations may expose
enterprises to higher risks of claims and lawsuits, which
might incur additional compliance costs and affect the
reputation of the Group.

In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the
reputation risks, the Group constantly monitors any
changes in laws or regulations and global trends on climate
change to avoid cost increments, non-compliance fines or
reputational risks due to delayed response. In addition, the
Group has taken comprehensive environmental protection
measures, including GHG reduction measures, and
has set targets to gradually reduce the Group’s energy
consumption and GHG emissions in the future, in order to
mitigate the impact of such risks.
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B. SOCIAL B. &

B1. Employment B1. €&

Human resources are the foundation in supporting
the development of the Group. The Group treasures
employee’s talent and recognises it as the most valuable
asset of the Group. The Group has formulated the Human
Resources Policy to fulfil its vision on people-oriented
management. The captioned policy is formally documented
in the Staff Handbook, covering employment practices,
equal opportunity, labour rights, training and development
and occupational health and safety. We review and update
the relevant policies regularly in accordance with the latest
laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with employment related laws
and regulations that would have a significant impact on
the Group. Such laws and regulations include but are not
limited to the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, the
Labour Law and the Labour Contract Law of the PRC.

Employment Practices

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group seeks to build an elite workforce by recruiting
outstanding employees. We adhere to the principles of
transparent and fairness to adopt a robust recruitment
process based on merit selection against the job criteria
applied. Recruitment of individuals are based on their
suitability for the positions and potential to fulfil the Group’s
current and future needs, regardless of their race, gender,
religion, physical disability, marital status, sexual orientation,
etc.
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The Group offers promotion and development
opportunities for outperforming employees through
an open and fair assessment system so as to explore
their capability, assist them on career development and
contribute to the Group’s sustainable growth. Staff
performance reviews are carried out regularly to assess
employees’ work performance based on the principle of
meritocracy, talents and competitiveness on an open and
fair basis.

Furthermore, the Group does not tolerate the dismissal
of employees under any unreasonable basis, and exit
interviews are required to be conducted with the resigned
staff to collect opinions for any possible improvements on
the Group’s policies.
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Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has established a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration system to employees.
Employees of the Group are remunerated according
to their performance and experience. Remuneration
packages include attractive wage, fixed working hours,
comprehensive insurance coverage (e.g., medical
insurance or “Five social insurance and one housing fund”),
overtime compensation and allowances, etc. The Group
reviews the remuneration packages annually to ensure
they are up-to-date and competitive enough to attract and
retain talents. The Group’s employees are entitled to other
additional holidays such as maternity leaves, paternity
leaves, marriage leaves and compassionate leaves apart
from annual leaves. For employees with outstanding
achievements and performance in various aspects and
work units, monetary incentives and promotions will be
provided.

Staff Well-being and Communication Channels

The Group places emphasis on its employees’ well-being
as it is crucial to the personal health and development of
the staff, improve the staff productivity and performance at
work, as well as enhancing the employees’ loyalty and the
engagement level to the Group ultimately. Thus, the Group
strives to encourage and promote work-life balance to our
employees The Group organised various activities such
as sport activities, sports fun day and festive celebrations
during the Reporting Period, aiming to inspire healthy
lifestyle, reduce stress levels from work and strengthen the
staff bonding.
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To further enhance the work satisfaction of the Group’s
employees, the Group has established various channels
to communicate with them. The employees are welcome
to make suggestions or complaints via various established
communication channels such as suggestion box,
letters, and direct report to supervisors or to the Human
Resources Department. Once complaints or grievances
are received, a designated team will handle and resolve
the problems promptly and the results will be distributed
to both complainants and the management. All the
information received from the employees is kept in
confidentiality. For the employees in the PRC, two-way
communication channel with the senior management
is provided through the Labour Union to express their
views on the existing management approaches and make
recommendations for improvement.

Diversity, Equal Opportunity and Anti-discrimination

The Group is committed to creating and maintaining an
inclusive and collaborative workplace culture in which all
can thrive. The Group was dedicated to provide equal
opportunities in all aspects of employment and maintaining
workplace that are free from any forms of discrimination
and harassment against any individual on the basis of race,
religion, colour, gender, physical or mental disability, and
age, place of origin, marital status, and sexual orientation.

The Group also has zero tolerance in any forms of sexual
harassment or abuse at workplace. Any employee who
is intimidated, humiliated, bullied or harassed (including
sexual harassment) may report to the employee’s
representative, or file complaints directly to the
management representative or the general manager, and
we will take serious approaches to resolve these issues
upon receiving the said complaints.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 28 full- REEI™ —feqr— B =g-—
time employees based in Hong Kong. The following table B - A"EBEEESHER28
shows employees’ gender diversity and age group of the 2eHEES - TRETLKE
Group: BENMRZ bR FER A
Al e
Total Employees by Gender Total Employees by Age
BERBI DR ESEH BERIDNESHREE

4%

46%
54%
Male £ ) Female Z 1% Under 30 years old () 30-50 years old @ Over 50 years old
30 AT 30-507% 505 k£
The employee turnover rate by gender and age group is as U RERANESNES
follows: TMREYT ©
Turnover rate (%)
MK E
2020
—E-mE
Gender 331l
Male Bt - 44%
Female pegis 33% 30%
Age Group FH4E R
Under 30 years old 0B AT 100%? -
30 to 50 years old 30ZE505% 11% 30%
Over 50 years old 508 LA _E 8% 73%
Note: M5
3. Due to the very small number of employees under 30 years old, the 3. HMHRIEUTHEEH=EBRD
turnover rate of that age group is very volatile and can reach high ZERBIHNREREFTDAIEE
value. T AE R S HE -
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B2. Health and Safety

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group prioritise safety at work to safeguard the well-
being of all its employees. In order to accomplish the
ultimate goal of zero-accident in the workplace, the safety
and health management system was implemented to
effectively control safety hazards and risks posed to the
employees and the premises, as well as fulfilling the legal
requirements in order to implement safety production and
operation in its manufacturing facility and headquarter
office thoroughly.

The Health and Safety Committee conducts safety risk
identification assessments at a regular time interval to
evaluate the risks levels and hazards exposure towards
workers in the workplace. Relevant safety procedures,
working instructions, machines and equipment
maintenance safety guidelines, in-house safety rules
and suitable personal protective equipment provision
have been implemented to avoid, minimise and mitigate
the safety risks in the workplace. To ensure that safety
control measures are effectively maintained, daily safety
inspections are conducted

Maintaining a safe working environment requires the
cooperative efforts among the Group and all employees.
The Group strives to raise the employees’ safety
awareness and equip the workers with knowledge on
working safely. A compulsory safety and health training
is offered by the Group to all new employees before they
commence work in manufacturing facility. Furthermore,
internal OHS training courses with specific topics are
provided to all workers in regular time intervals so that they
are aware of the significance of work safety.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with health and safety
related laws and regulations that would have a significant
impact on the Group. Such laws and regulations include
but are not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance of Hong Kong, Labour Law of the PRC and
Production Safety Law of the PRC. During the Reporting
Period, there has no lost days recorded due to work-
related injuries. The Group has achieved zero work-related
fatalities in the past three years, including the Reporting
Period.

Employee Health Management

The Group offers comprehensive health care coverage
for its employees, including medical benefits and dental
benefits. The Group has also continued to organise work-
life balancing activities for employees and carry out other
activities to promote healthy living practices. The Group
also conveys information relating to health and safety to its
employees so as to raise their awareness of occupational
health and safety. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
employees have attended an occupational health talk on
“Prevention of Heat Stroke at Work in a Hot Environment”.

Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) Prevention

In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group has complied with the public health and safety
measures from the Hong Kong government. The Group
has also promptly implemented new health and safety
measures in response to COVID-19, such as making
remote work arrangements and distributing adequate
surgical masks and hand sanitizer in the offices. All
personnel, whether employee or guests, entering the
Group’s premises is also required to have their temperature
recorded to prevent the potential spread of the virus. Clear
guidelines are also in place to respond to situations where
employees or their family members are found to have
contracted the virus.
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B3. Development and Training

The Group regards its staff as the most important
asset and resource. The Group recognises the valuable
contribution its talents made to the continuing success of
the Group. The Group is committed to inspiring its human
capital towards delivering excellence and strive to create
an intellectually-stimulating environment within which
employees do not only develop basic skills and knowledge
but also specific talent and ability.

In order to retain talents and maintain the Group’s
competitive edge in the industry. The Group seeks to
empower employees by providing suitable on-the-job
and external training programmes to further nurture their
professional knowledge and personal goals for continuous
career development. According to the Group’s Training
Management Procedure, the Group identifies the training
needs of staff members depending on their positions
and career levels, and tailor make an annual training
programme for staff skills and knowledge advancement,
following the Group’s Training Management Procedure.
The Group conducts regular reviews to evaluate the
effectiveness and suitability of training, aiming to
make adjustment or improvement for further training
opportunities where necessary.

The Group offers financial subsidiaries to eligible employees
and attends external training courses in order to pursue
their professional development.
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All new employees are offered to join an orientation training
programme, which covers the topics on the Group’s
business profile and organisation, employees’ welfares and
obligations, OHS knowledge, is offered to all new hirers
within three months upon their arrival. Besides, the Group
regularly provides regular internal on-the-job training with
assessment to all existing employees at different levels or
departments to suit the operation needs. To encourage
life-long learning, the Group offers financial subsidiaries to
eligible employees and attends external training courses in
order to pursue their professional development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has achieved a
total training hour of 143 hours. The table below shows the
employee training data by gender and employee category:
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Percentage Average
of employees training hours
trained (%) (hours)
ZIlEE T3
B9 (%) BEE (/\B)
Gender 45
Male B 86% 1
Female i 14% 10
Employee Category EE 55
Management BIEAB 71% 10
Administrative staff THAR 29% 2
Technical workers T A = -

During the Reporting Period, we have organised both
internal and external training courses for employees. Such
training courses cover topics including but not limited
to industrial updates, compliance matters, occupational
health and safety, etc.
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B4. Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited during the
recruitment process as defined by laws and regulations.
The Group strictly complies with local laws and prohibits
any child and forced labour employment. The Group’s
Human Resource and Administration Department is
responsible to monitor and ensure compliance with the
latest and relevant laws and regulations that prohibit child
labour and forced labour.

To combat against illegal employment of child labour,
underage workers and forced labour, personal data are
collected during the recruitment of process to assist the
selection of suitable candidates. The Human Resource
and Administration Department also ensures identity
documents are carefully checked. If the violation is
involved, it will be dealt with in the light of circumstances.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with any material non-
compliance with child and forced labour-related laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the
Group. Such laws and regulations include but are not
limited to the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and
the Labour Law of the PRC.
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Labour Rights

The Group has zero tolerance towards child labour and
forced labour in the workplace. By strictly following the
relevant local labour laws and ordinances, the Group
forbids employment of any persons who are under the age
of 16, and other unlawful form of labour. All employees
can exercise their freedom to decide their careers and
terminate their employment with proper notifications or pay
in lieu of notice. The Group also ensures its staff works
consensually, including overtime work and disapprove
any forced labour behaviour in the workplace, as well as
protecting their freedom and rights of association and
collective bargaining.

The Group clearly explains to all applicants about its stance
on child labour and force labour during the job interview to
prevent any recruitment of child labour and forced labour.
The identity, employment eligibility prove and academic
qualification of job candidates are examined and verified
thoroughly by its Human Resources Department before
the job is offered. In case any child or forced labour is
discovered, the Group will stop all the work of the identified
child or forced labour immediately and offer medical
checks and treatment where appropriate. Investigation
will be carried out subsequently to find out the root cause
of child or forced labour employment and revise the
employment management procedure whenever possible to
plug the loophole.

In addition, the Group requests its suppliers to maintain
the same labour standards when conducting business with
the Group and regular assessments will be carried out to
evaluate whether the suppliers meet the abovementioned
labour requirements. The Group will refuse to have
business partnerships with the suppliers who violate the
labour standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any
related legal case regarding to the use of child labour and
forced labour.
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B5. Supply Chain Management

In accordance with the Group’s supplier management
policy, new suppliers are required to fill in the pre— qualified
questionnaire to reveal their competency in the following
areas: 1) Production capability; 2) Management of quality
assurance, safety and environmental compliance; 3)
Partnerships; 4) Process on materials procurement; and
5) Practices on corporate social responsibility for our
assessment. Only those suppliers fulfiling all the above
requirements can be qualified as approved suppliers.

Regular performance assessments with all suppliers,
including on-site inspections, are implemented to monitor
and evaluate their continuous performances to ensure
suppliers’ performance meet required standards, when any
non-conformities are identified by the Group based on the
assessment findings, the Group will issue corresponding
areas-for-improvement reports to the suppliers and request
rectifications or taking corrective actions for improvement
under the grace period. Those suppliers who are
consecutively failed to fulfil the requirements will contribute
to the disqualification from the Group’s approved supplier
list.

With an aim to promote the values of social responsibility
and sustainability to the Group’s suppliers, the suppliers
must follow the Group’s Supplier Code of Business
Conduct and associated practices (e.g. labour practices,
legal compliance, anti-corruption and anti-bribery and
data protection etc.) in the business dealings. All suppliers
are required to complete a self- assessment survey of
Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR”) performance,
which will be evaluated by the Group’s procurement team
annually to identify environmental and social risks along
the supply chain. Employees and other individuals with an
interest with the suppliers will not be allowed to participate
in relevant procurement activities.
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Green Purchasing

The Group is committed to selecting the environmentally
friendly products with competitive prices and good
quallity, in order to safeguard end-users’ health and safety,
to prevent pollution and to efficiently use the natural
resources. The Group is dedicated to considering the
products’ life cycle and select the raw materials, sub-
assemblies and parts that are eco-friendly, hazardous
substance free or emitting smaller toxic substances
during installation, use or upon disposal for manufacture.
Vendors are required to provide proves (e.g. laboratory
testing reports and product specifications etc.) or evidence
showing the supplies are all in compliance with the national
regulations and international industrial standards such
as Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (“WEEE”),
Restriction of Hazardous Substances (“RoHS”) and
Registration Evaluation Authorisation and Restriction of
Chemicals (“REACH”).

The Group requires all departments to take into account
environmental considerations and search for the products
with high recycled content, with greater durability or with
greater water and energy efficiency when purchasing office
appliances, machines and equipment for daily operation,
in order to optimise the resource efficiency and minimise
pollutions and waste generation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had 189 suppliers,
all of them located in China and supporting the business in
segment of manufacturing electronics products.
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B6. Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing reliable products and
services by offering sustainable and responsible platforms
and services, as well as protecting the interests of clients.

Product Quality

The Group has established a set of comprehensive quality
control procedures to address the potential risks and
opportunities of product quality and safety issues along the
production chain, securing all products are aligning with the
highest quality standard.

The Group has also implemented various standardised
management procedures to carry out stringent quality
assurance inspections along the production cycle —
ranging from incoming materials checks, manufacturing
process inspections to final products examination based
on the latest national regulations and international industrial
standards. The effective in-house quality control system
and regular sampling checks allow the Group to identify the
quality problems immediately and take prompt corrections
and preventive actions in order to maintain the product
quality and prevent the severe defects of final products
during the manufacturing processes. The Group’s final
product quality assurance examination ascertained the
goods are free from defects and with proper safety labelling
and packing, and meet the required product specifications
before delivery.

The Group has arranged on-the-job training and external
training related to quality management to our workers to
build up their capability and ensure they understand our
requirements on quality assurance to resolve the quality
and technical problems in work. Thus, the effectiveness of
the quality control can be secured.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with any laws and regulations
concerning advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress that would have a significant impact on the Group.
Such laws and regulations include but are not limited to the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong and the
Product Quality Law of the PRC. Moreover, disclosure on
the number of products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons was not applicable due to the
Group’s business nature.

Customer Service

In order to enhance customer satisfaction, customer
feedback and opinion surveys can serve as a driver to
refine the products, services and management systems or
processes. Hence, the Group solicits customer feedback
through annual customer satisfaction survey which allow
the Group to understand their needs and expectations.
Based on the survey results and the comments or
suggestions offered by the respondents, a customer
satisfaction analysis report is prepared to further review
the strengths and weaknesses of the Group and identify
the room for improvement. Therefore, the Group can focus
on addressing customer needs and enhancing customer
satisfaction.

In event of communications or complaints received from
customers regarding to the product quality and schedule
of product delivery, the Marketing Department will promptly
follow up and attend to the concerned customers by
following our Customer Complaint Handing Procedure.
The Group will conduct investigations to confirm the nature
of the complaints subsequently. Relevant root-cause
analysis will be conducted for the confirmed cases by the
responsible department, where corrective actions will be
carried out to avoid the recurrence of the cases. The Group
is committed to replying to the complainants within three
working days as per the Group’s performance pledge.
During the Reporting Period, no products and services
related complaints were received.
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Privacy Protection

The Group will store all customers’ tangible and intangible
assets and information (e.g. sample raw materials, sub-
assemblies and mould etc.) in designated area with proper
labelling and kept in confidentiality. All the assets and
information can only be accessed and handled by the
Group’s authorised personnel for operational purposes
and staff members are forbidden to copy, transfer and
disclose any information, particularly intellectual property
and customers’ personal data, to any third parties without
prior consent from the customers.

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group consults legal advice from solicitors for
drafting patent licence agreements or service contracts to
prevent any infringement of intellectual property rights (i.e.
trademarks, patents and designs) as well as ensuring all
business activities are in compliance with all the national
laws and regulations such as the Patent Law of the PRC
and the Implementation Rules of Patent Law of the PRC).
There is no infringement on intellectual property rights
during the Reporting Period.

The Group strictly adheres to regulatory requirements
on data privacy through fulfilling high security and
confidentiality of personal data privacy protection. We are
committed to maintaining and protecting personal data,
and have established an internal policy to govern the
collection and handling of personal data.
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Investor Protection and Education

The Group has established procedures relating to the
services and products provided. We conduct the “Know
Your Clients” (“KYC”) procedures and assessment
processes to understand and evaluate clients’ financial
background, trading experience and risk tolerance level
prior to providing clients the type of financial services or
products that suit their needs.

The Group is committed to providing clear and balanced
information to clients. The Group has established a
classification system that classifies the capability and
intentions of investors. The Group categorises clients into
professional investors and retail investors based on the
standard of their financial knowledge. We will in particular
protect retail investors by conducting risk evaluations, and
classify and grade the investors based on the risk tolerance
evaluation results.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a corporate culture of high integrity
is the key to its continuing success, therefore we value
the importance of anti-corruption work and are committed
to building an incorruptness and transparent corporate
culture.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has strictly
complied with all applicable laws and regulations, as well
as guidance from various regulatory bodies, including
the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”). The
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
related laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering that would have a significant impact
on the Group. Such laws and regulations include but are
not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong
Kong, Criminal Law of the PRC, Anti-Money Laundering
Law of the PRC and the Company Law of the PRC.
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The Group strives to achieve a high standard of ethics
in our business operations and fraudulent acts such as
corruption, bribery, and collusion are strictly prohibited.
Employees should comply with the Code of Conduct in
performing business activities, and they should consult the
management if they suspect any professional misconduct.
The Group has also prohibited employees from offering or
asking for any forms of benefits such as gifts, coupons and
money for any advantages and favours in the business.
The Group has circulated the Code of Business Conduct
which has a dedicated section on anti-corruption, which
defines and restricts the code of conduct of our employees
in this regard. Employees should also declare any conflict
of interest under their job responsibility which may impair
the integrity of work. To further strengthen employees’
working ethics, anti-corruption trainings are ready to be
provided by the Group in order to identify proper actions
and prevent unnecessary misunderstanding. Directors
of the training program are also trained to ensure their
professionalism and the quality of the program contents.
During the Reporting Period, all directors have received
anti-corruption training by means of reading materials
circulated (“Guideline on Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Financing of Terrorism” published by SFC) and
have spent approximately 2 hours to study instead of
physical attending training classes due to restrictions under
the COVID-19.

The Group has established a whistle-blowing mechanism
for reporting any potential fraudulent cases and
management is responsible for the investigation and
resolution. To further mitigate business frauds, an Ethics
Committee is established to handle the cases in a timely
manner. Dedicated investigation team is nominated and
deal with the case to ensure the independence and the
reliability of the investigation results. The whistle-blower will
receive the result of the investigation within two months. If
discovered the personnel who was suspected of violating
any laws in corruption or participating in other unlawful
activities upon the internal investigation, the cases will be
further handed over to the relevant justice authorities for
relevant legal actions.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any breaches of relevant laws and regulations relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering and the
Group confirmed that no concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group and the
employees.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to emboldening and supporting
the public by means of social participation and contribution
as part of our strategic development. We strive to nurture
the corporate culture and practices of corporate citizen in
the daily work life. To fulfil its corporate social responsibility,
the Group focuses on inspiring its employees towards
social welfare concerns.

The Group will formulate the community investment policy
with strategies that linked with the local concerned issues
and leverage the Group’s business competency and
resources for supporting our communities. Apart from
these, the Group also aims to continue to enlarge the
employee participation in various voluntary and charitable
activities so as to exert our cares about the underprivileged
ones in the community, which will enable us to better
shoulder our corporate responsibilities and create benefits
to the society.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has donated
hygiene products, including masks, alcohol, disinfectants,
disinfectant spray and hand sanitizers, to Caritas — Hong
Kong, supporting their aspirations of the Last, the Least
and the Lost within the community. The Group strives
to join hands with Hong Kong people in hard times and
encourage all citizens to fight the virus together.
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX BRAMEXBMAERAE (RE
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG HERERKREIESI)ARBRSGI
LIMITED

Subject Areas, Description Section/Declaration
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

FEHR-BE-—K HE E i, B

B RARENIER

Aspect A1: Emissions

EBEA1 : B

General Disclosure Information on: Emissions

— AR 8 ERBRRRERBHR RKERLIMBES -BE KDY
REEEEYELN

(@) the policies; and

@ XKk

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

b) BTHETABERZEMNERMEN KRG

B o
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions  Emissions — Emissions Control
AR AR B ARA 1 data. B — e i)
BB R S AR RA B B ©
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Emissions — Emissions Control

R BREAR SIS 1RA1 .2 greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where  HERA4I—BERYIZ S|
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
BHiz (&EN1) REREBE EE2) REREIENE
UMEStE) & (NBR) BE (HD%EE%%T g
IHR T8 ©
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Subject Areas, Section/Declaration
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
FEGR--BE-—K it
B R B SR AA e 1R

Description

-V L

KPI A1.3
RIS 1RAL3

KPI A1.4
R IE1RAL.4

KPI A1.5
RIS 1RAL5

KPI A1.6
RASRAE IS IRA1.6

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and
intensity.

FREXBESREEYRE CIMEE) KBE-

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and
intensity.

FRELBEEEYEE QIR E) REE -

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

B FTE] LR BEN B B R R A EIZE BRI
EXBy 2 5% o

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HERIEEERBEREYMN G E LURHMPRET
U HRREE B R A EDZE BRI LR

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

[EHEA2 : EiRfEMH

General Disclosure
— ARG EE

KPI A2.1
R A A 15 1RA2.1

KPI A2.2
R SEAR R 1RA2.2

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BRERER (BIEETR KEEMEMED) B -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in
total and intensity.
RERAONEREKEEEREEREE-

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BIEKBREBE-

Emissions -
Waste Management

By —BEEYERE

(Not applicable — Explained)
(NBER—ERE)

Emissions —
Waste Management

Y- BERYERE

Emissions — Emissions Control

HER) — HE R E )

Emissions —
Waste Management

YRR ERE

Use of Resources
BIRER

Use of Resources —
Energy Management
EREA-ERERE

Use of Resources —
Water Management

BRERA-—KERERE

(Not applicable — Explained)
(NBER B8
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Subject Areas, Description
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

TESK E@m-—MR #Hd

1 B R SR AR S 1R
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
RS E IS IEA2.3 steps taken to achieve them.
WP UNEREAMmERRAEIZER
IRPRIREN Y 2 B% o
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
R AR IE1RA2.4 water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)

set and steps taken to achieve them.
a3 K BB AR 7K Bl B el R » LUK FrsT 1289
kM am B R R AEDZE BRI LR

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products

RESREMISIEA2.5 (in tonnes) and with reference to per unit produced.
S mTBEEEMENEE UEAE) k84 E
BhE-

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
[EEAS : IRIRRRAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact

— IR EE on the environment and natural resources.
BEBTAHBRRERRAEREMERTENE
Fo

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities

Bl B4R WS RRAS. 1 on the environment and natural resources and the

actions taken to manage them.
Bt XHEHHIRBERRABERNEARZERE
RERERTENITE -
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Section/Declaration

- L]

Use of Resources —
Energy Management

BERER-EREE

Use of Resources —
Water Management
BRER-—KERERE

Use of Resources —

Use of Packaging Material
BRERA-EEYEER
(Not applicable — Explained)
FrEA-BHEE

The Environment and Natural
Resources
RIBRRIARER

The Environment and Natural
Resources — Indoor Air
Quality, Green Working

Environment
RIBRAARBER-—Z=NER
BE HBTIERIE



Subject Areas, Description
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs
FEGR--BE-—K it

B R B SR AA e 1R

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BEA4 . RIEEME

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant

— I 2R climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer.
HAREHEL & J%‘E’giﬁff TAEERENE
ARIZERA B IERVEBER

KPI A4.1

B SR AE 5 1RA4

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BB EEHETAEERENEARRE
HERSERERNEESRAFENTH

Aspect B1: Employment

[BmEB1 : EfE

General Disclosure

—RRINEE

KPI B1.1
R R RIER

*B1.1

Information on:
ERF IR BREREA  TIERFE R F
LEE L  RIBEUREMFBEEMN !

(@) the policies; and

@ K&

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IRt - HERERERS

Section/Declaration

-V L

Climate Change
RIEZ1E

Climate Change — Physical
Risks, Transition Risks
SESC—EERME SR

A
2R

Employment

(2

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment

and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

(b) BEFHITAEEAYBEOEWEFIRES
BB

Total workforce by gender, employment type
(for example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.

R BEEE (B2 BERE) ~ FaAER &
@B SIS T

Employment — Diversity, Equal
Opportunity and Anti-
discrimination

BE-—ZThE -FTEHERR
5%
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IRIR - HERERES

Subject Areas, Section/Declaration
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

TESK E@m-—MR #Hd
B K RSB IE IR

Description

- L]

88

KPI B1.2
RN IE1RB1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

Bith) s FeER Rt e DN EERKLER

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

BEB2: @REARZE

General Disclosure
— AR EE

KPI B2.1
R AR 151221

KPI B2.2
R SRAR 5 1RB2.2

KPI B2.3
R AR 15 12B2.3

Information on:
FRARHEZE2TIERERREREESEHEMED

=1: 0

(@) the policies; and

@ BR; &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

b) BTHETABERZEMNERMEN KRG
ESEECRR

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred
in each of the past three years including the
reporting year.

BE=F BERSFE) SEFRITHMN AR
EE=Ro

Lost days due to work injury.

HAITBELXIIEE &

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored.

it FT R AN BV B 2R R R A 2 o FE i - AR AR 1
ThEBERFE
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Employment — Diversity, Equal
Opportunity and Anti-
discrimination

BE-—ZTb- FTERERR
I 48

Health and Safety —
Occupational Health and
Safety

REELZ - BERREAZR
ED

Health and Safety —
Occupational Health and
Safety

REEL - BERREZR
AN

x=

Health and Safety —
Occupational Health and
Safety

BEETE -HERRHAR
2

Health and Safety —
Occupational Health and
Safety

REELZ - BERREZR
AN

x=



Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
FEHR--BE - —K
B R B SR AA e 1R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Description

st

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : %R iE

General Disclosure
— R

KPI B3.1
fif] SR AR S 15 12 B3. 1

KPI B3.2
RASRAE W 518B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.
BRARAEBREIT T FR S AR & Kk & s A
2R o F I IEBNES) o

The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).

U REEER BUNSREERE HREERE)
g0z IMEEB DL

The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category.
BEERNREERRE D S2EETHRZIINTFE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EmB4 . $T#A|

General Disclosure
—RRIHEE

KPI B4.1
R SR 4 R F518B4.1

KPI B4.2
R S AR 15 1RB4.2

Information on:

BRI E T K55 ThY :

(@) the policies; and

(@ R &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

b) BT EITAEEA L EOERDAD R AR
R o

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
st BB AR B AR R B T R &R H %
To

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.
i 11 B IR E R B R B PR A BB U PR ERER B 2

IRt - HERERERS

Section/Declaration

-V L

Development and Training
ER K

Development and Training

B Rt al

Development and Training

R R

LLabour Standards
BT AR

Labour Standards — Prevention
of Child and Forced Labour
TR —BHIEE T Koahl

KK
5 1L

Labour Standards — Prevention
of Child and Forced Labour
TR PR IEE T KRl

5T
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IRIR - HERERES

Subject Areas, Description Section/Declaration
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs
FTEHEBE -Bm-—K Hl =1z
N E RRAREIEE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS5 : (HFEHEEIE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks ~ Supply Chain Management

—RRIMEE of the supply chain. HIEEEIE
EIEMEHEAIRIE R G REER -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain Management

A S 4R S5 1EB5.1 i@ 8 DRV EE RS - HERERE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging  Supply Chain Management

R R AR W IE1EB5.2 suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices  fHFEHE & IE
are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
HiM A RS AR E R RVIE 6 mEH AT ERIEGIR
HEEMHEE - URBRABHNRITRERF %

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify  Supply Chain Management
A B AR W FE1EB5.3 environmental and social risks along the supply fHFEHEEIE

chain, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

4t A A o8 Bl (PR i S B IR B AV IR IR Re 4t & /R B

BYIBG > U BRI T RER G %

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote  Supply Chain Management —
BRI IE1EB5.4 environmentally preferable products and services Green Purchasing
when selecting suppliers, and how they are {HFEESIE 4R @R
implemented and monitored.
WM REREEEELSARRERMIREN
1BH) U BRI T REER 5%
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Subject Areas, Section/Declaration
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
FEGR--BE-—K it
B R B SR AA e 1R

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

Description

-V L

EmEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

—ARINEE

KPI B6.1
e S A SN 15 1RB6. 1

KPI B6.2
R AR 151%B6.2

KPI B6.3
RS AR X5 12B6.3

KPI B6.4
R AR 1515864

Information on:
BRMEHERMRRENERRZEZ BES - 12H
KFAEREE MR GED

(@) the policies; and

@ KRR

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

b) WSFHITAEEALENIEEEREH)
By o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EENEEXERBYPRLLERRIERMA
BN =g

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

RERRERKRBHRFEMBUREE X

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
i 71 B A 5 T (R PR KL 58 EE RE R REL RO B B

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

B EREEEREMRBIWER

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Product Responsibility —
Product Quality

EmEt-EnBE

Product Responsibility —
Customer Services
ERET-EFP R

Product Responsibility —
Protection of Intellectual
Property Rights

EmBE—H#HEERE

Product Responsibility —
Product Quality
EnETt-EREE
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Subject Areas, Description
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

TESK E@m-—MR #Hd

% E K R R A ISR

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and

RE R E M I51EB6.5 privacy policies, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
HaH EE B RMRE R FARREER » U BB T A
B 5%

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
E@EB7 : RE5

General Disclosure Information on:

— AR B2 BRI 31 R EE R RN ¢
(@) the policies; and
@ X &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

b) BTFTHETABERZENERMEN KRG

B o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
RE R A& 5 1EBT A practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

RERHANETARNHEERLELEEGHNE
SRR RV B R AFEAER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and
RARENIEEBT .2 whistleblowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

L SR A BT R AIT R ER S
A o
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Section/Declaration

- L]

Product Responsibility —
Privacy Protection
EmBEE—-TRRE

Anti-corruption

o S—

RET

Anti-corruption
R&s

Anti-corruption
R&E5
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Subject Areas, Description Section/Declaration
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

FEHB -BE-—MR R =3y 1
1% B8 e FR B2 4 S3E 1R

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to  Anti-corruption
RAR AN IEEBT7.3 directors and staff. R&ES

HHmEERE TIRHENRESE-

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : HtERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand ~ Community Investment
— AR EE the needs of the communities where the issuer HE&EE

operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
BRAUMe2ERTREEMTILREEMRER
HEBTHEERHEAHNBR -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Community Investment
AR AW I51EB8.1 environmental concerns, labour needs, health, (&I&E&E

culture, sport).
ETIEREE WHEE - BRREE-FIEKR &
R X1E-1Ba) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the  Community Investment
RS A IE1EB8.2 focus area. HERE

HEETHISFABAER (I HERE)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TR S

SAN-C/IVA

RRERETENFBHAARSTS

Confucius International CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUPERACTIVE GROUP
COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Superactive Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (herein referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
104 to 212, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been prepared assuming that the
Group will continue as a going concern. We draw attention to note
1 to the consolidated financial statements which indicated that the
Group incurred a net loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$144,126,000 and as at the same date its cash
and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$5,686,000.
In addition, as at 31 December 2021, the principal amount and
the interest of bond payables of approximately HK$170,593,000
were not repaid in accordance with the terms of agreements.
Such default entitled the bondholder a right to demand immediate
repayment from the Group. Based on the cashflow forecast up to
31 March 2023, it indicates the existence of a material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. As explained in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, these consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Our opinion is not qualified in
respect of these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of licenses and goodwill
allocated to the cash generating units (“CGUs”)

(Refer to note 17 and the Group’s accounting policies set out in note
3 Goodwill, note 3 Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding
goodwill) and critical accounting estimates and judgements set out in
note 4)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had licenses and goodwill of
HK$12,363,000 which are allocated to the CGUs of money lending
business, regulated financial services business, electronics products
and property development and management segments for annual
impairment assessment.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BT

ERFBECENERTHE
FSEES

BEHMWEE T2 - —F+_B=+—
BEFENGEMBRERLDEBR B
EERFESCEMBE - HMIZHE
B BRERMF1 ERPRE B
ERES AN A ABLEIEFE
#9144,126,0008 0> MIREIH » HR &
KRIRLEEYH %5,686,0008 T e It
R ZE_—F+"/B=+—H'%
170,593,000/ 7T Y FE (T & 25 AR & BE K F)
Bl MIZBIBREREE -ZBNTA
FESTFEABRER BE£EIUAE
HoRIEEE_E_=F=H=+—H
NRERERA HETRGFEEATE
ERKX A BEEFELCEN
BENELAEARM MM BHREW
H1RTI ZEREM BRI IRFER
EREERM - BRMUEMILEFTBEEL
RERER-

MEEXEE
FRBZFEASRFNEZEAE AR
BERAPENGEYFREPREEN
FE-BAMANBZERGESPHHRERT
RELSFEBERMILERER MAE
MIEEFFRBEBEERER -

SEREREELEM (MREEESE
i) Z 2R KR8 2 mE T

B2 EWEITRMIFEIHE WIS
MEERE BERIN Rt EEE
BB R W4T HE ARG SHE S K&
gl

N_E_—F+_B=+—H>» B&%
B 2 h8 8 K i 2 %412,363,00078 7t » 43
EREER SHESHIRBESR B
TEREMERENEBENBEZREE
S EMEFE BTG
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Impairment assessment of licenses and goodwill
allocated to the cash generating units (“CGUs”)
(Continueq)

The Company’s directors have concluded that there was impairment
loss on licenses amounted to HK$1,329,000 and impairment loss
on goodwill amounted to HK$3,481,000 in current year (2020:
no impairment loss on licenses and impairment loss on goodwill
amounted to HK$8,271,000). This conclusion was based on the
impairment testing carried out by the management for these CGUs
as set out in note 17. The impairment assessment was prepared in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies which are set out
in detail in note 3 Goodwill and note 3 Impairment of non-financial
assets (excluding goodwill). The calculation of recoverable amount,
which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell,
involved significant judgement and assumptions with respect to the
determination of the pre-tax discount rates and the estimation of the
underlying future cash flows.

We identified the impairment assessment of licenses and goodwiill of
the relevant CGUs as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and because the impairment
testing involved significant management judgement and estimates as
explained above.

Our response
Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment above included:

—  Evaluating the models used by management in the value in use
calculations and where applicable, fair value less costs to sell,

for impairment assessment;

— Assessing the reasonableness of discount rates and growth
rates applied to the impairment assessment;

— Challenging the reasonableness of other key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and industry;

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budget and considering the reasonableness of the budget;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response (Continued)
—  Checking the value in use calculations and where applicable, fair
value less costs to sell, mathematically;

—  Considering the overall adequacy of the disclosures in respect
of impairment assessment included in the consolidated financial
statements.

Assessment of net realisable value of properties held
for sale

(Refer to note 18 and the Group’s accounting policies set out in
note 3 Properties held for sale and critical accounting estimates and
judgements set out in note 4)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had properties held for sale of
HK$602,664,000 which in total accounted for approximately 48% of
the Group’s total assets. The carrying amounts of properties held for
sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The Group engaged an independent external valuer to perform a
valuation of properties held for sale as at 31 December 2021 to
assess if the net realisable values of these assets were higher than
their carrying amounts.

The Group has concluded that there was no impairment loss
on properties held for sale. This conclusion was based on the
impairment testing carried out by valuer as set out in note 4.
The impairment assessment was prepared in accordance with
considerable analysis of current market price of properties of a
comparable standard and location and a forecast of future sales
based on zero growth rate of property price. The calculation of
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell, involved significant judgement and assumptions
with respect to the determination of the pre-tax discount rates and
the estimation of the underlying future cash flows.

We identified the impairment assessment of properties held for sale
as a key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and because the impairment testing involved
significant management judgement and estimates as explained
above.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BT

MEEXSE @)

F IR EIE
- BERERBERAAERHBEERE
(HEA) B8 ;

- ERGREUBHRERFAES ZHEST
ERBENERTEE

FELEMERZAIERFEN G

B2 EM 18R MR EHEYEFR
HAEBEZ T BERAME4AFHER
EERCEEsEl- )

RZE_—F+-HB=+—H>KX&E
R FEHEY$602,664,000870 &
M AEBBEEENIS% - FIEHEY
F W AR E B DAL 4 B m] 3R B E R 5
ARo

AEBZRBIUIINBEEME —T——
FHA=+—HFFHEYEET
mE U EZSEENERFER
AERHREE

AEERD FIFHEYEL ERERB
e lbiEmZ RN sT4Pn S L EMETT
ZRERE - BEFETIRERLLIRE
R EER T IHEROARED T
Uk BRYEBRIBERRIORKFE
TRRIMARS - sTE TR EIE 38 (BIEAE
BERARERBEREZRSE) PR
B E R AL IR R R A5 AR R R IR
MBI E R E KRR

HPIRFEL EY R 2 B E TR &
FRELFER RASEHGESMBER
KM BEX WKEERNES REE
JE 490 _E PRI B A S AR H R Ko (5t o

SHTEEEABRAT | 2021 F£i

97



98

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
VR L

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response
Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment above included:

—  We assessed the competence, capability and objectivity of the
independent external valuer used by management;

— Assessed the appropriateness of the valuation methods
adopted with reference to market practice.

— Assessing the reasonableness of current market price by
comparing the management’s estimated selling price to the
recent average contracted selling price in prevailing market price
of comparable properties with similar type, size and location;
and;

— Challenging the reasonableness of other key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and industry;

Based on the audit procedures performed, we consider that
management’s judgements applied in impairment assessment
of properties held for sale were supported by the evidence we
obtained.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and loan
receivables

(Refer to note 20 and note 22 and the Group’s accounting policy
set out in note 3 Financial Instruments — Impairment loss on financial
assets and critical accounting estimates and judgements set out in
note 4)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade receivables
amounting to HK$54,290,000 and loan receivables amounting
to HK$274,870,000. The Group assessed impairment for these
receivables based on expected credit losses model. Loss allowance
for expected credit losses amounting to HK$11,530,000 and
HK$162,406,000 respectively has been made for the trade
receivables and loan receivables as at 31 December 2021.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and loan
receivables (Continued)

Assessing expected credit losses on trade receivables and
loan receivables is a subjective area as it requires application
of judgement and uses of estimates. Judgement is applied in
assessing whether the credit risk of the loan receivables has
increased significantly since initial recognition and whether the trade
receivables and loan receivables are credit-impaired. In this regard,
management considers factors including those relevant forward-
looking information and how it impacts the historical data. These
require significant judgement by the management.

We have identified impairment assessment of trade receivables and
loan receivables as a key audit matter due to considerable amount of
judgement and estimation being required in conducting impairment
assessment as mentioned in the foregoing paragraph.

Our response

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
expected credit losses on trade receivables and loan receivables
included:

— Obtaining an understanding on the key controls over credit
risk assessment and how management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables and loan receivables;

—  Assessing the appropriateness of the loss allowance calculation
methodology used by the management;

— Testing the integrity of information used by management in
assessing the credit risk of individual customers, on a sample
basis, by comparing historical default rates to the actual losses
recorded during the current financial year;

—  Evaluating management’s assessment of the historical
credit loss rates by sample checking inputs in respect of
the assumptions made, such as historical payment records,
correspondence on any disputes or claims with the customers
and subsequent settlement records; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response (Continued)

— Assessing the factors considered by the management for
determining whether the credit risk of the loan receivables has
increased significantly since initial recognition and whether the
trade receivables and loan receivables are credit-impaired which
include:

e  Challenging management’s consideration of other factors
including changes in repayment pattern of borrowers and
changes in value of collateral since initial recognition (if
applicable);

e  Assessing how reasonably management has incorporated
in their assessment of the forward-looking information
including expected changes in economic and financial
conditions which is expected to cause a significant change
in the customers’ ability to meet their debt obligations; and

e  Checking subsequent settlement of the year end trade
receivables and loan receivables on a sample basis.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit and Risk Committee assists
the directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continuea)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Confucius International CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ho Yuen, Gary

Practising Certificate Number: P01316

Hong Kong, 25 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

e ifm®

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—Z-—S+-A=1+—HLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—% “ECTH
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FAT TAT
Revenue & 5 132,217 101,129
Cost of sales H & B A (83,215) (58,862)
Gross profit EF] 49,002 42 267
Other net gains Hhim3Ea 6 10,136 9,619
Selling and distribution costs HE RO H A (1,406) (1,743)
Administrative costs TR (56,490) (52,884)
Finance costs WA 7 (24,643) (28,726)
Impairment of assets EERME 8 (8,225) (9,629)
Net impairment loss on financial assets & RAE &R EE 18758 8 (85,203) (63,525)
Share of results of an associate LI E A B 2 2R 14 (5,513) 60
Loss before tax PRI A ES 18 8 (122,342) (104,561)
Income tax expense g 10 (21,345) (1,588)
Loss for the year FAEIE (143,687) (106,149)

Loss for the year attributable to: (L EFE ARSI :
Owners of the Company FN/NEIEZ TN (144,126) (108,257)
Non-controlling interests JEVERR = 439 2,108
(143,687) (106,149)

Loss per share BiESE

Basic and diluted (HK cents) HEARREE GBI 12 (7.09) (5.33)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e R ER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-—S+-A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
—E-—&F TECTH
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FAT TAT
Loss for the year FAEIE (143,687) (106,149)
Other comprehensive income Hth2mss
Items that may be reclassified HEDEGEN 7HEE
subsequently to profit or loss: EBm B
Exchange differences arising from the ~ HABEINEFREE Y
translation of foreign operations PE 7 Z=RE 12,257 27,445
Reclassification adjustments of reserves HEMIEB AT B EHE
upon disposal of subsidiaries B DR 33 - 1,779
Other comprehensive income FAHMEEURE
for the year, net of tax N IE 12,257 29,224
Total comprehensive income FRNEEWREREE
for the year (131,430) (76,925)
Total comprehensive income FEEEAEmUREAREE -
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KABHEB A (131,637) (77,866)
Non-controlling interests JEVERR Em 207 941
(131,430) (76,925)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBI RE

As at 31 December 2021
K== FT=A=+=H

2021 2020
—F=— “EI2HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E F&T FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- -BERKE 13 299,483 317,019
Interest in an associate R—REBE B 2 #m 14 146,313 153,580
Financial assets at fair value through BARBRERYIEZ
profit or loss SRHEE 15 8,720 7,020
Intangible assets wmILEE 16 12,363 17,087
466,879 494,706
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories =8 18 8,765 5,601
Properties held for sale BHIEREYZE 19 602,664 540,391
Trade and bills receivables BB ZEEAREWEE 20 44,395 32,437
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE N EE M
other receivables HhpE W z1a 21 12,379 55,813
Amount due from non-controlling FEU SEEERS e 2 =R IE
interests 26 295 -
Loan receivables EWER 22 112,464 218,508
Restricted bank deposits ZRFIRITER 23 1,890 1,890
Cash and bank balances IREMIRITAE BR 5,686 11,598
788,538 866,238
CURRENT LIABILITIES mREAE
Trade and other payables FE B SR
HAERIE 24 205,735 164,487
Rental received in advance FAWE & 2,395 17,124
Contract liabilities aHaE 25 3,200 3,672
Amount due to an associate e — R B & A B FIE 14 68,031 66,698
Amount due to a shareholder FEN— SR ERIB 26 16,723 33,646
Amounts due to ANEZ 2 S ]
non-controlling interests 26 - 2,530
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEME™R 27 267,529 198,562
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 52 272
Tax payable eI IRIE 32,116 13,280
595,781 500,271
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENE EFE 192,757 365,967
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HMEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 659,636 860,673
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SaMEHIRRE

As at 31 December 2021
WZE-_—F+-HA=+—H

2021 2020
—E_—F TECRF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt =% FHET FEBT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERENEE
Interest-bearing borrowings ERSYER 27 231,055 300,390
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 135 188
Deferred tax liabilities RITRIEEaE 29 1,296 1,515
232,486 302,093
NET ASSETS EEFE 427,150 558,580
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B2 R fA
Share capital [N 30 203,257 203,257
Reserves L 31 212,707 344,344
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ERBHEEANELES
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 415,964 547,601
Non-controlling interests JEVERR Em 32 11,186 10,979
TOTAL EQUITY R 4EEE 427,150 558,580
The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to 212 were HNFE104E212BNESHBRERERN

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the
Company (“Directors”) on 25 April 2022 and are signed on its behalf
by:

YEUNG SO LAI

VBRE FEMK
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF

=
— S ———

FOMA-+hHAKERTES
(&%) SHAETRETIE  BRUT

AETAREE

LEE CHI SHING CAESAR

S EEEMARAT | 2021 £k

107



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—Z-—S+-A=1+—HLEFE

Capital Non-

Share Share Other  redemption Capital  Translation (Accumulated controlling

capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses)* interests

ke RifEE  HtREE Erif  BRRE  (BReRr JFERER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tin TEn TEn TAn TEn Tan TAn TEn
At 1 January 2021 RZ%Z-5-F-A 203,257 476,989 40 1,442 19,870 29,191 (183,188) 547,601 10979 558,580
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (144,126) (144,126) 439 (143,687)

Other comprehensive income: ~ E2E M :
Exchange diferences arising o~ AEEINERESZ
the translation of foreign operations  ERZE - - - - - 12,489 - 12,489 (282) 12,251

Total comprehensive income ~ FAZERZHE
for the year - - - - - 12,489 (144,126) (131,637) 201 (131,430)

At 31 December 2021 RZE--&
+ZRA=+-H 203,257 476,989 40 1,442 19,870 41,680 (327,314 415,964 11,186 427,150

*

The total reserves at 31 December 2021 is HK$212,707,000 (2020: * RIB-_—F+_B=+—B2HBERtA
HK$344,344,000). 212,707,00078 70 (Z T Z T4 | 344,344,000
BIT) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SFEENEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

Capital Non-
Share Share Other redemption Capital Tranglation  (Accumulated controling Total
capital premium* resenve’ reserve” reserve’ reserve’ losses)" Total interests equity
ELS
ok RiaE  HhEs  BEEE EnfiE  REEE  (BHER) o FERER [ atd
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TiEn TiEn Thn Thn TiEn ThEn Thn T#En THEn ThEL
At1 January 2020 RZEZEF-A-H 203,257 476,989 40 1,442 19,870 (1,200) (74,931) 625,467 (8.503) 616,964
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (108257) (108.257) 2,108 (106,149)
Other comprehensive income: ~ Ef 2E M :
Exchange diferences arising o~ EEINERESZ
the translation of foreign operations  ERZE = - - - - 28612 - 2,612 (1,167) 27,445
Reclassfication adjustments HERBATREREZ
of reserves upon disposal of ENNESRE (%)
subsidiaries (note 33) - - - - - 1,779 - 1,779 - 1,779
Total comprehensive income ~ FAZANZLE
for the year - - - - - 30,391 (108,257) (77,866) 941 (76,925)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - - - - - - - - 18,541 18,541
At 31 December 2020 g
+ZBA=+-H 203,257 476,989 | 1442 19,870 2,191 (183,188) 547,601 10979 558,580
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EERSNER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—Z-—S+-A=1+—HLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—% “ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Cash flows from operating activities: K& EFEBELEZHERE
Loss before tax BRI2 A SR (122,342) (104,561)
Adjustment for: TEIER 2%
Interest income FMEUA (15) (%)
Interest on bank borrowings and RITER MBS U EHAM
overdrafts and other borrowings Erwailis, 24,634 27,033
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBEZHE 9 1,693
Share of results of an associate R E N B 2 %4E& 5,513 (60)
Impairment of assets BERE 8,225 9,629
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets BARBERERYIEZ
at fair value through profit or loss ETMBEMNANE
(W) /518 (1,700) 15,604
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BERZEZINE
equipment 22,607 22,129
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 33)  HEM B AT 2 UE
(M45E33) - (18,827)
Net impairment loss on financial assets ETHMBERERIETE 85,203 63,525
Impairment loss on inventories EFEZRERIE - 432
Exchange differences bE R ERE 5 15
Operating cash flows before EEESEERIZRERE
movements in working capital mE 22,139 21,607
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =5 Ggm R (3,011) 4,340
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables FEWE RV, (800 27,512 (27,375)
Increase in trade and other receivables FEUL B 7 BR R ELfth FE UK
FRIFIE N (17,792 (26,995)
Increase in trade and other payables FET B SRR H A E(S
FRIEIE AN 24,561 2,234
(Decrease)/increase in rental received EW S OFzl) /1
in advance (15,197) 8,869
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities aHaE gl /1Em (572) 620
Net cash generated from/(used in) ¥REECELE @A) 2
operations REFE 37,640 (16,700)
Income tax paid BPER (3,079) (2,568)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFHEELE @A) Z
operating activities IREFEE 34,561 (19,268)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SFARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—&F TECTH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT TAT
Cash flows from investing activities: RETHEEZRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE#)% B &% (4,601) (4,378)
Interest received BUWH & 15 5
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries 1 & i@ AT 2 IRE 7
(note 33) P8 (F5E33) = (293)
Decrease in restricted bank deposits ZREIRITEROR D - 450
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets & 2 & EFTS IS - 600
Net cash used in investing activities RETHERZIRERRE (4,586) (3,616)
Cash flows from financing activities: @FEEFBELZHESHE !
Proceeds from interest-bearing s EEMEAERIE
borrowings 18,000 1,073
Repayments of interest-bearing BRI EEMN
borrowings (18,397) (4,692)
Interest paid on interest-bearing FERERZENHE
borrowings (15,025) (16,758)
Repayments of principal portion of BEHEaBZAEEY
lease liabilities (276) 671)
Payments of interest portion of TRNHEEEEZHEED
lease liabilities 9) (1,693)
(Repayment to)/advance from a shareholder —& B3 2~ B /= (16,923) 32,517
Repayment to non-controlling interests JEERR IR IB (2,894) 676)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RLEEE @A) BEEZ
financing activities REFEE (35,524) 9,100
Net decrease in cash and RERREEEYR L EEE
cash equivalents (5,549) (13,784)
Effect of foreign exchange rates SNEERE (363) (706)
Cash and cash equivalents FH2RBERIREEEY
at the beginning of the year 11,598 26,088
Cash and cash equivalents FRZRERIAEEEY
at the end of the year 5,686 11,598
Analysis of balances of cash and RERREEEBYERIN
cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances BB MIRITAE BR 5,686 11,598

SHTEEEABRAT | 2021 F£i
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The principal place of its business is Room 1510,
15/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
In the opinion of the Directors, at 31 December 2021, Super
Fame Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, is the immediate holding company and Ms.
Yeung So Lai and Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar are the ultimate
controlling parties of the Company.

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). Each entity in the
Group maintains its books and records in its own functional
currency.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collectively include all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements also include applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value. The
measurement bases are fully described in accounting policies
set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&7 5 B35 55 R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continuea)

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a net loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$144,126,000 and as at
the same date its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$5,686,000. In addition, as at 31 December
2021, the principal amount and the interest of bond payables of
approximately HK$170,593,000 were not repaid in accordance
with the terms of agreements. Such default entitled the
bondholder a right to demand immediate repayment from the
Group.

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
that might cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore the Group may be
unable to realise the Group’s asset and discharge the Group’s
liabilities in the normal course of business.

The directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future, after taking
into consideration of the followings:

()  The Group will continue to negotiate with the Group's
bondholder with a view to extend the repayment terms of
the Group’s bond payables as they fall due;

(i)  For the amount due to a shareholder of HK$16,723,000 at
31 December 2021, the shareholder has undertaken that
will not demand for repayment after maturity until all other
liabilities of the Group have been satisfied;

(i)  The Group will also seek additional financing including but
not limited to borrow loans, issuing additional equity or
debt securities; and

(iv) The directors of the Company will continue to implement
measures aiming at improving the working capital and cash
flows of the Group, including close monitoring of general
administrative expenses and operating costs.

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

—REN &

REBELEARNEIBEEAEGLE
18 3 REL144,126,0005 75> ML
BH HEREABREEEBYWOS
5,686,000/ co lboh R ZE = —
F+ZH=+—H"#170,593,000
BITHENES AR RERF) B
RipEBRRERE ZENTAMEE
SRBABREREAEBILNE

=+
o

ZEBRBATEEERTRER
RPN AEREBKCENE
NEEERER  HILAEEP]E
BERNESEHFBARTERAEER
BENBELAEEER

KEBUTEER  AABEEE
W AEERAETRYHFERUE
THEHRA R RE BN FEE

) TEEFEERAEENES
BAENETER LUERTE
EZ RN ESFNEZEHR ;

i HR-_T_-—F+-A=+—
H AY & {1 B BR 7 IE 116,723,000
B ZRRBAENIE®E
FTEEREE BEEXEEDN
FREHMEBREBERL;

(iy AEBETRSKEIIRE
BEASEREBEAER E1THR
SNRABEFE ST K

vy ZABERREBFERS TN
ErEEEEESTRFATMNE
i BEBER—RT
BRI S K= B A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed
review of the cash flow forecast of the Group for the next twelve
months from the reporting date taking into account the impact
of above measures, the directors of the Company believe that
the Group will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirements as and when
they fall due in the next twelve months from the reporting date
and, accordingly, are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amount, to provide for future
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and liabilities to current assets and liabilities respectively. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(a) Adoption of amended HKFRSs

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of amended HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendment to HKFRS 16  Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, Reform—Phase 2
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

The adoption of the above amendments did not have any
significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods. The Group has not
early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) Amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective
The following amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments®
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
and related amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?
Definition of Accounting

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKAS 8

Estimates®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies®

Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction®
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020?

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Covid-19 Related Rent
Concession beyond
30 June 2021"
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

(b) Amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)
U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The Directors of the Group anticipate that the application
of these new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combination and basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Group made up to 31 December each year.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case
the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date
of disposal, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continueq)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and basis of consolidation

(Continueq)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition-date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of
non-controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interests’ share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are investees over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

In the note to the consolidated financial statements that
discloses the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the end of the reporting period.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but not
control or joint control over these policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby
they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amounts are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the associates’ net assets except that
losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’s share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed
the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss
on the acquisition-date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment assessment, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
assessed for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce
the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less
costs to sell (if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods
or service is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

e creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Electronic products

Customers obtain control of the electronic products when
the goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised when the customers accept
the electronic products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable within
120 days.

Nursery education services/properties management
Revenue is recognised over time as those services are
provided. Payments received from customers are generally
paid in advance prior to the rendering of services. In
accordance with HKFRS 15, if there are obligations to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration from customer, an entity should
recognise contract liabilities.

Money lending

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Regulated financial services
Revenue from asset management services is recognised
over time as those services are provided. Invoices for
regulated financial services are issued on a semi-annual
basis and are usually payable within 60 days.

(v) Other income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
the dividend is established.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining unexpired term of the
lease or five years, whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 10%—33"/5%

Motor vehicles 10%—25%

Plant and machinery 10%—33"/2%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of
the lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during the financial
year in which they are incurred.

Properties held for sale

Properties for future sale in the ordinary course of business are
included in current assets at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises the consideration for development
expenditure (which includes cost of land use rights, construction
costs and capitalised interest) directly attributable to the
development of the properties.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There is one measurement
category into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held
for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured at fair value.
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend income clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit
or loss. All other equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on trade
receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the reporting date; and
(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation of
the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired
when: (1) the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more
than 120 days past due.

In respect of loan receivables, credit risk arises from a
customer’s inability and unwillingness to meet its financial
obligations to make timely payments under the loans the Group
provided. The Group has taken measures to identify credit
risks arising from loan business. The Group manages credit
risk through review and credit approval and post-transaction
monitoring processes which is performed by management. The
Group also demands certain borrowers to place collateral at the
time the loan agreement is entered into as securities of loans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the Group
performs credit evaluations on customers periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay.

The Group categorises the credit quality of its loan receivables
and interest receivables according to 3 different stages under
the ECL model:

Stage 1:

Loan receivables and interest receivables have not experienced
a significant increase in credit risk since origination and
impairment recognised on the basis of 12-month expected
credit losses (12-month ECLS).

Stage 2:

Loan receivables and interest receivables have experienced
a significant increase in credit risk since origination and
impairment is recognised on the basis of lifetime expected credit
losses (Lifetime ECLs non credit-impaired).

Stage 3:

Loan receivables and interest receivables that are in default and
considered credit-impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit-impaired).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The loan receivables are moveable between stages. For
instance, loan receivables originally classified at stage 1 should
be downgraded to stage 2 if events occur such as a significant
increase in credit risk. Loan receivables at stage 2 could be
upgraded to stage 1 if credit risk decreases and the criteria for
the determination of “a significant increase in credit risk” are no
longer met.

The Group recognises a loss allowance to different loan
receivables at an amount equal to 12-month or lifetime
expected credit loss based on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and whether the financial
instrument is credit-impaired. ECL is the result of discounted
product of the weighted average of “probability of default (PD)”,
“loss given default (LGD)”, “exposure at default (EAD)” under the
three scenarios, which are defined as follows:

Probability of default (PD) is the probability of default occurring
of a client and its assets in a given period of time in the future.

Loss given default (LGD) represents the percentage of amount
of loss to be incurred in the event of default to the total risk
exposure. It is expressed as the loss percentage per unit of
exposure which typically varies by nature of debtor, type and
seniority of claim and the availability of collaterals or other credit
enhancements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Exposure at default (EAD) represents the total amount of on
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposure at the time of
default by debtor, reflecting the total amount of possible losses
likely to be incurred. In general, this includes the utilised credit
limit, interest receivable, the anticipated usage of unused credit
facilities as well as the related expenses to be incurred.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loan receivables are set out
in notes 22 and 39.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-impaired
financial assets, interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. All the Group’s
financial liabilities are at amortised cost and are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

3.

FEGHEREBME @)

ERMTH®

REBERAGEZERER

REBHENANEZSRABEEIERE

& R H MR RIBRER

Bi’ifé%ﬁﬁaﬁ’ﬂﬂﬂ-/ﬂﬂéﬁéﬁiﬁiﬁ
E - AR BERX R IRmER

ERRER IS U RETHINR
W o B RS $E P R FE T ©
BRARZ
BRAREZNAETHEEN TR

BEZHENARINERBEDK
MEWAHFERZZHE -BR
MEDREHMEENERESEH
g (M A) BB B RITRME
RERRWEWA AR Z LR

lRATA
A B EITHIRR A T BT Esy
PRISRUBHIPREZEITRATAR

RIEFESD
NHREmMEEMBRZAREE
MEBZaMNENBRBER NEE
MEERERMBENSEBYH
HWEZEREOR 2 A& IEHESZER] > B
FERGRIEIZETMEE-

EMEENERASNIBEZERE
FRER ~ BUH S 2 BT AR LERERE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of assets which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income earned
on temporary investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials and, where applicable, direct costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle that
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at
the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where
the effect is material.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding
goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under the Group’s accounting policy. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of time value of money and the risk specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at cash-generating unit level.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Income Taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income Taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items recognised
directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
reporting date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in the profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at that date, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average monthly exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
as a separate component of other comprehensive income (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 have been
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated in Hong Kong dollars at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of whether they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12 months.
The lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability; (i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. The Group measures the right-to-use at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made; and (i) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments arising
from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

License acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.
The cost of license acquired in a business combination is its
fair value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are assessed for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available for use are assessed
for impairment annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. Intangible assets are
assessed for impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts. The accounting policy as set
out in “Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding goodwill)”
is adopted for impairment assessment of intangible assets with
finite and indefinite useful lives.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease to the extent of its revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement plans are
charged as expenses when employees have rendered services
entitling them to contributions.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”), for employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Group’s
executive Director.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results might differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The key accounting judgement is as follows:

Classification of properties held for sale

The Group has temporarily leased out its properties held
for sale (shop premises) but has decided not to treat these
shop premises as investment properties because it is not the
Group’s intention to hold these shop premises in the long-term
for capital appreciation or rental income. Accordingly, these
properties are still treated as properties held for sale.

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The management of the Group reviews the carrying
amount of the inventories at the end of each reporting period,
and makes allowance for any inventory items identified to be
carried at a recoverable value that is lower than cost through
estimation of the expected selling prices less estimated cost of
sale under current market conditions.

Impairment of properties held for sale

Management assessed the recoverability of the carrying
amount based on professional valuation of the fair value of the
underlying properties which involves, inter-alia, considerable
analysis of current market price of properties of a comparable
standard and location and a forecast of future sales based on
zero growth rate of property price. If the actual net realisable
values of the underlying properties are more or less than
expected as a result of change in market condition and/or
significant variation in the budgeted costs of resale, material
reversal of or provision for impairment losses may result.

4.

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding
goodwill)

Management periodically reviews each asset for possible
impairment or reversal of previously recognised impairment.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. If such assets are
considered by management to be impaired or impairment
recognised is no longer required, the impairment required or
reversal of impairment previously recognised is measured by the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds
or exceeded by the estimated recoverable amount of the
assets respectively. In determining the recoverable amount, the
Group seeks professional advice or makes use of independent
professional valuations as appropriate which are based on
various assumptions and estimates.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2021 was
HK$4,506,000 (2020: HK$7,901,000). Further details are set
out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The fair value measurement of certain of the Group’s financial
assets utilises market observable inputs and data as far as
possible. Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on how observable
the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

e Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items
(unadjusted);

e Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than
Level 1 inputs;

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market
data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures the below item at fair value:

—  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 15)

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the item above, please refer to the applicable
note.

Impairment of trade and loan receivables
Management assesses the expected credit loss on trade and
loan receivables based on the lifetime ECLs and 12-month
ECLs respectively. Judgement is required in assessing
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. If the financial
conditions of the debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
provision may be required in future accounting periods.

4.

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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EXRGEHEE RAE &

AREFE
rEEETEREEZAANENE
BUEFBTEIRERHABRH
BE-RAUEEARBEFENHAE
RIEGEEFRMAAERBAENATR
REEDSABITBEHR (ARESE
) -

o FR:MERBENEERHEZ
B CRERE) ;

o 2R BB ABELINZ T
BREEEEEAME,

o B3R ARHRHAML B
FRETHEE) o

RIEB DR C I ERT R
AHZBEE AR EELEERTEL
ERERBAEERE - BEETH
R BB B A AR LAREST -

FERZANEFETIIER !

BARERERYRZEHNE
E (fi5E15)

AREREEAABZESRE
K ESEEAN .

FEURE 5 AR R R E iR (E

EEENHREREMEEREK
128 B FREEBIRTERINE S
BB ERRREEEE-
SHEEEBENSRNEGES kA
EERMERSNRE AERRIF
i H) i o (B AR B RS &
ACT B 551 F RIS =R BE 0 > RIAT
FERIN BB ESHAIRIF BRI
o

SHTEEEABRAT | 2021 F£i

47



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s segment information is based on regular internal
financial information reported to the Company’s executive
Directors and management, being the chief operating decision
makers, for their decisions about resources allocation to
the Group’s business components and their review of these
components’ performance.

The Group currently has five reportable segments. These
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different business
strategies as follows: (i) manufacture of electronics products;
(i) provision of nursery education service; (i) money lending
business; (iv) property development and management business;
and (v) regulated financial services business.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the
Group’s reportable segments:

5.

Wk 3B #H
FEBZOBEHDREBEZRTE
REPTESKREERE NETESE
RERE) UHEREXRER XA
Rl 8RR 2 B R 0 Be R i 5 5% 35 4B AY
BIP 2 RIFZ EHRRNEHAFE R
o

AEBBRMEREAIRSEDE B
VEEZENECRRNERSERIE
HABERKRZE LEEREE
BERBUT ()BFEREE ()R
R BHBERE ;(i)EEF ; (VY
ERBENTEEE, RVWSHRES
RRAR TS TS

Tt AERKE R RS DER

TLK -
g

2021 2020
% T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT FAET
Revenue from contracts with EAMBREEINFE155
customers within the scope of HEANKEERFEHNZWE !
HKFRS 15:
Electronics products — manufacturing B FEm—
and sale of electronics products TERBEETFER 89,969 55,005
Nursery education — providing MREE—
nursery education for children ARERENEHE 672 1,756
Property management — providing MEEIE—
management services for RETREFIREEERS
landlords and tenants 12,641 11,231
Regulated financial services — providing =R & &8RS —
asset management services REBEBERS 6,930 8,042
110,212 76,034
Revenue scoped out of HKFRS 15: SAMBEREEINFI55R
#E SRR -
Money lending & 22,005 25,095
132,217 101,129
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. K kDEEH &)

(Continued)
The total presented for the Group’s operating segments AEBEREDHEMEBMBEHARE
reconciles to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in BRGEVMBERRASER2ETEM

BRIRHRINT ¢

the consolidated financial statements as follows:

Property
development Regulated
Electronics Nursery Money £ financial
products education lending management services Total
MERR ZHE
BfEm hRHE & mEe SRR b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER TR TR
2021 b
Segment revenue NElE 89,969 672 22,005 12,641 6,930 132,217
Inter-segment revenue NERKE = o - - - -
Reportable segment revenue AREN BN E 89,969 672 22,005 12,641 6,930 132,217
Segment profit/(oss) DR/ (558 1,314 (502) (64,418) b4l (6,571) (69,306)
Other information: Hitrgh
Additions to segment non-current assets B 2 HEFRBEE 5,968 - - - 5,968
Net finance (credit)/charge RE (B%) /EFE 386 - (12) - 319
Depreciation of property, plant and NE BERRBZINE
equipment 2,997 - 343 2121 31 5,498
Income tax expense/(credlt) FsRmE/ (5% - - - 21,347 @ 21,345
Net impairment loss on financial assets ~ ®HEEREEEFE 182 - 78,532 2,542 3,047 85,203
Impairment of assets BERE - - - - 4,810 4,810
2020 Z3ITE
Segment revenue PENE 55,005 1,756 25,09 11,231 8,042 101,129
Inter-segment revenue ANERNE - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue RSN ENRE 55,005 1,756 25,095 11,231 8,042 101,129
Segment profit/(oss) PEER/ (58 (8,665) 6,841 (38,216) 1,504 (156) (38,602)
Other information: Hitrgh
Additions to segment non-current assets ~ FEZ N EFEFHEE 2,081 - 202 2,300 - 4,533
Net finance (credit)/charge HE (%) /BFE 32 1,659 5 (4 = 1,692
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERREZINE
equipment 2,198 - 355 1,279 4 3,868
Income tax expense FrisimeS 43 - 178 1,284 133 1,588
Net impairment loss on financial assets ~ SREEABSETE 306 3576 55,089 2,829 1,725 63,525
Impairment loss on inventories FEAEEE 432 - = = - 43
Impairment of assets BERE 8,271 - - - = 8,271
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. K kDEEH &)

(Continued)

2021 2020
% “ECTHF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT FAET
Reportable segment loss ARENIEEE (69,306) (38,602)
Impairment of assets BEERE (3,415) —
Share of results of an associate EE—RERE RN B 2 28 (5,513) 60
Other net gains Hhezm 528 1,700 (14,726)
Unallocated corporate costs (note) KoBoEmA (5 (21,559) (24,263)
Unallocated corporate net finance cost R EC{E 2B E B 24~ F 8 (24,249) (27,030)
Loss before tax PRI ATES B (122,342) (104,561)

Note: B E -

ROEEXEMATREAESTNAE (BEESR
M) ERABEER ERER - TER
WMAERE GEHAER)

The unallocated corporate costs mainly comprise staff cost (including Directors’
remuneration), legal and professional fee, exchange differences, depreciation
and office rental (short term lease).

2021 2020
—E-—%F “ETTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT TFAET
Segment assets DEEE
Electronics products BEFESR 67,411 45,451
Nursery education MREHE 158 444
Money lending & 113,475 220,170
Property development and MEREMEIRE
management 617,923 602,847
Regulated financial services STHREERMIRT 17,205 24,051
Total reportable segment assets ARENEEERE 816,172 892,963
Unallocated corporate assets RPEEEEE
Interest in an associate R—EEAE 2 #m 146,313 153,580

BARERERYERZ
THEE 8,720 7,020

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Property, plant and equipment (note (i) #71% ~ BE K& (15E()) 280,361 298,629
Prepayments, deposits and other FANRE-EEK

receivables H e RIE 267 535
Others (note (ii)) H it (B EE(i) 3,584 8,217
Total assets EEHEE 1,255,417 1,360,944
Notes: Bt -
()  This mainly represents office buildings which are used as corporate head () WEFEEREATERER A

office. Kigo

(i)  The balance mainly represents cash and bank balances retained at iy ZEHRTEARENECEEAENRS

corporate level. K iR1T4EBR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WEKkaDHEEN (&)
(Continued)
2021 2020
—E-—%F TETTHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TAT
Segment liabilities nEaE
Electronics products BT Em 46,550 26,438
Nursery education NRHE 3,056 2,738
Money lending & 623 572
Property development and management 4 3£ 58 25 71 & 12 179,916 156,222
Regulated financial services SHRESRIRTE 2,048 2,127
Total reportable segment liabilities ARENEaEERE 232,193 188,097
Unallocated corporate liabilities Kot EER
Bond payable FE (I & 250,000 260,000
Other interest-bearing borrowings HhE BEmR 236,548 237,902
Interest payable e F] 8 20,772 11,163
Fund contribution payable R E MR 68,031 66,698
Others (note) Hqh (53 20,723 38,504
Total liabilities B E48%E 828,267 802,364
Note: Mk -
The balance mainly represents amount due to a shareholder and accrued EREEREN—LREFRIBERETEEH
corporate expenses. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. W kDEEN #
(Continued)
Geographical information HEER
The following provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue from TREHRAEEZERHZE D (F
external customers by geographical market, irrespective of the WmEMZ TR NRBINIEF 2K
origin of the goods: AT

2021 2020
—E-— “ETTH
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT

The People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”) Hh#E A RHAE (THE.)

Mainland China Hh B A B 103,282 67,992
Hong Kong (place of domicile) 574 Gk 28,935 33,137
132,217 101,129
Information about major customers BRAFERFHNEN
For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from three BHE_ZE”_—4#+"B=+—HIL
customers (2020: three customers) (all in the manufacture of FE -HURBEFEREEDEZ
electronics products segment) with whom transactions have —HEPR (CEIEF  Z4ER)
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for the year as detailed R ZWmBiBAERFAWRERED
below: 10% > BT ¢
2021 2020
—E-— —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Customer A EZHA 18,690 19,162
Customer B ZFAB 26,105 17,573
Customer C EZFAC 28,167 12,542
72,962 49,277
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Property development

Electronics products Nursery education

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

5. WmkDEEHN @)

Wiy 2o e 520 By

Regulated financial

and management services

BETER BEHE

2021 2020
ZEC-f ke
GICIOM  HK$000
FHT FET

2020
2

HK$'000
TAL

Timing of revenue recogniton I RESRE

NERENER

“ECSE

5%

HK$'000

ZRE GG
2020
“BIZE

HK$'000
TAT

2020 2020

“3-3s

HK$'000
TE®

TER

At a point in time R E—FREE 89,969 55,005 - = - = - = 89,969 55,00
Over time FEBs e - - 672 1,756 12,64 11,231 6,930 8,042 20,243 21,029
89,969 56,005 672 1,756 12,641 11,231 6,930 8,042 110,212 76,034

The following table provides information about trade and
bills receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

RN E Z R R RE
GHaE

Trade and bills receivables
Contract liabilities

TR ERERRTLSONERE

BERF BUEERGNEENE
#} o

2021 2020

—E-—F TECEEF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

B sk FET FET

20 44,395 32,437

25 3,200 3,672

The contract liabilities mainly related to the advance
consideration received from customers. The Group has applied
the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its
contracts for sale of goods and services and therefore the
above information does not include information about revenue
that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts for sale of goods
and services which had an original expected duration of one
year or less.

EMNERTEHEARERARESR
o xEBERBBMBRS 2R
FIEBI2IRZ TR E AR
AREBEEERMARBEH WL
MENAEEAEREERRERR
TR A —FHAURNZHEG R
RIRBEMNEG TRAOSERKAE
EEZWR@mER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

6. OTHER NET GAINS

6. Hfthiim F58

2021 2020
% “ETTH
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B FAT TAT
Interest on bank deposit and IRTTER RG2S
balances 15 )
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB ARz W 33 - 13,827
Rental income HEBUWA 5,082 8,025
Government grant (note) B #aEh (95 2,392 985
Exchange differences ERERE (5) (19)
Forfeiture of deposits from tenants 25 &Y B KT MEN
and property purchasers BE - 320
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial A REREZSIERZ
assets EHMEEZARE
at FVTPL W (E518) 1,700 (15,604)
Others Hith 952 2,076
10,136 9,619
Note: Bt -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received government
funding support of HK$910,000 from the Employment Support Scheme under
the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR Government. The
Group does not have any unfulfilled obligation related to this subsidy as at 31
December 2020.

7. FINANCE COSTS

BE_Z_ZFE+_B=+—HLEFEE &
EEWIERRERAMELBENEES
5T MR ZE SR M BT & £ % £5910,00078
TR B _BFE+_B=+—H > xERTL
EHEZHMERNTARBITE T

7. BB A

2021 2020
—E—F —EIEHF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT FET

Interest on bank borrowings and bank  $R1T& UL IBTTE X UK
overdrafts and other borrowings HtERZHE 24,634 27,033
Interest on lease liabilities HESEZFE 9 1,693
24,643 28,726
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8. LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

8. FRIMMAIEGIA

SRR IR R INRU TS ERE

o
2021 2020
—ET—F “ETTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAET
Staff costs including Directors’ BTHA (BEEEM) !
emoluments:
Directors’ emoluments (note 9) BEE (F:59) 610 934
Staff salaries, allowance and welfare & T ¥l ~ 2 BE R EF| 31,878 27,665
Retirement benefit scheme BBt B R
contributions 3,455 1,384
Total staff costs BT A 4258 35,943 29,983
Auditors’ remuneration Z B Fm N & 1,300 1,303
Cost of inventories recognised WRAZHZTFEREK
as expenses 74,736 42,251
Depreciation of property, ME- -BERKREZITE
plant and equipment (note 13) (M15E13) 22,607 22,129
Exchange differences ERER 5 15
Short term leases expenses FHAE SRS 60 322
Impairment loss on intangible assets & E B EEE (HI:E16)
(note 16) 4,810 8,271
Impairment loss on interest in R—ERE QB 2 #m
an associate (note 14) BERE (T:E14) 3,415 =
Impairment loss on property, ME-BERKRE
plant and equipment (note 13) BEEE (f:E13) - 1,358
Impairment of assets EERME 8,225 9,629
Net impairment loss on FEW E 5 R FUR B 51873 58
trade receivables (note 39) (M15£39) 4,515 2,784
Net impairment loss on HMEWIB R B E1E P EE
other receivables 2,156 5,652
Net impairment loss on loan FEWE R ER1E 358
receivables 78,532 55,089
Net impairment loss on financial assets % RL & & 5 8 £ 18 7528 85,203 63,525
Impairment loss on inventories FERERE — 432
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EEREEMSE
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors are as ENHENSESZME0T
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_FT-_—F+-H=+—HL
FE

Retirement
Basic benefit
salaries and Benefits scheme
Fees allowances Bonuses inkind contributions Total

BEHs BirEH
ik Ri#Rh R RMER AR 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Ti#Em T TR TERT TERT

Executive Directors: HIEF:

Ms. Yeung So Lai REERT = = - - - -
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Cassar FERLE = = o - - -
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFRITES !

Ms. Hu Gin Ing kS e 250 - = - - 250
Mr. Chow Wi Leung William BERLE 180 = S . - 180
Mr. Leung Man Man RER%E 180 = = = = 180

610 = = = = 610
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continuea)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

EEkEEME @)

BE_ZE_ZF+_H=+—HIL

e
Retirement
Basic benefit
salaries and Benefits scheme
Fees allowances Bonuses inkind  contributions Total
EfrEd RITER
ik Rgdh A BYER BES fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TER TR TR TiEx TiEx
Executive Directors: BTES:
Ms. Yeung So Lai BEELT - 154 - - 8 162
M. Lee Chi Shing Caesar EmkE - 154 - - 8 162
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFRTES !
Ms. Hu Gin Ing PRELT 250 = . = = 250
Mr. Chow Wai Leung William BRR%E 180 = = = - 180
Mr. Leung Man Man REREE 180 - - - - 180
610 308 - - 16 934
Note: Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the executive izt : BENHEMRITESHFE EZWK
directors are generally emoluments in respect of those persons’ other HEfBEABMZEATHER
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company AR RENBASIEHMREZH
and its subsidiaries. ARTS = # BN ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continuea)
During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Yeung
So Lai and Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar have waived part
of their emoluments in the amount of HK$6,600,000 and
HK$5,400,000 respectively (2020: HK$6,438,000 and
HK$5,238,000 respectively).

Save as aforesaid, no Directors has waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the Directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: nil).

For the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, none of them were directors of the Group (2020:
nil), details of whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the five (2020: five) highest individuals are as
follows:

9. EENEEM=E @)

BHE_Z-_—F+°“H=+—H
LtEE BEBL I RESEMLE
ERERESIMNE SBIHIE
6,600,0007 7T 525,400,0007 7t (Z
T T 5] %6,438,00058 70K
5,238,0005 7T) ©

R EXFRLESN BMEZS - —F

TECTEFRA=+—HILF
E BEEERRUARNSHRRETM
B <2

BHE_ZE - —F+“HA=+—HL
FEOAEBUEAZEESZTHM
EAB A S E MDA 2 & B Ry gy 82
B E (C S _TE  E) o

FEBENERRSHMA THLIF
FEFEE (CETTEF B AR
MEFEHRNLX -1 (CEE
F 0% ReHMATZBEHS)
LI

2021 2020

—E—F _ECEF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

F#&T FET

Salaries and other benefits e RHMEH 3,780 4,402
Contributions to retirement benefit BRIRBEH EH B H R

schemes 90 74

3,870 4,476
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EFEKEEME (&
EMOLUMENTS (Continueq)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZMEDA TR

Number of individuals

Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,00058 7T 4 3
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 E 1,500,000 75 1 2

5 5
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior ENHEMNSREEERNEZME
management were within the following bands: PR TR

Number of individuals

Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,0007%8 7T 5 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10.FFr MBI X
The income tax expense for the year comprises: KEEPESRASZEE !
2021 2020
TR 5
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FAT TAT
Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax BIERFRIE— & B 18R
Charged for the year F AR (217) (310)
Current tax — PRC tax BRERIRIE— P ERIE
Charged for the year FERk (10,530) (809)
Under provision BEFEREBERE
in respect of prior years (10,817) (469)
(21,347) (1,278)
(21,564) (1,588)
Deferred tax RIEFR IR
Credited for the year FRETA 29 219 -
Under provision in respect of BEFEEETE
prior years 29 - =
219 -
Income tax expense FTi8ME (21,345) (1,588)

PRC enterprise income tax has been provided on estimated
assessable profits of the subsidiaries’ operations in the PRC at
25% (2020: 25%)).

PRC Land Appreciation Tax is levied at progressive rates from
30% to 60% (2020: 30% to 60%) on the estimated appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditure including land costs, borrowings costs
and all property development expenditures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

10.FREMRMEEZ @)
BERZZ— N/ —NFREEE
MzHmBEANERE - BEZT
——E+RB=1+—HILEE'E
BRERIR(GEERREFN16.5%
AR (CEIEE 116.5%) 0 HEE
B8 EEE 2~ E2,000,00058 T ERR
AR H%8.25% 5t (C B T4 ¢

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continuea)
In accordance with the new two-tiered profits tax rates regime
with effect from the year of assessment 2018/19, Hong Kong
profits tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 16.5%),
except for the first HK$2,000,000 of the qualified entity’s
assessable profit which is calculated at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%).

8.25%) °
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the KEERMERNASHEGEERRZ
loss before tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as PRIGAIESIRE R T ¢
follows:
2021 2020
% BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT TAT
Loss before tax FRAG AT ES 18 (122,342) (104,561)
Tax thereon at domestic rates REMBR A& ZRERNIER
applicable to profits or losses ZEMREFE 2 RE
in the jurisdictions concerned 18,811 14,625
Tax effect of expenses not Aol 2 MFE L
deductible for tax purposes (24,867) (17,385)
Tax effect of income not BEFMBAZRBEE
assessable for tax purposes - 3,459
Tax effect of tax losses not RERMBEHEZNBEE
recognised (3,981) (4,705)
Tax effect of temporary differences FETERERNBEE
not recognised (700) (738)
Utilisation of tax losses previously AU ERERZRIBEIE
not recognised 44 3,492
Under provision in respect of BEFEREERE
prior years (10,817) (469)
Effect of special tax exemption BHRIBER MR E 165 133
Income tax expense for the year FAREHRES (21,345) (1,588)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

11. DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

12. LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is
based on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$144,126,000 (2020: HK$108,257,000) and the weighted
average number of 2,032,571,385 ordinary shares.

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding during each of the
respective years.
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g2
EFSfBEERNEE_S-_—&F
+ZB=+—HBIEEEZRBRE
(CEZZF H|) o
FKREE
SEREARBEEREIREAR
EIVEE AFE(LES1E144,126,00078 7T
(ZBEZF 4 1 108,257,000 7T) U
Zm RN F19862,032,571,385
fest&o

HRBE-S - —FR-ZT-TF
+ZR=+—HLEFETEARE
BAZETHEINSBERD  BRE
HEERESRERNREERBIENE
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Land and
buildings

THRET

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold
improvements

HEkE

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

13.ME -BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
il RE

VES

Motor Plant and Right-
vehicles machinery  of use asset

ERkAE

fE  HRERHS

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn TAn TER TAn TEn TER

Cost R
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-Z5-F-H 347,663 17217 3,930 2,057 2,113 1713 374,753
Additions HE - 1,564 2,383 - 431 267 4645
Modification of lease REE:] - - - - - (110) (110)
Currency realignment ERHE - 961 273 84 166 106 1590
At 31 December 2020 and RIEZZE+-R=1+-HE

1 January 2021 ZEZ-E-f-H 347,663 19,802 6,586 2,141 2710 1976 380,878
Additions HE - - - - 4,601 - 4,601
Currency realignment ERHEZ - 425 121 37 74 46 709
At 31 December 2021 RZE_-F+ZA=+-A 347,663 20,227 6,713 2,178 7,385 2,022 386,188
Accumulated depreciationand ~ BHTERE(E

impairment
At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZE-F-H 33318 2,346 1,263 1540 806 642 39915
Depreciation ik 17,383 2,812 736 158 174 866 22,129
Impairment A 1336 2 - - - = 1358
Disposals HE - - - - - (69) (69)
Currency realignment ERHE - 240 76 58 64 88 526
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZEE+ZRA=+-HR

1 January 2021 ZE_-f-fF-H 52,037 5420 2,075 1,756 1,044 1527 63,859
Depreciation & 17,383 2,985 1,505 170 201 273 22,607
Currency realignment EREE - 111 34 26 28 4 239
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-%+ZA=1+-H 69,420 8,516 3614 1,052 1,363 1,841 86,705
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-%+ZA=+-H 278,243 1,1 3,099 26 6,022 181 299,483
At 31 December 2020 RIEZEE+ZA=1-H 295,626 14,382 451 385 1,666 449 317,019

Bank borrowings of HK$230,548,000 (2020: HK$237,902,000)
are secured on the Group’s land and buildings.

$R1TE 230,548,000 T (ZEZ
T4 1 237,902,00077T) AAEE
TR TFIRAR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE 14. R —RHBELAT ZER FE
TO AN ASSOCIATE T—EgE AT $'A" I8
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had an interest N EC—FRZIZEZEF+ZH
in the following associate: =+—H XxEBRUTHERF
AR

Proportion of
voting rights
of capital held by the
contributed by Group as

the Group general partner Principal activities
p:3 3E]
fERER
mEx FEERHK = I

TEERNY THET EALLH RIS FERH

Proportion

Principal
place of
operation

Place of
incorporation

Form of business
structure

Total capital

Name of entity HK$'000

ESP LN B ATES

164

[T City Limited Cayman Islands Hong Kong 255,250 60% 28.57% [T properties

partnership investment

BREBA BEHE 2y TELE
2021 2020
B % T FE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT TAT

Movements of interest in K—REgE AT
an associate are as follows: T BN U —F

At 1 January n—B—H 153,580 150,349
Capital contribution to associate I'E-] BENBEE 1,661 3,171
Impairment (note 8) BE (H5E8) (3,415) -
Share of results of an associate B —REBE R B 2 28 (5,513) 60
At 31 December ®+ZA=+—H 146,313 153,580
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE
TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Note:

0

On 2 May 2018, the Group entered into the limited partnership agreement
in relation to the operation of IT City Development Fund LP (‘IT City”)
and two subscription agreements in relation to the application to
subscribe for an interest in IT City with a committed capital contribution
of HK$51,000,000 in the capacity as general partner (through an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“GP1") and HK$100,000,000
in the capacity as limited partner (through a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) respectively. The principal purpose of IT
City is to invest in properties that can consolidate and promote the
development of IT industry and its related supporting facilities. According
to the limited partnership agreement, the management, policies and
control of IT City shall be vested exclusively in the general partners who,
acting unanimously, may make such investment decisions as they shall
determine, having given consideration to the investment objective and
investment strategy of IT City and the advice of the investment committee
of IT City (the “Investment Committee”). GP1 shall be entitled to appoint
two members to the Investment Committee, which demonstrates its
significant influence over IT City.

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

14. R —HBERT Z#E FE

T—RHBEATDRE (&
B E -

U)

RIE—NERAZRH &x&EETIL
—IBEREBARE ABERELET
City Development Fund LP (TT City )
EMIERERE AR A ERAEDRET
Cityl#z > BB AE DR BEBAAT
MEL2ENBARUEEEBEA (MY
BEEA—1) B HE51,000,000% 7T
EBEBRANBDEBEZENBRABUE
[R&EE A S HE100,000,0008 75 IT
CityWEZBEHHNERENENEE R
FTTEREERAEEZENYE R
BEREBEARE T CitylEE R
ERZEGIEEBERGB TS ESCBA &
> BEEBA U—T81TH) an
ZEIT City i EEERIEE R
IT CityzREZEg ((REZEG) W
REBRHAEECFHERRERE &
BEBA-—REAEREZIRELZESE
AWM S BRERT CityBEEARY
1o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SFEMBRRMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE

TO AN ASSOCIATE (Continueq)

The summarised financial information in respect of IT City is set

out below:

14. R —HBERT Z#E &
T—EBEQXRRIE (&)
BRAIT Cityz B E R0 T :

2021 2020

—E—F TETERE

HK$’000 HK$’000

F&T BT

Current assets TMENEE 223,740 243,160

Total assets HmEE 223,740 243,160

Current liabilities =X (16,933) (15,446)

Total liabilities e (16,933) (15,446)

Net assets EEFE 206,807 227,714

Share of an associate’s net assets EiE—EBE AT 2 EEFE 146,313 153,580

Revenue & 12,200 12,217

Total comprehensive income eSS Gtk (36,300) (2,376)
Share of results of an associate EE—RERE RN B 2 28

(net of tax) (OBRIRIB) (5,513) 60

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

At the date of this annual report, IT City has not identified any
potential project for investment. IT City and its general partners
are now inviting potential investors to participate in order to
increase the fund size and the investment options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

16.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

15.#%
B

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

Financial assets at fair value BARERBEESIRZ
through profit or loss ETRMEE
- Unlisted equity investment -JEEMRAKE

NAERBEZINRZERM
E

2020

2% g 5

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHTT

8,720 7,020

The unlisted equity investment represents 18% equity interest
in ORBiz International Limited which was established for
provision of real-time kinematic solution. The equity of Link
Complex Limited, which owns this unlisted equity investment
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company was pledged
to secure the Group’s bond issued as detailed in notes 27(vi) to
(viii).

The fair value of the unlisted equity investment as at 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 has been arrived at
on the basis of an valuation carried out on the respective dates
by Asset Appraisal Limited, independent qualified professional
valuer net connected to the Group.

JE_ AR E SR ORBIz International
Limitedd918% Ik (B iR E E R &)
REROR 5 M A IL) o QAMFEE27 (vi)
Z(viii)Frafat > tEIEIE E AR AN
ERFAEAREKABZEZENB AR
Link Complex LimitedfJ % 2
BRUAKREB D ETHNESEE
fRo

AZB-—F+ZA=+—BHR=
ToSE+-A=+—ANELD
BAREA R B ER PHEEE
SFERRARAR (A EE LR
JEBIB I A E S B 2 1 ) B 4B
ST NG EEE -

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BB E
License Goodwill Total
fam He st
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mk FEx FET FET
At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZF—F—H 9,786 14,458 24,244
Impairment EAE] 8 - (8,271) (8,271)
Disposal HE (600) - (600)
Currency realignment ERHE - 1,714 1,714

At 31 December 2020 and R_E_F&+_-A=+—H%

1 January 2021 —E_—&—HF—H 9,186 7,901 17,087
Impairment BB 8 (1,329) (3,481) (4,810)
Currency realignment ERAE - 86 86
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—-&5+ZH=+—H 7,857 4,506 12,363
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

17.

The intangible assets comprise licenses and goodwill from
business combinations. License mainly represent the Type
4, Type 5, Type 6 and Type 9 regulated activities licenses
as defined under Securities and Futures Ordinance (‘SFQO”)
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong. These licenses were
considered to have indefinite useful lives and will be assessed
for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
it may be impaired. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
impairment loss of HK$3,481,000 was recognised on goodwill
relating to acquisition of subsidiaries engaged in regulated
financial services and the related goodwill was fully impaired on
31 December 2021 (2020: HK$8,271,000 relating to acquisition
of subsidiaries engaged in manufacturing and sale of electronic
products and the related goodwill was fully impaired on 31
December 2020).

The Directors assessed the impairment of licenses under the
regulated financial services business segments at the CGU level.
Based on the results of the assessments, impairment loss of
HK$1,329,000 was recognised on licenses under the regulated
financial services business segment as at 31 December 2021
(2020: nil).

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON LICENSES
AND GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment assessment, licenses and
goodwill are allocated to the CGUs of money lending business,
regulated financial services business, electronic products and
property development and management as set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON LICENSES

AND GOODWILL (Continued)

Regulated financial services business

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
from value in use calculations based on cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets covering a five-year period of
2022 — 2026 (2020: 2021 — 2025). Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 2% (2020: 2%), which does not exceed
the long-term growth rate for the financial advisory industry in
Hong Kong.

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

17.[8 B R & Z RBETE

SRESMARTE X
REeEEF B2 EWREEDIRE
EX#MEEE " _FFF
_/\E (CEIBF . ZE %
“ETAF) RERETEN (RER
FHAR) REEREESEMET
BaALFRABEZREERENEA
AEtIEFEIERRI% (ZTE2ZF
F12%) R ARAEERXTBES
BB BATERAERER -

Discount rate ALIR=
Management fee growth rate mﬁ%i EX

Advisory fee growth rate ABHEE R
Costs growth rate AR A g R &

2020

—eoE

17.90% 17.39%
2% 2%

0% 0%

2% - 5% 2% - 5%

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was estimated using
unobservable market data from the projection of the future
cash flows of the business from its economic useful life and is
classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Fair value was
determined by discounting its present value by the weighted
average cost of capital determined from market data.

FFF 4 F = B 35 R T B A1 3 I BRAT
BESELE ABARK-

ReEFEUzIKREIEEELFER
REZEBKBOIFERFRZ AR
REMERANZ FAIREHHEE
EHGE WD EARABBRSE
- N RBEIHETZHEBEEE 2
MEFEHERRAITIREIREME

TEo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

17. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON LICENSES 17. 8RB EZRENG &

170

AND GOODWILL (Continued)

Regulated financial services business (Continued)

In view of the combined book value of the non-current assets
under the CGU being higher than the recoverable amount of
this CGU determined based on value in use, management
estimated that the fair value less cost to sell of this CGU
should not be materially different from its value in use since the
existing use of the subject non-current assets under the CGU
represent their highest and best use. Accordingly, based on
value in use calculation, an impairment loss of HK$1,329,000
and HK$3,481,000 against license and goodwill has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Property management services

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
from value in use calculations based on cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets covering a five-year period of
2022 - 2026 (2020: 2021 — 2025). Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 2% (2020: 2%), which does not exceed
the long-term growth rate for property management in the PRC.

ZHRESRRBES @
ERNReELBEMNETNIERSHEE
HNEeEHEmESRZRSEL BN
RFEABEEENITCEEE
BIEEMZREELEEUNAR
BERLEMAEEEFRHEBEILE
EREERE WITERREELESA
ETHNERBHEENRERRAHR
ReRERERR AL REEHE
BitE BREEEBREGEDH
#41,329,0007% 7T % 3,481,000 70 2
R&E"_E-_—F+"A=+—H
IFFEZREBERRABRE(CEZ
TEH) o

MEEIBIRF
ReEEFBUIWEISETIRE
HMERAFER(CE-__FE_F X
F) (CEIE2F 22T —FF
T ﬁ@%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁm
RWEREEN KBEREEFE
NEE AERUBZREESRED
FRESTMERESEER2Y (T
TBF2%) B ZEXTERAB
BREYESENRIFIEER.

2020

“ETEHF

Discount rate ARIRR 16.46% 16.46%
Management fee growth rate EEBRERX 10% 10%

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

The management fees within the five-year period were
determined based on past experience.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON LICENSES

AND GOODWILL (Continued)

Property management services (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU was estimated using
unobservable market data from the projection of the future
cash flows of the business from its economic useful life and is
classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Fair value was
determined by discounting its present value by the weighted
average cost of capital determined from market data.

As the recoverable amount of the CGU of the property
management services exceeded the combined value of the
non-current assets under this CGU, the directors are of the
opinion that there was no impairment on goodwill as at 31
December 2021.

Electronics products

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
from value in use calculations based on cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets covering a five-year period of
2022 — 2026 (2020: 2021 — 2025). Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 2% (2020: 2%), which does not exceed
the long-term growth rate for the manufacturing of electronics
products in the PRC.

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

17.8 B REEZRENE &

MEEIERT @)

ReEFBEAUzIKREIEEELFER
REZEBKBAERAFRZ AR
RWEMERANZ FAIREHSEE
EHGE WD EARABEBRSE
Yo AREBENHNETHBBEEZ
MEFEHERRAITIREIREME

TEo

HRMEEERBRTELEUZ
I eI EEBH ILIRE AL B IR
TIERBEEZREBE WESD
AREER_E_—F+"RB=+—
B IR E ©

BEFEm

WEeESXB U WEERBEHRE
M%ﬁﬁ%Lg::Ei_g:ﬁ
F) (CTBEIEF 22T —FF
= ﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁm
HeEnEEAN KAEHEGBSE
MEE AFBHUBZRERET
KAMGENEFIEREIY (ZF
TTF %) B ZIEREXTBHR
EL¢I ETEREENRIAERE

2020
—7—7$

Discount rate ARIRE
Revenue growth rate WaRIg R X
Costs growth rate AR AN g R &

15.50% 15.50%
1% - 8% 2% - 14%
1% - 8% 2% - 14%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

17. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON LICENSES 17. 8RB EZHENG &)

172

AND GOODWILL (Continued)

Electronics products (Continued)
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was estimated using
unobservable market data from the projection of the future
cash flows of the business from its economic useful life and is
classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Fair value was
determined by discounting its present value by the weighted
average cost of capital determined from market data.

In view of the combined book value of the non-current assets
under the CGU being higher than the recoverable amount of
this CGU determined based on value in use, management
estimated that the fair value less cost to sell of this CGU should
not be materially different from its value in use since the existing
use of the subject non-current assets under the CGU represent
their highest and best use. The goodwill was fully impaired on
31 December 2020.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The management believes that a reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which management has based
its determination of the recoverable amounts of the CGUs of
regulated financial services business and property management
services would not cause the carrying amount of the respective
CGU to exceed the respective recoverable amount.
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ERREELBEUBTNIFERBEE
NEHEREESRZREELEN
RIFEREBEEENTWCISEE
EEEMHZREELEBUNAR
BEREEMRAELEEFRABEELE
BAEE WIEARREELEN
EINNIERBEENRERRAH
BEkRERGR - BHEENRIZEZ
ZFE+ZR=+—HEERE

BRREBBRE
EEERCEEERMEEUEER
RETMRBEBRYMEEERS
ReELEURTREBEENEER
RNGEFEEH T TERRHE
EEBAUNREEBHEENAK
[O] %8



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INVENTORIES

19.

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

18.12 &

2021 2020
% == 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FET
Raw materials i 5,101 1,159
Work in progress FEm 1,456 1,427
Finished goods BUEY SR 2,208 3,015
8,765 5,601

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 19.F1FHEME
2021 2020
T —F TECEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FET
Properties held for sale BIEHEY 602,664 540,391

The properties are located at the underground of Minzhu
Road and Fuhui Road, Lijiang City, Yunan Province, the PRC.
The gross floor area of the underground walkway project is
approximately 36,583 square metre (“sg. m.”) comprising a civil
air defence work structure of approximately 13,730 sqg. m., 741
units of the saleable shop premises with a total gross floor area
of approximately 19,923 sg. m., a non-saleable property utility
room of approximately 15 sg. m. and a commercial function
room of approximately 2,915 sqg. m.. Properties held for sale
which are expected to be recovered more than twelve months
after the end of the reporting period are classified as current
assets as it is expected to be realised in the normal operating
cycle of the Group.

The Group engaged Knight Fank Petty Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group to
perform valuation on properties held for sale at 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020 and further adjusted the cost
to sell by the Group to assess the net realisable value. No
impairment was provided for both years.

MEMPRTREFEEITR TR
REERM T ozt N HTHER
EEmELNA36,583F K (TFH
K1) HEBAS13, 730 F A K
—BARBFEIRERE BEER
B4 219,928 F 5K 27415 7 #8
EBE BEEABIS5FAKZ—M
ROt EMYE M EBELN 52,915
FRZ—EEELAGREMEN F
EHEZYEBBEBNIREPRE
+ZEB U BWE BN EFEHRE
NEEERESBIHANER  WHE
DIEEAREEE -

FEREZEEERGAHEMITAE
RAR (BMAERWERENBIL
BEREXEMGLEN BT —F
+TZTRA=1+T—BRZZZZTF+T
B=+—HHFFLHEYEETH
B TE-—THBEREBHENS
DeHE a IR 3 E - mEF EH R
SHERERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

20 BB BRRKEKRERE

2021 2020

TEZ—F it

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAT FET

Trade receivables FEURE 5 IRFX 54,290 36,640
Less: impairment provision R EEE (11,530) (6,901)
Trade receivables — net EWE SR —$ %8 42,760 29,739
Bills receivables B 1,635 2,698
44,395 32,437

At the reporting date, the ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables before impairment, based on invoice date, is as

REZHE  BWESRRKRE
W CRERD MRS B2 iRER

follows: DUWT -
2021 2020
2 —F ettt
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0 - 60 days EF60H 33,971 12,587
61 — 90 days 61E90H 1,343 3,823
91 - 120 days 91&120H 1,126 2,741
Over 120 days 120H X £ 19,485 20,187
55,925 39,338

KEBKRFTHEGRERZEERR
BIBAEMA THENF0E120
H((ZZ_Z&F :0F120H) 28
HH-BERA BIWE ZRAREW
ERRmMERAREANERE

The Group allows credit periods ranging from O to 120 days
(2020: 0 to 120 days) to its trade customers depending on
their credit status and geographical location. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables
approximate to their fair values.
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21.

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

A {3 1A
I8

BrEREMER

2

23

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Prepayments, deposits and FANRIE - ZER
other receivables =l A E e 11,575 53,812
Other tax recoverable HalERE 804 2,001
12,379 55,813
LOAN RECEIVABLES 22. R E &
2021 2020
—E—F et d
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Loan receivables EWER 274,870 302,382
Less: impairment provision B BB RS (162,406) (83,874)
Loan receivables — net EWER— 112,464 218,508

As at 31 December 2021, loan receivables with aggregate
gross principal amount of HK$247,300,000 and gross
interest receivables of HK$27,570,000 (2020: gross principal
amount of HK$277,400,000 and gross interest receivables
of HK$24,982,000) were due from thirteen (2020: fourteen)
independent third parties. The interest rates of the loan
receivables range from 6% to 15% per annum (2020: 6% to
15% per annum.) Three (2020: three) of the loan receivables
are secured by share charges of the borrowers, and twelve
(2020: thirteen) of the loan receivables are secured by individual
guarantee. The Group does not have the right to sell or
re-pledge the shares held as collateral in the absence of default
by the borrowers. All loan receivables which were repayable
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period were
classified as current assets at the reporting date.

N _E - —&FE+_FB=+—H =
£ HREB A 5247,300,0005 7T 2 fE
I ,\$)\EZFEL|&5F|J B#E%E27 570, ooo
BT (ZCE_ZTF . AL HE
277,4oo,ooo%m7§zmﬂzﬂ,%%%E
24,982,000 7T) HIWERE+=%
(ZE-FF  +UR) BIUYFE=
o BWERZFIENFREER
E15%2B (ZTEZEHF tfﬁ6%
F15%) cHP =B (CTEZ2HF !
18) FER BB A /\Hy{ﬁ}%af’ﬁ’f
}%’ZHEPJr:IE( ETEEFE 4=
18) EWE T BE A ZFREKR zlz
EEABEERALEENNE
Tﬁ‘EXE%E_WFﬂ%f’E%%&#EDZ
D e MNREHE FREBREER
EERtT @A P\M;-‘itz%u&iéf%\
ﬂﬁ+ﬁ%uu§ﬂ§)§1°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

23. ZRHWITEM

2021

— = —

—_— T —

—f

HK$’000

:F

Restricted bank deposits ZIRFIRITER

1

AT

,890

2020
—E_=s
HK$’000
F#T

1,890

As at 31 December 2021, a bank deposit of approximately
HK$1,890,000 (2020: HK$1,890,000) was pledged for
banking borrowing amounting to HK$86,109,000 (2020:
HK$88,410,000) granted to the Group (note 27(i)).

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

N_E-_—F+"_HF=+—H" 4R
T1E5491,890,0008 T (ZE &
£F 11,890,000 7T) ERIR FAEER
Ry $R 17 & 7086,109,0005E 7T (Z T —
TALF 1 88,410,000 70) FEIEIE (M sE

27()) ©

24.%1#%%&5%&&%&%1#%&

2021 2020

% “ETTH

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FAET FHET

Trade payables FET & Z RN 25,865 14,498
Accruals and other payables FEST & R M HE i fE( RIB 179,870 149,989
205,735 164,487

At the reporting date, the ageing analysis of trade payables,

REZHEE B ESRMNR

based on invoice date, is as follows: EHEZREDFWNT
2021 2020
B “EIEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FET
0 - 60 days 0&60H 13,624 6,352
61 — 90 days 61290H 1,506 2,528
Over 90 days =g 10,735 5,618
25,865 14,498

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
other payables approximate to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. 8GR

2021 2020
TR g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT
Contract liabilities arising from: THEHEL ZEHNEE
Provision of properties management 12 Y E SRR
services 1,360 887
Manufacturing of electronic products £ EEFEm 1,840 299
3,200 3,672
Revenue recognised in relation to contract MENaEREZzZWE
liabilities
2021 2020
—E-—%F TETTHE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT TFAT
Balance as at 1 January N—B—HZ#&Ek 3,672 3,095
Decrease in contract liabilities as REERBEDA
a result of recognising revenue during SHBEZINGHEREL
the year that was included in I=EEPE
the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the year (3,672) (2,846)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HERB AR (MiEE33) - (249)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result Y EXFET FRIEE R
of advanced payments received BHRBEEEM 3,200 3,672
Balance as at 31 December R+A=+—HZ&&5% 3,200 3,672
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO A SHAREHOLDER/ 26.FEIt “FE(IBRR IEIERR #

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS mIE
The amounts due from/to a shareholder/non-controlling FEURFE(TRR SR, FEER R T IE
interests are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. RAHEIRF - RERBENRERREER
27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 27. 5t BB ™
2021 2020
% TEIEHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEx
Current: e -
Bank loans and other borrowings  $R1TE KR H M E R
Secured term loans BIRWEREMR
(note (i), (v) and (ix)) (2R ~ (V) (x) 10,065 7,654
Unsecured borrowing HIRIRAER
(note (i), (v) and () (BFERG) ~ (VX)) 5,914 357
Guaranteed revolving loan BERBIRER
(note (iii), (v) and (ix)) (B 5 i) ~ (V) B2 (X)) - 551
Guaranteed term loan BEREHER
(note (iv), (v) and (i) (MFEE(V) ~ (V) (X)) 1,550 —
Bond payable (note (vi) to (ix)) FEGES (HEEV)ZE(X) 250,000 190,000
267,529 198,562
Non-current: JEE -
Bank loans and other borrowings  $RITE R H M &5k
Secured term loans BIERTEHER
(note (i), (v) and (ix)) (MREE® ~ (M R2(ix)) 220,482 230,248
Guaranteed revolving loan BERBIRE™R
(note (i), (v) and (i) (£ ~ (V) 2(iX)) - 142
Guaranteed term loan BEFREHER
(note (iv), (v) and (ix)) (M 5E(Gv) > (v) Bz (ix)) 10,573 -
Bond payable (note (vi) to (ix)) I 1ES (HEEVIZE(X) - 70,000
231,055 300,390
Total aast 498,584 498,952
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

U)

(i)

(i)

Loans amounted to HK$230,548,000 (2020:
HK$237,902,000) are secured by certain land and
buildings held by the Group of which HK$86,109,000
are further secured by bank deposits of HK$1,890,000.
As at 31 December 2021, term loans of approximately
HK$230,548,000 (2020: HK$237,902,000) carried floating
interest rate which ranged from 1.4% to 2% per annum
(2020: same) over one-month HIBOR or the lending bank’s
cost of funds, whichever is higher. HK$10,065,000 and
HK$220,482,000 are repayable within 1 year and 2 to 3 years
respectively.

Loan amounted to HK$5,914,000 (2020: HK$357,000) is
unsecured, carried fixed interest rate which ranged from
4.25% to 8.48% (2020: 8.48%) per annum and repayable
within 1 year.

As at 31 December 2020, loan amounted to HK$693,000
is secured by personal guarantee of a former director of
a subsidiary and carried fixed interest rate of 11.34% per
annum. HK$551,000 and HK$142,000 are repayable within 1
year and 2 to 3 years respectively.

Loan amounted to HK$6,000,000 is secured by personal
guarantee of directors and carried fixed interest rate of 2.75%
per annum. HK$325,000, HK$798,000, HK$3,417,000 and
HK$1,460,000 are repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2 years, 2 to 5
years and more than five years respectively.

Loan amounted to HK$6,123,000 is secured by personal
guarantee of a director of a subsidiary and corporate
guarantee of certain subsidiaries, and carried floating interest
rate of 5 basis points over Loan Prime Rate. HK$1,225,000,
HK$1,225,000 and HK$3,673,000 are repayable within 1 year,
110 2 years and 2 to 5 years respectively.

All the loans do not contain repayment on demand clause but
are subject to the fulfilment of covenants. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the loans would become repayable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
their covenants and there was no breach during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

2 7 . =+ i 15 TA (/Aﬁ%’)

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

BF230,548,0008 7T (ZCE =
F 1 237,902,000/ 7T0) AAER
Frig M E T LM R FEIRR
EH 186,109,000 51— H iR
1T7F01,890,00078 TT/EHE o 72
B —F+"_HA=+—H"'F
HA B F1#9230,548,0008 75 (Z=
|4 1 237,902,000 7T) & —
BARTREEREMSF1.4%
2% (ZEZEF [ EHRE) NFE
XY ERIRITESREAE
BEEF B 10,065,000 7T &
220,482,000 T2 A 1ER &
2EJERBEIER

B#%5 914,000 T (ZE =
357,000/ 7T) & EIKH > e F
4.25%%FE8.48% (CE_ZF !
8.48%) MEEF X5t E MBI
FEREE-

R-_E_ZEF+_-_A=+—08>
E693,0008 THMTE AT —
LR ESENE A EREILE
WiR G F11.34% M E EF X5t
% ©551,00078 7T 52 142,000 7T
PR EREIFERNBER -

E 6,000,000 7t HEEHE
AERIEIRIT > LG EE2.75%
R E EFIZE 5T B 325,000 78
798,000 7T ~ 3,417,000 7T K&
1,460,000 T DRI 1E 1 E2
FER 2ESFARARSEULBEE
Bo

B36,123,0008 T H M B AT —
LEENEAERREETHBR
B EERERE WiREGF
ERmBREMNENMSEEED
FEF KT B 21,225,000 7
1,225,0007 75 % 3,673,000 7T
PR ENE2FEARNL2ESER
BEE

PTE BRI E L EREERF
o BABTHE HALEEE
REHE > ERALERER
FEBTEMRERAEZEGRE
MBE_E_—FR_ZZ
TE+_RB=+—HILFELE
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

In 2018, the Group issued bond with principal amount
of HK$300,000,000 to an independent third party. The
bond bears interest at 8% per annum and matured in
December 2019. The interest is repayable quarterly in
arrears by the Group. On 23 July 2018, the Group partially
repaid the principal amount of HK$20,000,000. The bond
payable was secured by pledge of share equity of certain
subsidiaries including (i) Chengdu One Two Three Aozhong
Education Investment Company Limited, the immediate
holding company of operating company of the provision of
nursery education services in PRC; (i) Superactive Financial
Group Company Limited (“Superactive Financial Group”),
the operating company of the provision of regulated
financial services in Hong Kong; (iii) Link Complex Limited,
a company which held 18% equity in ORBiz International
Limited; and (iv) Shenzhen Jiaxin Enterprise Management
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Jiaxin®).

On 24 December 2019, the Group partially repaid the
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 and the bondholder
granted an extension of the maturity date for the remaining
outstanding principal amount of HK$260,000,000 from
December 2019 to 28 December 2020.

Upon extension of the maturity date, the bond payable
was secured by additional pledge of share equity of certain
subsidiaries including (i) Edisoft Investment Limited, (i) Joint
Faith Enterprise Limited, (i) Shenzhen City Qianhai Wanke
Financial Services Company Limited and (iv) Lijiang Hua
Ou Real Estate Company Limited, the operating company
which is engaged in property development in PRC.
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27.
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(Vi)

(vii)

RZE—NF AEEH
BIUFE=ZFETASES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)
(vii) On 28 December 2020, the Group partially redeemed

(ix)

the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 which have
been subsequently settled on 7 January 2021. The
bondholder further granted an extension of the maturity
date for the remaining outstanding principal amount of
HK$250,000,000 and the bond interest rate was increased
from 8% to 10% per annum. According to the Third
Supplemental Deed, the Group should redeem a bond
with a principal of HK$10,000,000 on 28 December 2020;
On or before 28 June 2021, together with the aggregate
principal amount for the redemptions made after 28
December 2020, the Group shall redeem not less than
principal of HK$20,000,000; On or before 28 December
2021, together with the aggregate principal amount for
the redemptions made after 28 December 2020, the
Group shall redeem not less than HK$160,000,000. On or
before 28 June 2022, the Group shall redeem all remaining
outstanding principal amount of the bonds.

Upon extension of the maturity date, the bond payable
was secured by additional pledge of share equity of
certain subsidiaries including (i) Joint Faith Enterprise
Management (Shenzhen) Company Limited, (i) Shenzhen
Baike Enterprise Management Co., Ltd., the immediate
holding company of Lijiang Shunjin Business Administration
and Management Company and (i) Next Millions Limited,
immediate holding company of Superactive Finance
Company Limited.

Except for loans with outstanding principal amount
of RMB9,829,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,036,000) (2020: RMB882,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,050,000)), all interest-bearing
borrowings are denominated in HKS$.

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

27. 5t BB (&)

(viil

RZEZEFE+ZAZFN
B AEEHDELRAEE
10,000,000 7t R ER =

T —F—-AtHGEB-BES
HEAEMEGKREEZELRTEE
250,000,000 T#E —F X T
IEHR MEBESNEEHESF8%
REE10% REF=MHET
L AEBENR _S_2F
+ZAZ+N \BEBLOEXEH
10,000,000 THES ; =
E_—E#£XAZ+NABH=EHZ
g ERR-ZEZEF+A
Z+N\BZERETERRAX
SRR REBEBERLRA DR
20,000,000 TAE ; RTE
_—F+ZBZ+NBZZ
g BERN _E_ZT&E+_"H
ZHN\HZEMETERRNA
SRR REBEERL A DR
160,000,000 L R 22 =
FRAZHNBZ:ZAH > K&
E FERE[CE 5 P A FIgR KR FE D]
KEEE

FIEEEIHAH % B ESNU
REINERE THE LB
KR BRENE AR BE)EE
TEBIE CFRYN BRAE - (i)F
Y ERTCEERERAT (B
TIEERELSEEEERA
B BB A B Ke(ii) Next
Millions Limited (St 75 A IR
RENEFERAR) °

PRA(EEAR T2 A RTE9,829,000
7T (*E*‘* 24912,036,000% 7T)
(ZEZZ2F ARE1882,0007T
(7FE = 14491,050,000%7T)) 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SFEMBRRMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December, total current and non-current borrowings were

scheduled to be repaid as follows:

27.

st RBER (@)
R+ZB=+—8 st8EENR
B IEMENETRARERL T

2021 2020
% “ECTHF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHT T
Within one year —FR 267,529 198,562
More than one year, but not —F UL ERBBME
exceeding two years 143,396 79,908
More than two years, but not WMEU L BRBBASE
exceeding five years 86,199 220,482
More than five years EEME 1,460 =
498,584 498,952
28. LEASES 28.1H &

(a) Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as

lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties with a fixed
periodic rent over the lease term in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The lease term of properties are from 1

year to 5 years.
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28. LEASES

(b) Lease liabilities

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

28.fHE&

(b) HERE

HK$'000
FAET
As at 1 January 2020 A _ECEF—-F—H 22,997
Additions NE 267
Interest expense (note 7) MEZH (7)) 1,693
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HERB AR (MizE33) (23,545)
Lease payments MENR (2,364)
Modification of lease MEE:T (42)
Currency realignment PE B A% 1,454
As at 31 December 2020 and RIE_EFE+_B=+—HK
1 January 2021 2 —F—H—H 460
Interest expense (note 7) MEZE WE7) 9
Lease payments HENR (285)
Currency realignment bE 0 FHEE 3
As at 31 December 2021 RE2-_—F+=ZHB=+—H 187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

28. LEASES (Continuead) 28.fH 8 (#)
(b) Lease liabilities (Continued) (b) HHEEE @
Future lease payments are due as follows: FRBEMREEBROT

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
RIEAE AR )=} RE
31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2020 2020
“ETE “ETE “EEE
+-B=+—-H +=ZB=+—H +=ZB=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT THT THET
Not later than one year TER—F 282 (10) 272
Later than one year and BN —FEBAERRE
not later than two years 58 6) 52
Later than two years and not BN mEEBFEREE
later than five years 142 (6) 136
482 22) 460
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28. LEASES (Continueq)

(b) Lease liabilities (Continuea)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

28.1H8 (®)

(b) HE&E @

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
RIEAE AR FIE RE
31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2021 2021
“E-—F “E—F “E-—F
+=ZB=+—-H +=ZB=+—H +=ZB=+—H
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TERT TET
Not later than one year TER—F 58 (6) 52
Later than one year and ~ EBR—FERERWE
not later than two years 59 (4) 55
Later than two years and not B MEE BN EE
later than five years 83 (3) 80
200 (13) 187

The present value of future lease payments are analysed

REBEEMRZRES TN

as: B
2021 2020
T —F TECEE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHEIT FET
Current liabilities mEas 52 272
Non-current liabilities EREEE 135 188
187 460
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 20 RERIEEE  (ABR)
The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and movements REERBEFERS 2IRLERIE
thereon during the current year and prior year: BE/ (88 KREREE

Intangible
asset

EBVEE
HK$’000
FET

At 1 January 2020 RZE_ZF—F—H (1,515)

Charged to profit or loss for the year (note 10) ER BiE&
(FtsE10) _

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 W 2_E2F+_A=+—HkK

—2”—%—F—H (1,515)
Credited to profit or loss for the year (note 10) ERRIEFET A (HizE10) 219
At 31 December 2021 R-IE-—F

+ZB=+—H (1,296)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Continued)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for the following:

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

O.RIERMIEBEEE  (BR) #

REDIEERBEENT :

REAMIARE

Unused tax losses

2021 2020
—E-—F —ERT ERAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FET
209,473 157,369

The Group recognises deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses only where there is a reasonable expectation that these
tax losses will be utilised in the foreseeable future. Based on
forecast income streams and having considered potential future
earnings volatility, the Group does not anticipate the utilisation
of any significant portion of these unrecognised tax losses in the
foreseeable future.

The tax losses of the subsidiaries operating in PRC amounted to
HK$10,676,000 (2020: HK$3,496,000) can be carried forward
for five years from the year of incurrence of such loss under the
current tax legislation. Tax losses of HK$198,797,000 (2020:
HK$153,873,000) can be carried forward indefinitely.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
The Group is therefore liable to 10% withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

REEER T SREBHARBEER
RERRREEAZ1BR TR
BRIEERIZE E - RIFFR AW A
ML E BBERREN Z KB
B AEERPERAIRRRL NG
FRERSAREDBRNEBRZERNE
REBLR ©

RIBFRITMBEF RAPEKLE 2
M@ AT 2 M IBE51810,676,00078 7T
(CZ-Z 4 : 3,496,000 7T) AJ A
EXEHBBEFEREEAF
i IEE548198,797,0008 T (T —
T4 1 153,873,00078 7T) BJ 4 PR HAAS
o

RIFEFETCEMSRE RPERK
YZHELERIEREETIRZ
IR EBMI0%TEINR - ZRE B
“EENF—B—BEREN LB
BRZEZtF+"A=+—H%
2B P EEAINEKEERE
BA BT I MIBRA > BT A E
EINMRE AL KAEBBMZE
RABEAERILZBATR S
SNEFE—B—BEBRZBIME
TR Z IR EBIAN10%TEI0H o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SFEMBRRMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC. In the opinion of Directors, it is not
probable that these subsidiaries will distribute their earnings
accrued after 1 January 2008 in the foreseeable future. As at
31 December 2021, the unrecognised deferred tax liability that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$6,195,000 (2020:

29.

BERBEEE (B8R @

RTE_—FRTEEF+TA
=+—HB UERERT K PEL
UZWBRABENZRELREF
PREEZRIIREBIELERE -5
ER AEMB AT A RRR
BAGDRKEENR _ZEZTN\E—A8
—HERIRZBMN - R_T_—

TZR=+—H RUKERKE
ABBIRE R BT ST BIRFEDIE

HK$2,537,000). IEFRIE & E#9736,195,000/8 T (=
T T4 2,537,000/ 7T) ©
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30.f8 7
2021 2020
—_E_—fF ECEE
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
Kin#E mEfE ROEE [ELE]
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Authorised: FE .
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 &R EE0.10% 7T
(2020: HK$0.10) each (ZEZ2F:0.10%71)
MEER 15,000,000,000 1,500,000,000  15,000,000,000 1,500,000,000
Issued and fully paid BETRERE 2,032,571,385 203,257,139 2,032,571,385 203,257,139
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for both the current year and prior year are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 108
and 109 of the consolidated financial statements.

Share Premium

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

31.(#E

FERFBERRENREFEERB
TEEZEH2INGEHHBRE
BI08KRIB Z iR R m B« -

Bz {5 i B

2021 2020

TEZ—F it

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHET

At 31 December ®w+=-—BA=+—H 476,989 476,989
Other Reserve Hihf#E

The other reserve represents the net gain on the disposal of the
treasury shares.

Capital Reserve
The capital reserve represents the capital reserve arising on the
Group reorganisation carried out in 1994.

Translation Reserve

The translation reserve comprises the exchange differences
arising on the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

Hin#EEisHE B RO 2 P
e

B
BEXRREEERERR - NAANEE
TZEHEEZEREFE-

mEHE
hEREEERE BN EF M
BREEZERERR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
() 123 China Education Development Limited, a 80% owned
subsidiary of the Company, has material non-controlling
interests. Summarised financial information in relation
to the non-controlling interests of 123 China Education
Development Limited and its subsidiaries before intra-

32.FFERERS
() ERABHEBSO%Em ZHER
123 BB ERERLAA
BEEARIEERER -BR123
FEHAERBRAR REKW
BRABNEBEREHANIEE

group eliminations is presented below:

REGMBERBEZZ25/WM

T
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT FAET
Current assets TMENE E 92 375
Current liabilities mENEE (61,162) (59,724)
Non-controlling interests JEVERR 9,229 8,885
Revenue Wz 672 1,756
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (BB E5F (481) 6,962
Total comprehensive income FREEINmAREE
for the year (1,101) 4,019
Loss attributable to the JEER R (L SR
non-controlling interests (96) (2,296)
Other comprehensive income JEPERE R IR
attributable to the Hitt2mm
non-controlling interests (248) (1,177)
Total comprehensive income JEEERRRE R ARG
attributable to the FHENTAERE
non-controlling interests (344) (8,473)
Dividends paid to BETIEERERR S
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash outflow from REEHEE
operating activities BEmE #58 (48) (2,254)
Net cash outflow from KRETHEEZ
investing activities RE ML FEE - -
Net cash inflow from MEEHEE
financing activities REMAFEE - 1,659
Net cash outflow RE M FEE (48) (599)
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Shenzhen Dowis Electronics Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Dowis”) and Zhaoging Shengxiang Electronic Technology
Company Limited (“Zhaoging Shengxiang”), 60% owned
subsidiaries of the Company, has material non-controlling
interests. Summarised financial information in relation to the
non-controlling interests of Shenzhen Dowis and Zhaoging
Shengxiang before intra-group eliminations is presented

(i)

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

32. 3H”“ IRt m ()

iIIFE BB TFARLF
( RN REBEZR
EFRARAR (EEBEZ))
(RAERBHEHGC0%E w2 Mt
BAR) EEEARIFERED -
BRI ERREBREEN
SRR HATRIFERE DY

below: BERNBEZSWT :
2021 2020
% T _TF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT TAT
Current assets MENEE 52,974 34,737
Non-current assets JEMBNEE 17,145 11,886
Current liabilities mEER (60,432) (42,776)
Non-current liabilities JERENEE (4,898) (148)
Non-controlling interests JESTERE T (1,854) (1,300)
Revenue &t 89,969 55,005
Profit/(loss) for the year FriaF] (5518) 1,343 (410)
Total comprehensive income FAZEINTIERE
for the year 1,398 (356)
Profit/(loss) attributable to the FEPERR R SRR (518
non-controlling interests 537 (164)
Other comprehensive income PR R ZR FE AL
attributable to the Hitt2mm
non-controlling interests 17 22
Total comprehensive income JEPERS R TR R
attributable to the EHE W R AERE
non-controlling interests 554 (142)
Dividends paid to BT IEIERERER
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash outflow from KSR EE 2
operating activities BEMEFE8 (4,135) (2,396)
Net cash outflow from KRETHEEZ
investing activities RERH %8 (5,968) (75)
Net cash inflow from MEEIHEEZ
financing activities REMAFEE 10,601 3,077
Net cash inflow BEMA SR 498 606
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. Hj EME AR
On 3 July 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase ’:‘:g:%ﬁf‘ﬁtiz B &a&ER
agreement with a purchaser pursuant to which the Group —B B UBBHZ RILEE
agreed to sell the entire share capital held of a subsidiary, ERRR—2BUS =S HE—F
Chengdu One Two Three Aozhong Education Investment B ABMES A = RPBFRE
Company Limited (“Chengdu”), together with shareholder’s BIRAR (TR #ER)) 2 2E AR
loan of RMB13,118,314 to an independent third party at a % BFRIANKHE13,118,3147T 2 IR
consideration of RMB10,000. The disposal of Chengdu was & AER ARME10,0007T  HE
completed in July 2020. The net liabilities of Chengdu on 30 REBER T _TFELATM MK
June 2020 were as follows: HR_T_FHEA=THZER
FERWT
30 June 2020
—EIEF
NB=1+H
Notes HK$'000
B 5 TFAT
Net liabilities disposed of: BEHEZBERE
Prepayments, deposits and BN RIE HE R EMEWRIE
other receivables 848
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 305
Trade and other payables FE(T B 5 BR AU H At FE S 7R IB (11,494)
Contract liabilities BHRBE 25 (249)
Lease liabilities HESE 28 (23,545)
(34,135)
Translation reserve MERE 1,779
Non-controlling interests JEEER R 18,541
(13,815)
HK$ 000
TAT
Consideration (W= 12
Add: Net liabilities disposed of m:BerHEaE 358 13,815
Gain on disposal HE W= 6 13,827
HK$ 000
TAT
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: PEEXE HES N FEE
Cash consideration RERE 12
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHEZRENIREEEY (305)
(293)
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

Md.FEREMNERME

MELRELEZBEHK:

Interest Amounts
Amount payables due to/(from)
due to includedin Interest-bearing  non-controlling Lease
a shareholder other payables borrowings interests liabilities
stAEA FEft/ ()
Efi—% EftsE E[2
BRRAE EFE HHEER HEERE fHEafE
(note 26) (note 27) (note 26) (note 28)
(Hiz£26) (izk2) (Hfz£26) (Hizk28)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TR TR
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_2&5-A-H 1,129 888 502,549 3,006 22,997
Changes from cash flows: Renegy .
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings SHEEDMENE - - 1,073 = =
Repayments of interest-bearing borrowings BB ERER - - (4,692) = =
Advance from a shareholder REZBR 32,517 = = = =
Repayment to non-controling interests BIFEREREN - - - 676) -
Interest paid on interest-bearing borrowings HEBERZEATIE - (16,758) = = =
Repayments of principal portion of lease liabiities EERE&EZ KEHH - - - - (671)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities SfIREEEZNEHS - - - - (1,699)
Total changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEREHELEHEE 32,517 (16,758) (3619 676) (2,364)
Exchange adjustments ERBE - - 2 200 1,454
Other changes: Hitgd)
Interest on bank borrowings and RIBRREZUREMEE
overdrafts and other liabiliies 278 - 27,033 - - 1,693
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - - (23,545)
Increase in lease liabilties RESEEM - - - - 267
Modification of lease HEE:T - - - - 42
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RIBZEF+ZA=1+-H
kZE_—&F-F-H 33,646 11,163 498,952 2,530 460
Changes from cash flows: REneEs
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings T EERAERIE - - 18,000 - -
Repayments of interest-bearing borrowings BRI EER - - (18,397) - -
Repayment to a shareholder BREER (16,923) - - - -
Repayment to non-controling interests mIERREREN - - - (2,894) -
Interest paid on interest-bearing borrowings SEEFZEATE - (15,025) - - -
Repayments of principal portion of lease liabiliies & E&EZ A2 - - - - (276)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilties YREaRZAESS - - - - )
Total changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEREHELHEE (16,923) (15,025) (397) (2,894) (285)
Exchange adjustments EREE - - 29 69 3
Other changes: HitgE)
Interest on bank borrowings and ROBTREIUREMEE
overdrafts and other liabillties ZFE - 24,634 - - 9
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-%+-A=+-H 16,723 20,772 498,584 (295) 187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have
any significant contingent liabilities.

36. COMMITMENTS
Operating commitments
As Lessor

The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

35.

36.

HAEE

BT —ER-E-BE+ A
=+—8 AEELRETEAR
REME-

7
RS I
EAHAAN

AEHEHEEREE THIRERI
HEEWT

2021 2020

g —F TEIEF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FHET FET

Not later than one year @ —F 13,768 10,369
Later than one year and BB — BB EmE

not later than two years 3,523 2,343
Later than two years and BEMEENBREE

not later than five years 527 1,142

17,818 13,854

Operating lease payments represent rentals receivable by the
Group for certain of its shop premises. The leases run for an
initial period of 1-2 years (2020: 1-2 years). The shop premises
would be sold when potential buyers are located. None of the
leases contain contingent rentals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

36. COMMITMENTS (Continuea) 36.7& & (#)
Capital commitments BT
At the reporting date, the Group had capital commitments REREB AEBMDERER
in respect of property development and property, plant and ME- -BERZEZERFAEWT :

37.

equipment as follows:

2021 2020
B2 —F TEIEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Contracted but not provided for BEETAEREE 6,119 5,956
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37.FAEANELRZ
The remuneration of the key management during the year is as KEEFBEEBZMEOT !
follows:
2021 2020
BT —F —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Basic salaries and allowances, bonuses H ¥4 & 2R TEA K
and benefits in kind (note 9) EYF= (HFEF9) 610 918
Mandatory provident fund contributions  3& I A FEEHR (15E9)
(note 9) - 16
610 934
Balances with related parties are disclosed in notes 14 and 26 HEABEB AT 2 GERIEENRGEMHS
to the consolidated financial statements. RRM 1452260
Other than the disclosures above, the Group has not entered PR EWEEI  REBE KA L
into any other related party transactions. R EMEAEA LR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

The Group’s objectives are: to provide returns for shareholders;
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
so that it continues to provide returns and benefits for its
stakeholders; to support the Group’s stability and growth; and
to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the Group’s
risk management capability.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders and issue new shares to reduce its debt
level.

Consistent with other industries, the Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total interest-
bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
represents total equity, as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND RISK 38.% #x & 12 B 3R & &l &

FEEZBER  BRREHER;
RERNEBZFEKLEE Wi
BARAFHERMHORRA G ; 2F
FEEZREERER  RIEHE
TLUERAEE AR EEET -

PHEFUHABEEARE ~EE N
EREINTFRRZREESE B
BEATRERETHRURBE
BREAKTF

BEMTE B AEEERER
BRIEREEER - ZERREH
BEGUBRBESE R P
Bt BRERBENEENEEEE
W5t 8 o AR & B 5K R & P8
™ BERBEIEEDBE

REBEMARZEFBEERNT ¢

2021 2020

T —F “ETTHE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FET

Total net debt FETRAEER 492,898 487,354
Total capital BEARARE 427,150 558,580
Gearing ratio BARBEEX 115.39% 87.25%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: including
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management focuses on
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by key management under
the policies approved by the Board. The Group does not
have written risk management policies. However, the Board
meets regularly and co-operates closely with key management
to identify and evaluate risks and to formulate strategies to
manage financial risks.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk
of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Group’s operating activities.

The Group'’s financial assets are primarily denominated in HK$
and RMB. The currencies to which the Group had significant
exposure on its monetary financial assets and liabilities included
RMB. At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the net exposure
expressed in HK$ is as follows:

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

39.MBRAMEIE KRR

AEEBRARIRABEZYMER
[ BRSNS R FIREREE
EfERABETRRE ~EEZE
RREREEETRE/MTISZAREE
FAstRAZF LEREEREHARE
BMBRREZBEANZE - AR
EERFEEEERBEEEIME
ZHRIT - AERTEZSERR
EENR - AM EFERTBEE
[BER S mI K& S F LA B K 5T
ERERE > X HIEEEM R R
B o

S R B

SNEEEEAERIAZ AREIR
IR &M &8 A SN BE R E B MK B
ZEE e FEBFFAEINEEXE
FrEARTIERTEERZLER
o

FEBZEMEETZLBTRA
REBsHE -cEBIREEMETR
EEREBENEREARZERER
BREARE R —FKR-Z
“EFE+"R=+—H WBRTX
MZBRBRIT -

Assets

BE
2021 2020

—E-—F TETEE
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

RMB NG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
in response to reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 9% change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease in loss
where the relevant currencies strengthen 9% against the HK$.
For a 9% weakening of the relevant currencies against the HK$,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss and
the balances below would be negative.

2021
—E—F
Increase in
exchange

rate

BEREM
%

RMB AR ¢

HENRE

0.MBREAMEERBE @)

SRS (B
TRETSEBREAEENRS
BRAZERARZINEEXSIE
O REREFMEHZBE S - —F
ERZE_EF+_"_HB=+—HILHE
EBEEZBNES BHXEDINE
EEAREZINESHEEKIER
I G IRIMEER 2 9% B B ¥ H I
RZBBEHBE - TRAZIEH
BB B R BT EO%E &S
Bz VEE - MERMEERET
ZE% BiEFEERERFRZ
LHEH) M N 2B AEaH -

2020
= EF

Effect on Increase in
loss for the exchange Effect on loss
year rate for the year
HENEE
HEE S £
HK$’000 % HK$’000
F#ET FHT
- 9 S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arises.

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates for variable rate
bank borrowings, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated
loss) by approximately HK$2,305,000 (2020: HK$2,379,000).

The analysis is prepared assuming these financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 100 basis points increase or decrease in
interest rates is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

0. MERAKEEBREE (&

) 2= | Bz
FEBNAXEREEZREBIRITE
MBFRETNRITERERE
EARFER RN RER - AEE I
RREFXE AR AT EEE
EEMNXEE IR ERERE
BEAERM KA

A B —F+ZB=+—H" M
FEIRITTEMRNAEERE EH A
THR100EEE > MEMAEEH
REFE GHAEBNKRKRE
BB (RREER) & EHTE
#92,305,0008B T (ZE & F .
2,379,0005 7T) ©

DITRBZFNREMAREREE
NERTAREFHREZ -FX
EAHTEICOBEERBREEE
EEEABRBERNERLRE A
XEEBEBHMERGE R EEEBAIT
fiie
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables and loan receivables. The Group has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group is exposed to concentration risk as a significant
portion of its business is derived from its largest customers.
As at 31 December 2021, trade and bills receivables of
72.6% (2020: 79.6%) and loan receivables of 54.6% (2020:
50.6%) were contributed by the top five customers. In order
to minimise any credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team to be responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt on a regular basis to ensure that
adequate impairment loss are made for irrecoverable amounts.
Management does not expect any significant losses of trade
receivables that have not been provided for by way of an
allowance.

In respect of loan receivables, all borrowers who obtain loans
from the Group are subject to management review. The Group
also demands certain borrowers to place collateral at the time
the agreement is entered into as securities of loans.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparts are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit rating agencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 0.UFEEABEERKE &)
POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERAKE @)
The following table provides information about the Group’s TEREHI RN EB TR E 2R
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and bills receivables: FERER EERRKBEREERS
BEN:

Gross
Lifetime carrying Lifetime  Net carrying
ECL rate amount ECL amount

2HITEH 2HATER
EEBEER FREAR(E EEEHE FRERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FTER FTERT

At 31 December 2021 WR_ZE_—F

+=ZB=+—H
Current BNEA 0.1% 30,564 31 30,533
1 - 60 days past due #HR1 - 60H 1% 2,036 20 2,016
61-90 days past due %361 - 90H 5% 255 12 243
91 -120 days past due ~ #iHA91 — 1208 25% 270 67 203
Over 120 days past due  #HI120H U & 50% 22,800 11,400 11,400
Total #act 55,925 11,530 44,395

At 31 December 2020 RS _FF

+ZA=+—H
Current BN &R 0.1% 18,483 18 18,465
1 - 60 days past due #HA1 - 60H 1% 6,527 65 6,462
61-90 days past due #1361 - 90H 5% 496 25 471
91 - 120 days past due  #IEA91 — 1208 5% 482 120 362
Over 120 days past due ~ #iHA120H M £ 50% 13,350 6,673 6,677
Total 15t 39,338 6,901 32,437
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

ECL rates are based on actual loss experience over the past 3
years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

0.MBEBEEREE (&)

FERE @
BEERREREARNBRIFEZE
RERER ZELEREEHEL
[z Bk FEE b 854 W B HA PR 2 AT RO
EZR BRI RUKREERHER
FIRTASHF I RBERRNER

RWEBZERTRERE ZEZEU
T &

2021 2020

T —F T E

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

At 1 January n—BA—H 6,901 3,883
Impairment loss recognised B ERE 4,524 3,642

Impairment loss reversed B EREHE (9) (858)
Currency realignment fE R AR 114 234
At 31 December R+—_B=+—H 11,530 6,901
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 0.UFERBEERBE &
POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERAKE @)
The following table provides information about the Group’s TRIEHBRAAEERKRERZE
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for loan receivables: BERREEHREERBZER !

Non-credit impaired Total
FEERIE Hes
Stage 1 Stage 2
12-month ECL  Lifetime ECL

SRR EREE
12{8 B 7248 ZHATEHA
FEER EEER

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT FET
At 31 December 2021 WZEBZ—&
+-RA=+—H
Loan receivables fEWE RN 21,837 253,033 274,870
Impairment allowance BEREE (5,327) (157,079) (162,406)
Net of impairment allowance MNEFRERE 16,510 95,954 112,464
At 31 December 2020 AT _TAF
+=B=+-8
Loan receivables FEWE R 105,209 197,173 302,382
Impairment allowance B ERE S (23,824) (60,050) (83,874)
Net of impairment allowance  IFRIB{E B 5 81,385 137,123 218,508
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30.MBRMEIEKRBR (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure that adequate funds are
available to meet commitments associated with its financial
liabilities.

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring
short term and long term cash outflows on a regular basis. The
Group mainly utilises cash to meet its liquidity requirements for
periods up to 30 days. Funding for long term liquidity needs will
be considered when liquidity requirements in the long term are
identified.

mENE &R
NEBZEEZARFREREMNE ST
HYAUENRESREEER
Ao

FEEZBEHRERERAR
HRETAEUNEEBERTEESS
KeAEBETENAREWMEHAR
REZOHHBRZ RBEEIFR -
ERERPABDEZMER > RH
RBEEBRNAAFESRTUZE

o
&

TRARERRPEAEEE R
AR EREBMEESHNEE
ARLEZRERMEzEMEaEZD
e UATHRBREBEEZMEBMEZ KRR
RERBEHZANIAA DN

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date. The contractual maturity analysis below is based
on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.

2021 —E-—
More thanone  More than two Total
Within one year year but less years but less More than undiscounted Carrying
orondemand  thantwoyears thanfive years five years amount amount
—FR% Ba—F BBmE
BEXKE BORTE BOREE BBLE  AMRALH REME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET TET TFET TFET TET TFET
Non-derivative financial liabilties: Firtemas:
Trade and other payables (note 24) BRI REMELTE
(G2 203,735 - - - 205,735 205,735
Amount due to an associate E—EREARNE 68,031 - - - 68,031 68,031
Amount due to a shareholder E—2RERE 16,723 - - - 16,723 16,723
Interest-bearing borrowings (note 27) SHEB (M7 287,715 144,129 87,926 1,564 521,334 498,584
Lease liabiliies (note 26) TRE&ME (:H8) 58 59 83 - 200 187
576,262 144,188 88,009 1,564 810,023 789,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 0. FREMEERBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) BN E & JE
2020 “EIERF
More than one More than two Total
Within one year year but less years but less More than undiscounted Carrying
or on demand than two years than five years five years amount amount
—ERY BE—F BERE
REKE BORAE BOREE BRLE AERESE e
HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
TERT TERT FET TET FET TET
Non-derivative financial labilties: ElZeaka =t
Trade and other payables (note 24) ETERRA R EMER R
(Hiz204) 164,487 = - - 164,487 164,487
Amount due to an associate FEf— F'EJWM/\T | 66,698 - - - 66,698 66,698
Amount due to a shareholder Ef—2RENT 33,646 - - - 33,646 33,646
Amounts due to non-controling interests %ﬁ?ﬂ“ﬁﬂéﬁﬁ?ﬂlﬁ 2530 = = = 2530 2530
Interest-bearing borrowings (note 27) SHEBR (M) 213,793 89,287 225,429 - 528,609 498,952
Lease liabilties (note 28) HESE (H:H8) 282 58 142 - 482 460
481436 89,345 205,571 = 796,352 766,773
Summary of financial assets and liabilities by THEEREBESEME
category
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities presented REEHBRARFPEIN ZEHME
in the consolidated statement of financial position relates to the ERGERmEHENTEER
following categories:
Financial assets: TREE
2021 2020
—z-—x ettt ta
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET TFET
Financial assets EMEE
At amortised cost: FBRER A E
Cash and cash equivalents BENIBEEEEY 5,686 11,598
Restricted bank deposits ZIRFEIFRITER 1,890 1,890
Trade and bills receivables B E 5 IEF R E N E 1R 44,395 32,437
Loan receivables FEE R 112,464 218,508
Deposits and other receivables & K B FE W IE 11,363 12,028
At fair value through profit or loss A A EREETIER 8,720 7,020

184,518 283,481
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 39.
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)
Financial liabilities:

MBEREEERBE (&)

THEERERESEHRE @

2021 2020
—z-—x itk Y
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T8t T

Financial liabilities measured at BRBER A E2EMEE .

amortised cost:

Trade and other payables e B 5 BRI E A
FEATFRIE 205,735 164,487
Amount due to an associate et —M i E A B FRIE 68,031 66,698
Amount due to a shareholder FEt— %R FIE 16,723 33,646

Amount due to non-controlling FE{T IEIE R I T FIE

interests - 2,530
Interest-bearing borrowings HEMEM 498,584 498,952
Lease liabilities HEaE| 187 460
789,260 766,773

The carrying values of the financial assets included above
approximate their fair values due to their short term nature.

The carrying values of the financial liabilities (including current
portion of interest-bearing borrowings) included above
approximate their fair values due to their short term nature.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for borrowings
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
borrowings as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was assessed
to be insignificant. The carrying values of the non-current
portion of interest-bearing borrowings also approximate their fair
values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_ZT_—F+_HA=+—HILEE

0.MFERAIMGERBREE (&)

TRHEERERIEME @&

TREIIRBADESFRIZANE
SRR ERM T B2 9

B4R

H24K

B3

HEEENBRIEED
B2 HRE RERE) ;

PREF A B 1R Z |RESN > 7]
MEESNEEERE BE
%) BB (BlR B B%)
BRMEZBALE, &

WIRBEAUBEETHEH
BRNEENBRZBAE
(REJEREBAE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SFEMBRRMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

category (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value BARER AR
through profit or loss SRz SRBE
- Unlisted equity -ELmRATR

instrument (note 15) (Kfzk15)

Fair value
hierarchy

AREER

Level 3

B3

0.MBEBEEREE (&)

Significant
unobservable
input(s)

Valuation
technique(s)

EXTH

{EERE BREAR

Discount rate
at 21.12%
(2020: 22.16%)

Discounted
cash flows

Long term
revenue
growth rate
ranged from
108.66% to
130.12%
(2020: 103.66%
10 130.12%)
RRER
21.12%
(C3I3E:
22.16%)

=i
Itin

HRRER

Rl
BREA
103.66%%
130.12%
(CBIBE:
103.66%%
130.12%)

Relationship of
unobservable
input(s) to

fair value
IE
BWAER
AREHRR

The higher the
discount rate,
the lower the
fair value

The higher the
long term
revenue
growth rate,
the higher the
fair value

BREES
AREELE

REWE
RREYE
AEES

Fair value
ARE
2021
HK$'000

ZEC-&

TR

8,720

8,720

THEERERIEME @&

2020
HK$'000

—E-Ef

—=—==

TiEn

7,020

7,020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)

There was no change in valuation technique between the two
years.

As at 31 December 2021, the fair values of unlisted equity
instrument has been determined by an independent firm of
professional valuer which holds a recognised and relevant
professional qualification.

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value
based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows:

Unlisted equity investment

SFEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

0.MHRMBEERKE (4)

THEEREBRIEHRE @

RERWIWERRT -

KRB —F+"HA=+—H"3F
EHRATEZ AREBEER—EF
BRI RIEHEEERZBIER
HEMITERE

BRAnEIRZEMIAREEX
TR HREAE B3R 2 HIRHS
L

FEMmIRAFIRE

Financial assets at FVTPL

BRARERBERIIRZEMEE
2021 2020

% - 5
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THT

At 1 January \’\—E —H 7,020 22 624
Total gain/(loss): m,/ (B518) 42%
Fair value change during the year fﬁﬁq/\ﬁbﬁﬁ@j 1,700 (15,604)
At 31 December W+-B=+—H 8,720 7,020

Sensitivity analysis

For the purpose of valuation of the unlisted equity investment,
discounted cash flows method has been adopted. As at 31
December 2021, the key unobservable input used was the
expected revenue growth rate of the unlisted equity investment.
The expected revenue growth rate adopted ranged from
103.66% to 130.12%. A reasonably possible 5% decrease/
increase in the expected revenue growth rate would result in
increase/decrease in loss for the year ended 31 December
2021 and decrease/increase in equity of the Group by
HK$1,779,000 as at 31 December 2021,

BRKED
MELTRAKEZHEMS
ERMBRREREEZ - R _E
——H+ZB=+—H FEAN
FEROUBEEHABEBRIELTR
AEENTEAWEIERE o TR A
HFEHAM R IE RN F103.66%E
130.12% > THEAN I IE R R A fE S
BRL ENs%BEREE_T
T F+ZBR=t—BHLEEEZE
B/, MO RAERR S —
FE+"B=+—HBzERZHL 1HE
A01,779,0007 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
H#E_T-—F+A=t+—HILFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  40. QS MR A R R i E %

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 9]
2021 2020
—EZ— TETEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FAET TFAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERIBEE
Property, plant and equipment EN G4 2 7
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZKE 21,628 21,629
21,630 21,636
CURRENT ASSETS MENE E
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ FEfTFIE 9% K&
receivables Hfh fE W ZIE 82 354
Amounts due from subsidiaries A EYNCIE O] 731,189 867,229
Restricted bank deposits ZPREISEITENR 1,890 1,890
Cash and bank balances RE& R IBITAEERR 242 190
733,403 869,663
CURRENT LIABILITIES mREAE
Accruals and other payables fEETE A E’ZET&T =18 23,822 14,819
Amount due to a shareholder B —H IR 16,711 33,634
Interest-bearing borrowings T EER 253,500 192,600
294,033 241,053
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 439,370 628,610
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT & & E R B & &
LIABILITIES 461,000 650,246
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ JEf@h& &
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEME™R 82,609 155,810
82,609 155,810
NET ASSETS BEERE 378,391 494,436
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B2 R (A
Share capital PRI 30 203,257 203,257
Resenves {n%f% 175,134 291,179
TOTAL EQUITY W iEEE 378,391 494,436
The statement of financial position of the Company was ERABMMBRRARER T =
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on FOR_+hEEE=EH /&EZ&
25 April 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: T > WHUATALTREREE !
YEUNG SO LAI LEE CHI SHING CAESAR
BERE FE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T—F+H=1—HLEFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 40.ZRFHBRARKRFEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY g (&
(Continued)
Capital
Share Other redemption Contributed  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
AR B Hitifks EXRERE AR REti5E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THAT THET THERT TET TET
(note)
((i5f=3)
At 1 January 2020 RZEZEE—A—H 476,989 54 1,442 70911 (148,744) 400,652
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRASER2EKELE
income for the year - - - - (109,473) (109,473)
At 31 December 2020 and R-E_FF+-A=+-A
1 January 2021 kZEZ—-£—HF—H 476,989 54 1,442 70911 (258,217) 291,179
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRASER2EKELEE
income for the year - - - - (116,045) (116,045)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+ZBA=1+—-H 476,989 54 1,442 70,911 (374,262) 175,134
Note: sk -

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the book values
of the underlying assets of the Company’s former subsidiaries, Pantronics
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries, at the date on which the shares of these
companies were acquired, and the nominal amount of the share capital issued
by the Company under a Group reorganisation in 1994.

In addition to retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
the contributed surplus account of a company is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot pay or declare a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if: it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

A BERTE AR A B A SPantronics
Holdings Limited & E i@ AT Z BB ER
ZENBZRHENEZ B2 IREEREEAR
BRBEAEER — AN NEETEHRRET
ZRAEBEZERE-

BRARDEEMN RBERE-NAN—FR
BliE —RABZHABRFIRIF A DK A
M HAADEERNIREBEEERERE
e REEEZAIZREERLERER
HeRABETRERKRMEERZ B
AR RBFENRKCRE KRS N EH ARG
fEH 73K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—S+H=1+—HLEE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES M. FTEWE LT
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FTEMBATIZFFENT !

Proportion of ownership interest
held by the Company
AR REZZENT

Place of incorporation or Issued and fully paid share
Name of company registration/operation capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities

PG AMMLAER S8 BEARERREGRES B i TEXH

Superactive Financial Group Company Limited ~ Hong Kong/Hong Kong Ordinary HK$12,500,000 - 100%  Provision of regulated financial
services activities

FRERERERAT 58/ 5% 112,500,000 7 REZRELHREED

Lijiang Hua Ou Real Estate Company Limited PRC*/PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
(note) RMBS5,000,000

BIENEHEEEARAR (D) HE /e A AR #5,000,0007 ES

Lijiang Shunjing Business Administration and PRC*/PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property management
Management Limited (note) RMB5,000,000

BILBEEETEERERAT () /e sHE AR AR #5,000,00070 nEER

Superactive Finance Company Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong Ordinary HK$15,000 - 100% Money lending

FRABERAT 5%/ 5% EBIR1500087 W&

Shenzhen Dowis Electronic Company Limited PRC*/PRC Registered capital - 60% Manufacturing of electronic
(note) RMB1,000,000 products

HImBERETERAF (HzD) HE /A i EAAR%1,000,0007 RESFEM

These are companies with limited liabilities in the PRC

Note: The English name of the subsidiary represents the best effort by the
Company’s management to translate from its Chinese name as this
subsidiary has no official English name.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and
liabilities of the Group. To give details of all the other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
31 December 2021 or at any time during the year (year ended
31 December 2020: nil).
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